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REIER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
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Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.r.
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BERMUDA PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Credit Agricole Corporate & Investment Bank

STOCK CODE
01170

WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/kingmaker

KEY DATES

Closure of Register of Members

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General

Meeting

23 August 2023 to 28 August 2023

Entitlement to the proposed final and special final dividends

1 September 2023 to 5 September 2023
Annual General Meeting

28 August 2023

Proposed payment date of final and special final dividends

On or about 25 September 2023
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Financial Highlights
B E

2023 2022 Change
—EI=F BT F B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FHET
Revenue g 1,061,974 842,687 +26.0%
Gross profit E7 89,623 25,199 +255.7%
Gross profit margin ESVIES 8.4% 3.0% +5.4 points
+5.ABE DR
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable AT #FFEA
to equity holders of the Company  FE{tE R (B518) 53,410 (18,035) N/A 484
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Basic earnings/(loss) per share SREFEMN (51H) 7.92 (2.69) N/A 738
HK cents HK cents
Al Al
Proposed final and special final BURREA R A5 RI R HA AR B
dividends
Interim dividend per share SRTPHERE 1.8 -
Special interim dividend per share SRR FEER 0.5 2.0
Final dividend per share BRFPERE 2.0 -
Special final dividend per share SRERERBEE 0.2 2.0
Total dividends per share for the year 2FSRKEEEE 4.5 4.0 +12.5%
. Net cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$393 million . H4& REERE$EE FEE4393,000,00058 7T
Revenue Profit/(loss) for the Year Attributable
U 2 to Equity Holders of the Company
ARG E ABGEERN, (B518)
(HK$ Mil B & B 7T) (HK$ Mil & &%)
1,200 200
1,101 1,050 1,062
1,000 ‘
843
805
800 100 88
53
600 36 |
400 0 ‘
-18
200 o
0 = -100
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
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Net Asset Value Per Share Attributable
to Equity Holders of the Company
AR EARLEREERE
(HK$ B 7T)
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

[

OUR VISION

AR

To become the leading lifestyle footwear company trusted by

premium brands for value creation and innovation.

BN EERREREE  RRBERMER  HERE

EEMNESHRIH -

OUR MISSION
fEan

To partner with leading brands in making the best lifestyle products to

meet and create consumer demand in footwear and related products.

HEEBEGFREREFETIRER nEeHBEEHNEBRBHE

mAVEE WHEFAIEENK.

| am pleased to report that Kingmaker Footwear Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”) have achieved positive results for the year ended
31 March 2023 (the “Year”). Despite facing headwinds such
as trade tensions, weak retail demand and a challenging
global economic environment, we have remained resilient
and have continued to deliver value to our customers and
shareholders. Our team has worked tirelessly to adapt our
operations to external changes, while consistently improving
efficiency, upholding quality and maintaining a healthy financial
position. We recognize that there will be continued challenges
and uncertainties in the global marketplace. However, we are
confident that our robust manufacturing platform will position
us well for long-term sustainable growth. Our efforts and
investments in building a strong set of core competences have
enabled us to stay ahead of the curve.

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman
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MACROECONOMIC DISCUSSION

The coming financial year continues to be a mix of growth
impulses and interlocking challenges. On the positive side, the
global economy has begun to stabilize and is showing signs of
improvement, albeit to a relatively weak upturn. The reopening
of China has provided impetus to global economic activity, but
continuing trade tensions and geopolitical risks will remain a
concern. Other downside risks include persistent global inflation
despite an easing of energy prices from record levels in 2022,
supply-side pressures in particular the tight labor markets, and
the impact of high interest rates.

To gain better clarity in this uncertain environment, manufacturers
need to take a proactive approach to risk management by
identifying relevant industry trends and signs of potential threats,
developing contingency plans to cope with short-term market
volatility, and implementing long-term capacity and capability
upgrading plans to secure sustainable growth.

STRATEGIES AND OUTLOOK

Entering the financial year 2024, the order pipeline continues to
lack visibility. It is expected that the footwear brands’ inventory
adjustment period will extend into the first half of this coming
financial year, until client inventories recover to healthier levels.

In light of this, the Group will maintain prudence in capacity
expansion plans and instead focus on upgrading our facilities
to handle anticipated client procurement requirements of higher
sophistication, short turnaround time, and small batch sizes. To
maintain cost competitiveness, careful workforce planning is also
essential. We have adjusted our manpower cautiously in line with
the forthcoming order forecasts, while at the same time, helping
workers upskill to better serve our strategy of product portfolio
enhancement.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

Our future-ready initiatives can be summarized in these six
strategic action areas:

1 Fortify business growth and enhance revenue profile

Adopting a set of growth strategies that aligns ongoing
business development activities with our unique capabilities,
the Group will continue to stay focused on the higher end of
the active footwear arena.

To this end, we will take forward customized research and
development (“R&D”) for brands that offer potential of value
growth, and to meet client requirements, the R&D center in
Zhuhai, mainland China, will be relocated to the available
premises adjacent to the southern Vietnam production site.
This plan is set to be implemented within the next few years
and will bring R&D activities closer to the Group’s main
production hub, offering a one-stop service to clients. By
equipping the center with upgraded facilities, and moving
it to a more strategic location, we can improve our overall
production service offering.

Plans are also underway to move the outsole factory
to the premises next to our main production site in
southern Vietnam, to enable more efficient manufacturing
arrangements. Upon ceasing of operation of the partnership
outsole factory in Cambodia, vacated space there can be
re-designated for manufacturing purposes.

2 Capacity and capability planning

We aim to grow our capacity and capability in tandem with
our strategy to develop a higher-value product portfolio.
Given the current uncertainty in the macroeconomic
environment, we will take a prudent approach to capacity
expansion. Instead, we will upgrade our facilities and
replace old machinery. We also plan to increase automation
moderately to raise our overall efficiency.

While continuing to maintain a cross-location platform in
southern Vietnam and Cambodia, we are actively adjusting
the manufacturing activities between these two sites to
support brand clients’ procurement plans. We will continue
to work with our clients to make inter-site manufacturing
adjustments.
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Pursue operational excellence

As a production partner for leading footwear brands,
innovation in product development is at the forefront of our
operations. From the use of materials to the manufacturing
process, we prioritize innovation in order to fulfill the ever-
changing design needs of our clients. Additionally, we are
committed to enhancing our work processes to cope with
new requirements, including the need for quick production
cycles and frequent line changes.

During the Year, we undertook a thorough and in-depth
revamp of our manufacturing process with an aim of
achieving further efficiency gains and improving the overall
performance and output quality of our production centers.
Our local management teams have also made some
production line realignments in order to flexibly respond to
ad hoc events that may disrupt our order fulfillment ability.

Mitigate cost inflation

Cost inflation remains a significant issue for manufacturers,
and we are taking stringent measures to mitigate
inflationary pressures. We are driving cost control initiatives
across our operations and constantly advancing our lean
manufacturing and enterprise resource planning systems.

While we are scaling back moderately on our workforce,
we have primarily reduced unskilled labor and focused our
resources on further training skilled workers. This approach
will enable us to achieve savings and at the same time
enhance the quality of our output. Additionally, we will
increase the proportion of subcontracting to supplement
our existing workforce, allowing us to keep fixed labor costs
in check and flexibly meet urgent order requirements. By
optimizing our workforce and leveraging subcontracting, we
can efficiently meet the demands of our customers while
maintaining cost control.

Strict cost control measures apply not only to our
production operations but also to our sales, administrative
and other corporate functions.

Chairman’s Statement
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

10

Talent development

The Group values its staff team, which brings a wide array
of specialist skills to various business units. Our team is
committed to helping clients thrive as we build a world-
class business that shares in our clients’ success. To attract
and retain top talent, we offer competitive compensation
packages, including a share option scheme and a share
award scheme as incentives and rewards for eligible
participants who contribute to the Group’s success.

Our capable management team has consistently met
unprecedented challenges with dedication and resolve. With
their strong leadership and crisis management capabilities,
we have navigated difficult operating terrain over the past
few years.

Localization is also a key focus for the long-term
development of our manufacturing locations, and we
have dedicated efforts to building up local leadership. The
encouraging performance of our operations in Vietnam and
Cambodia is a testament to the increasing maturity of our
local teams.

The independent non-executive directors (“INEDs”) of
our board (the “Board”) of directors play an important
role in the corporate governance of the Company. They
provide an external and independent view on our business
and governance matters. As part of our ongoing effort to
enhance corporate governance standards, we regularly
review our Board’s composition, specifically in terms
of director independence and diversity. This includes
appointing new INEDs and maintaining an appropriate
make-up of the Board.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023
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Resilience and sustainability

The past couple of years have seen major disruptive
events, including the pandemic, trade conflicts, and
geopolitical tensions. These events have called for new
levels of preparedness to address surging threats that
add to normal business risks. Our first line of defense is
to support the continuity of our operations and provision
of services for clients by constantly renewing our crisis
mechanisms at different operating levels. Recognizing
the potential for shocks from more profound market and
technological changes, we are also focused on building
resilience by enhancing our operations and updating our
value proposition.

In addition to business resilience, we are committed
to practicing sustainable manufacturing. This involves
implementing standard procedures and new initiatives
to reduce the carbon footprint of production while
following strict guidelines to ensure employee, product,
and community safety. These efforts are overseen by a
sustainability working group comprising our executive
directors, senior management, and heads of our production
centers. Importantly, we make conscious efforts to build
a culture throughout our organization that prioritizes
sustainability considerations in our business decisions.

The United Nations’ (UN) 2030 Agenda for Sustainable
Development is a commitment made by all to work together
towards the well-being of everyone on a healthy, thriving
planet. Unfortunately, this joint effort has been somewhat
sidetracked by the pandemic and other disruptive events
over the past few years, as we approach the halfway point
to 2030.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

As a corporate citizen, we believe that we are part of this
joint effort to put the world back on track towards a more
sustainable path. We understand that every single action
and progress counts, and we are committed to contributing
actively to the UN’s Sustainability Development Goals
(SDGs) based on our sustainability missions under the four
core areas of Planet, Progress, People, and Profits. As a
manufacturer, we find three SDGs particularly relevant to
Kingmaker:

Goal 5:
Gender Equality

Goal 8:

Decent Work and Economic Growth o '

Goal 12:
Responsible Consumption and Production o

We recognize the urgent need for action on global climate
change and other human well-being issues. Therefore,
we are committed to working hand-in-hand with our
stakeholders to achieve our sustainability targets and
contribute to these SDGs.

With commitment and collective action with our key
stakeholders, we will work towards “The Future We Want” in
these four directions:

Progress &%
Collaborate with
clients to pursue

Planet 3th3k

Manage and minimize
carbon footprint along
the value chain
EREERE LRE
o &SI B IR E &R

advancement through
innovation, application of
technologies and talent
empowerment
HMEREE RIBAIF
FERRRANIBE AL TE
K
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CONCLUDING REMARKS

Moving forward, we remain committed to delivering value to our
customers, shareholders, and employees. We will continue to
invest in our people and technical competence to ensure that we
remain competitive and innovative.

With a focus on enhancing our product and revenue portfolio
under an overall margin-accretive strategy, we prioritize value
over volume in business development. As such, we have been
pursuing business with strategic value that best utilizes our
capabilities in high-end products.

On a macroeconomic level, the outlook for the remainder of the
financial year 2024 continues to be uncertain due to the banking
sector stress, inflation and geopolitical tensions, despite some
improvements at the onset of 2023. On a more positive note, as
we witness some improvement on the retail end, with interest
rates increasing at a slower pace and some signs of inflation
easing, we are cautiously optimistic that our manufacturing
performance will improve in the second half of the coming
financial year as brand clients’ inventories return to healthier
levels.

Our Group will continue to maintain a healthy financial position,
which will enable us to weather challenging market conditions
and remain resilient, and also allows us to capitalize on new
opportunities as they arise.

Our team, facilities and skill sets are all in place and ready to
meet the demands of our customers. We believe that our solid
foundation will enable us to adapt to emerging trends and
economic cycles. We are confident in our ability to navigate the
challenges ahead and emerge stronger on the other side.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERS

APPRECIATION

I would like to express my deep appreciation to my fellow
directors, senior management and staff members, whose hard
work and commitment have been essential to our sustainable
development. | am proud to lead such a talented and passionate
team, and | am grateful for their contributions. We also value
our relationships with our business partners, clients and
shareholders. Thank you for your continued support and trust in
our Group.

By order of the Board
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Board is delighted to announce the annual results of the
Company for the Year.

The Group recorded a strong start in the Year, with the first-half
performance driven by a general recovery of the global footwear
retail sector after the lifting of pandemic restrictions. However, as
inflation and slowing US and European economies continued to
take a toll on retail demand, the Group’s order growth softened to
some extent during the second half of the Year.

B mA I
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B R AN

For footwear brands, the latter part of the Year was characterized
by elevated inventory levels as a result of downstream congestion
on the retail end. The inventory challenges across footwear
retailing have impacted branded clients’ procurement behaviour
and momentum, resulting in more conservative order placements
for the Group. To this end, the Group has worked closely with its
clients to help them manage this challenging task by adjusting
the shipment plans and schedules.

The Group concluded the Year with positive results, but will
stay alert to the geopolitical tensions, interest rate increases
and global inflation, which have added to the macroeconomic
uncertainty. The Group remains committed to safeguarding
its operations against the unprecedented challenges that lie
ahead, particularly given the low visibility in the current operating
environment.

Revenue

During the Year, revenue increased by 26.0% year on year to
approximately HK$1,062 million (2022: approximately HK$843
million) on a 7.9% increase in footwear business volume (pairs)
and a 16.0% improvement in the average selling price (“ASP”).
The ASP improvement was a result of the Group’s ongoing
business development strategy to prioritize value over volume
growth.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Gross Profit

The Group achieved year-on-year increase in gross profit to
approximately HK$90 million (2022: approximately HK$25 million)
for the Year. With continuous discipline to drive business-focused
cost optimization, the Group has kept its labor, administrative
and transportation costs in check. At the same time, the Group
has actively managed its clientele portfolio with a focus on
higher-margin products; the gross profit margin thus expanded
to approximately 8.4% (2022: approximately 3.0%), mainly
attributable to:

(i) economies of scale achieved as a result of the revenue
growth, which was mainly contributed by the improved
order book for the Year;

(i) higher ASP and shipment volume recorded, resulting in a
comparative improvement in the gross profit margin;

(i)  cost-mitigating measures and stabilized manufacturing
operations driving down cost-to-revenue ratios, including:

(@) direct wages, which shrank 1.1% to approximately
HK$185 million (2022: approximately HK$187 million)
on a slightly scaled back workforce in the southern
Vietnam production center, with proportionate direct
labor wages decreasing to 17.5% of revenue (2022:
22.2%);

(b) transportation costs; and
(iv)  non-recurrence of pandemic-induced expenses.
Meanwhile, there was an increase in material costs due to rising
prices of raw materials including leather and outsoles, as well

as the usage of more leather material for higher-value items and
increased R&D in support of new business development.
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Net Profit/Loss

The Group’s return to net profit was mainly attributable to
the improved performance of the manufacturing business in
particular during the first half of the Year. For the full Year, the
Group turned around to achieve a net profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately HK$53 million (2022:
net loss of approximately HK$18 million), taking into account:

(i)  the share of profit of associates of approximately HK$32.5
million (2022: approximately HK$32.8 million) contributed
by the Group’s associated company operating in central
Vietnam;

which was partially offset by:

(i)  the fair value loss of approximately HK$13.0 million for the
Year (2022: loss of HK$20.1 million) on revaluation of the
Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong and mainland
China.

Basic earnings per share attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the Year were approximately HK7.92 cents (2022:
loss of approximately HK2.69 cents).

Key Financial Ratios

The Group maintained healthy financial ratios during the Year:

Debtors’ turnover decreased to 60 days (2022: 88 days) for
the Year;

° Creditors’ turnover decreased to 86 days (2022: 100 days);

° Stock turnover was 109 days (2022: 141 days);

o A healthy liquidity position with net cash in hand of
approximately HK$393 million as at 31 March 2023 (2022:
approximately HK$290 million);
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Management Discussion and Analysis

° Zero gearing ratio (total bank borrowings to total equity)
(2022: 1.2%); and

° Current and quick ratios were 2.8 and 2.2 respectively
(2022: 2.5 and 1.8 respectively).

Final and Special Final Dividends

With dedicated efforts to prudently manage working capital, the
Company was able to maintain a stable financial position. In
view of this and to share results with shareholders, the Board
has resolved to declare a final dividend of HK2.0 cents (2022:
Nil) per ordinary share and a special final dividend of HKO0.2 cent
(2022: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share. Together with the interim
dividend of HK1.8 cents per ordinary share and special interim
dividend of HKO0.5 cent per ordinary share, this brings the total
dividends for the Year to HK4.5 cents (2022: HK4.0 cents) per
ordinary share.

The Board reviews its dividend policy from time to time, with
consideration given to the Group’s capital expenditure plans, the
operating environment, order book visibility and overall business
prospects.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

Macro Environment

For the footwear industry, major export markets saw a positive
start last year as COVID-19 restrictions began to relax. The
Group’s shipment increase during the first six months of the Year
reflected the broad-based demand growth in most consumer
markets over this period.

Entering the second half of the Year, the industry saw supplies
resuming progressively on the upstream side but weakened
sales on the downstream side, resulting in higher inventory levels
across major retail markets. Manufacturers were faced with
consequential procurement adjustments as brand owners sought
to navigate the inventory challenges.
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In addition, the pandemic-induced disruptions to manufacturing
have brought to light unforeseen vulnerabilities in operations
and logistics, while magnifying some pre-existing supply-chain
challenges, including shortage of skilled labor, rising production
costs and shortened order lead time coupled with reduced batch
sizes. On the macroeconomic level, the disruption and trade
tensions have stimulated an advocation for reshoring, which
has also called for manufacturers to reassess their supply chain
arrangements.

Manufacturing Business

Maintaining geographic diversity, the Group operates two core
manufacturing sites in southern Vietnam and Cambodia, both
equipped with R&D facilities. A small-scale R&D center is in
operation in Zhuhai, mainland China. In addition, the Group holds
a 40% interest in a joint-venture factory in central Vietnam.

As at the Year-end date, the Group had a combined production
scale of 26 processing lines, mostly under the concept-line
setup. They contributed an annual capacity of around 8 million
pairs of shoes, and were 73.5% utilized (2022: 78.0%).

In southern Vietnam, there were 12 concept lines and 4
traditional lines in operation. Coupled with the 10 concept lines
the Group had in Cambodia, this robust and multi-location
production platform enables the Group to provide capacity with
flexibility to meet clients’ sourcing plans in terms of country of
manufacture.

The geographical distribution of markets continued to be
demand-led, while at the same time, the Group supports clients’
initiatives to develop markets with promising prospects. Revenue
from the United States remained robust, generating 37.3%
(2022: 44.4%) of the Group’s revenue. Europe’s proportionate
contribution stood at 22.5% (2022: 24.3%), and shipments to
other markets, including Asia and other areas, accounted for
40.2% (2022: 31.3%).

20 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

s BB B REETE RE T EENY
MABIE P EOATERIAYSSRE > R INE T — & 55AT
FENMHEEIE  SENREHER EE
R Bk FT BRI G HAAERE - DU HE R B4R
ERHGEEERH B TENEREBHE TR
RECAALIIE  EEREHEMTEEMK
Jiikeegz i

REER

AEBENEERESRRRBELEMEZOEE
Eith > LRFZSTMIBEE > Mt 9 HmiT R
5 BIRAEREEE PN RERZER O I
Sy AEERAUNERPE—EEE RN
40%# & ©

RARFEHZRE AEEANESHEEREHL26
BREEG KBOANRKBREESR &HF
EEASEHBEER FHAXA735% (T
F178.0%) o

EE B A S E A 205\ R K E E AR R AR
BREER LI ERARBERB10MF/R
KEER - BEBBNZHMBEETSG  EEE

BEMIEMHAES  LUDSE R RBSENEME

mBtENHEBHERTE FIREETZE
ERRAASESHNMIG EEMIBHEERR
1L’¥T$$@M¥§EE@L37 3% (CB-_F:
44.4%) - MBUMH BN ERH22.56% (ZE2 2
F 1 24, 3%) %u&ﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ% (BRI R E st
&) B240.2% (ZZ 24 1 31.3%) ©



Management Discussion and Analysis

The rugged-shoe category delivered an impressive performance
during the Year, with shipment volume exceeding pre-pandemic
levels, contributing 73.7% (2022: 71.3%) of total revenue.
Despite the strong sales expansion of rugged shoes, the
proportionate contribution of premium casual footwear increased
to 15.4% (2022: 8.6%). Revenue generated by babies’ and
children’s footwear decreased proportionately to 10.9% (2022:
20.1%).

In line with its strategy to pursue value growth, the Group has
been more selective in terms of clientele portfolio management
and new business development. Major customers for the Year
included Cat, Chaco, Dr. Martens, Merrell and Wolverine; which
in aggregate contributed 95.3% (2022: 89.6%) of total revenue.
The Group has continued to actively develop business with
brands, including some emerging niche labels that offer growth
prospects.

Key developments in the Group’s production centers are
summarized below:

Southern Vietnam

The southern Vietnam manufacturing site holds a portfolio of
facilities in operation, premises ready for equipment installation,
and land for future expansion, which will enable the Group to
fulfill existing demand and ready it to capture future growth
opportunities.

This location remained a core manufacturing site for the Group.
It achieved a speedy recovery after the three-month COVID-19-
induced halt in 2021, and production has remained uninterrupted
throughout the Year. On the back of a robust order pipeline
during the Year, this location returned to high utilization with its
contribution to total volume output rebounding to 58.8% (2022:
55.0%).

Cambodia

With the support of local government authorities, the Group
has expanded its foothold in this major footwear manufacturing
country for the world.
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During the Year, the Cambodia site contributed 41.2% (2022:
45.0%) of total output in pairs. Benefiting from this location’s
further maturity in capacity and efficiency, both volume and
value growth were achieved. Supported by clients’ order plans,
production lines in Cambodia is well on schedule to develop into
a more important contributor for the Group.

Mainland China

A R&D center was maintained in Zhuhai, mainland China, staffed
by a lean workforce to cater to the development requirements
of some clients. The Group will continue to monitor this center’s
utilization and proactively consider adjustments to its R&D
offerings as deemed appropriate.

With the exception of the R&D center, the Zhuhai plant was
leased out and continued to generate a stable stream of recurrent
rental income for the Group. The Board will keep a close watch
on the local business environment, and will work with the tenant
to respond to property market trends.

Investments in associates

The Group holds a 40% interest in an associated company
jointly owned with Evervan Group (“Evervan”) in central
Vietnam. Evervan is a leading athletic footwear manufacturer for
international markets.

Investments made over the past few years have given this
site a solid capacity to meet more sophisticated production
requirements. As at the Year-end date, the associated company
operated a total of 29 production lines, which were designated
for world-leading footwear brands Crocs and Columbia.

The associated company recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$957 million (2022: approximately HK$895 million) during the
Year, a growth of 6.9% year on year. It contributed to the Group
a share of profit of associates of approximately HK$32.5 million
(2022: approximately HK$32.8 million).
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As uncertainty in the macroeconomic environment persists, the
associated company will take a more cautious stance towards
capacity management and business development in the coming
financial year. Nevertheless, given the strong background and
expertise of Evervan, the Board is confident of the long-term
prospects of this joint-venture operation.

Investment Properties

Depending on the Group’s business needs and capacity
planning, certain self-owned factories and office properties may
not be fully utilized at times. The Board regularly considers these
properties’ sales or leasing options and potential in order to
create returns on these assets. This will help the Group make
good use of idle properties, realize the investment value of
its assets, and generate additional stable income to enhance
working capital.

During the Year, the portfolio of assets classified as investment
properties was all leased out, yielding gross rental income of
approximately HK$28.2 million (2022: approximately HK$24.8
million).

The Board considers that the portfolio is currently generating a
steady stream of recurrent income. Considering the current property
market conditions in mainland China, the Group has responded to
local authorities’ recommendations by offering more flexible rental
payment arrangements for tenants during the challenging times
of the pandemic. The Group understands that this is a temporary
measure and will continue to monitor the market situation closely.

The Board is satisfied with the overall rental performance of its
investment asset portfolio. It will regularly review this asset base
and examine options available with a view to creating greater
long-term value for shareholders.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group generally finances its operation by internally generated
cashflow and banking facilities provided by its bankers.

Prudent financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$393 million (2022: approximately
HK$304 million) and total bank borrowings of Nil (2022: HK$15
million). The Group’s gearing ratio (total bank borrowings to total
equity) was Nil (2022: 1.2%). As at 31 March 2023, the Group
had net cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$393
million (2022: approximately HK$290 million).

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had available banking facilities
amounted to approximately HK$40 million (2022: approximately
HK$55 million) of which Nil (2022: HK$15 million) was utilized.

For the year ended 31 March 2023, the current ratio was
approximately 2.8 (2022: approximately 2.5) based on current
assets of approximately HK$771 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$272 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 2.2 (2022: approximately 1.8).

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having
considered the major expansion plans of the Group, including
Viethnam and Cambodia in the next two to three years, the
Directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity
to meet its current and future working capital requirements on its
operations and expansion.
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Foreign Exchange Risk Management

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and
expenditure are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the
Renminbi, the Vietnamese Dong and the US dollars. It is the
Group’s policy to adopt a conservative approach on foreign
exchange exposure management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the Hong
Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate or the Secured Overnight Financing
Rate.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from the
Group’s global operations and to minimise the Group’s financial
risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group cautiously
uses derivatives financial instruments, principally forward
currency contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes
only, for hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s
receivables and payables.

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose
from the net cash flows and the net working capital translation
of its PRC and Vietnam subsidiaries. The management of the
Group will actively hedge the foreign currency exposures through
natural hedges, forward contracts and options, if consider
necessary. The management of currency risk is centralised in the
headquarter of the Group in Hong Kong.

Capital Structure

The Group is substantially debt free. Shareholders’ equity
decreased to approximately HK$1,205 million as at 31 March
2023 (2022: approximately HK$1,211 million).

B mA I

SMEE R PR E IR

rEBRBozEERB R RKD BB LS
AR - BEERETE-RARTHE
EIEIMNE R AERE 2 BR

A AEBEREESZEEIINERRRTHR
o LR S F E KA P - A EE—iY
UREERKREBIRITAAREZRITHEFR
EEMBEL -BENEXREBROTEAXRFEXR
HEFRBERBENREE

AEBZMBERRSEREAERIRKERF
WRZIMEER R ZZE UG TERZY
HBREEERE ~EERXB-RERBTIRZIE
Mo BEERTTEESRMIAE TEREREKS
N (NER) ZIERREEZRA) MEHHARZ &
EEAEEBUIREREMREZA

AEBEBZIERBREEZREEPERERE
MEBARZETREFAKREEES FRIKR
H-AEEEEERRBEBERY T -BRE
MBI I (M) HPINER K - BT AR
ETHRAEEZEBREEE

IRAIR1E

AEBEALTTEEE REEZTHRE_Z
—_=F=HA=+—H%1,205,000,000 7T (Z=
T4 #91,211,000,00037T) ©

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 25



Management Discussion and Analysis

B R AN

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed Securities

During the Year, the Company repurchased 1,446,000 of its
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the Stock Exchange at
an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$1,554,000
excluding transaction cost and cancelled the repurchased
shares subsequent to the year end date. The repurchase of
the Company’s shares during the Year was effected by the
Board, pursuant to the repurchase mandate granted by the
shareholders, with a view to benefit shareholders as a whole by
enhancing the net asset value per share and earnings per share
of the Company.

Details of the shares repurchase during the Year are as follows:
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Aggregate

consideration

Number (excluding

of shares Highest price Lowest price transaction

Month/Year repurchased per share per share cost)
BRE

(FaiE

%,/8 BRZRHO#E skEsE ERREE RBRE)
HK$ HK$ HK$’000

AT BT THT

April 2022 — &~ —&£UAH 1,336,000 1.11 1.03 1,449
August 2022 —_E " "F)\A 110,000 0.96 0.95 105
Total 485+ 1,446,000 1,554

The premium paid on the repurchase of the shares of
approximately HK$1,409,000 has been debited to the share
premium account. An amount equivalent to the par value of the
shares cancelled has been transferred from the retained profits of
the Company to the capital redemption reserve.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the Year.

26 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BEEIRMDEFEN ZEE41,409,0008 T E B K
D BRINE - K AT NERFBER S THRND
HEZ®HEBAASRE & ERERRAIED
Ei=R

B EXFIRBES AADAREARBEATES
FERMABE WEL L EAARZEM LD
EH o



Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia, employed approximately 6,700
employees as at 31 March 2023. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels and
the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options and awarded shares may also be
granted in accordance to the terms of the Group’s approved
share option scheme and share award scheme, respectively.

During the Year, the trustee of the Company’s share award
scheme adopted on 26 June 2019 (the “Share Award Scheme”)
did not purchase any shares on the market. 5,890,000 shares
have been awarded under the Share Award Scheme during the
Year.

During the Year, the Company granted 3,000,000 share options
to certain Directors and employees of the Group in accordance
with the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 26 August
2022 (the “Share Option Scheme”).

Details of the Share Award Scheme and the Share Option
Scheme will be included in the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2023.
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ABOUT THE ESG REPORT

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together
with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) is delighted to present its
Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the
“ESG Report”). This ESG Report herein focuses on providing an
overview of the environmental and social aspects of the Group
for the financial year from 1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023 (the
“Reporting Period”), and outlines how we seek to continually
improve our operational strategy in regard to our environment
and society in order to cope with the global standards of
sustainability.

In the course of preparing the ESG Report, the Group conducted
a thorough review and assessment towards its existing
environmental and social policies with aims to achieve better
performance in aspects of the environment, social, corporate
governance and operation in the future and make more
contributions to the communities where it operates.

ESG Report Scope and Boundary

The Group is a large-scale shoe-manufacturing company,
designated as an original shoe manufacturer for internationally
renowned brands as our core business. The scope of the ESG
Report covers the environmental and social performance of
manufacturing factories located in Viethnam and Cambodia. There
is no change in the reporting scope or boundary covered in this
ESG report from the previous year.

The ESG Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide (the “Guide”) as set out in Appendix 27 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) (the “Listing Rules”)
and complies with all provisions of “comply or explain” and
“mandatory disclosure”. In response to the latest revisions
effective for the financial year commencing on or after 1 July
2020, our reporting framework was enhanced to address all
newly introduced reporting requirements.
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The Group has prepared the ESG Report with the following REBDRBETIREFEAHFRESGER S ©

reporting principles.

'
VI
el
I

Governance Structure

The Group identified the materiality of ESG topics by stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment. The details are explained in the section headed “Materiality
Assessment”.

REEEBEBRFNESEREEM T EHAESCGERENEE L -ARFBEEEE

M eT ) — B ERER

The Group disclosed the information of the standards, methodologies and source
of emission factors specified in the HKEX Guide for computing the relevant

Key Performance Indicators (‘“KPIs”) used for the reporting of environmental
performance.

REECKRBEHMIESI P EANRSRRRIFNEMBERERIER (MRS
BIEIR)) IRE S BRI E =R B K

The methodology adopted for disclosing the environmental and social KPIs is
consistent with that of the previous reporting period, unless otherwise stated in the
relevant sessions.

BRERERAARPAEIN KBIRE KL GARENIERMEAN A EE E—RE
HAf— 3o

The ESG Report provides an unbiased picture of the Group’s performance and has
no false representations, misleading statements or material omissions.
ESGHREAIE R T AEBEMNRIT > B SRR REMRIMHEBRER

Feedback and Authorization

EREE
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S
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ESG Working Group
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Feedback [« §& i T Reporting FE#R

Vietham & Cambodia Responsible Units
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The Group recognises that a robust ESG governance structure
is the crux of fostering a sustainable business operation. The
Board has oversight of ESG strategies, management approaches
and evaluates all ESG issues in the annual risk assessment.
They are also responsible for formulating long-term sustainability
direction along our business chain, as well as reviewing the
progress and achievement against ESG objectives and targets,
and thus providing strategic guidance on ESG-related issues. The
responsibility of detailed considerations and implementation of
ESG strategies has been delegated to the ESG Working Group
(the “ESG Working Group”). The annual ESG report submitted
by the ESG Working Group would be approved by the Board to
evaluate the effectiveness of ESG management in building up our
resilience in respect of ESG-related risks.

The ESG Working Group comprises Executive Directors and
senior management staffs who have sound knowledge of current
and emerging ESG matters, as well as the Group’s operations.
The responsibility of the ESG Working Group is to assist in 1)
identifying, reviewing and analysing the significant ESG risks and
opportunities in operational strategy and risk management with
associated impacts on the Group, 2) establishing ESG goals
and objectives with actions plans in line with the determined
ESG strategies, 3) monitoring the current market trends and
development, industry practices, and norms in respect of ESG
related issues, and 4) performing stakeholder engagement and
materiality assessment. The ESG Working Group carries out
performance reviews and reports the progress and achievements
of the Group’s ESG objectives to the Board on a regular basis.

The responsible units are responsible for implementing the ESG-
related action plans determined by the ESG Working Group in
daily operations, supporting stakeholder engagement activities
and coordinating the data collection for the preparation of
the ESG Report and monitoring performance progress and
achievements against the determined objectives and initiatives.
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OUR STAKEHOLDERS

As stakeholders play crucial roles in sustaining the success of
our business, the Group fully utilizes various communication
channels to understand and engage our stakeholders. The
probable points of concern of our stakeholders and our channels

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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IRV nE

of communication and responses are listed below.

Stakeholders
Fina

HKEX
Bk S P

Governments

B

Investors

REE

Media & Public
BRERAR

Suppliers
HEm

Probable Points of Concern

A AERRERS

Compliance with the Listing
Rules, and timely and accurate
announcements.

B EHRAD REEEMTIEA

=
= °

Compliance with laws and
regulations, preventing tax
evasion, and social welfare.

BT EARERRA RN R EE
AT

Corporate governance, business
strategies and performance, and
investment returns.

TEEB EBRRERE UK
EEEY

Corporate governance,
environmental protection, and
human right.

TEEBR - RERRAE.

Payment schedule, and stable
demand.

REERRRERK

HRFENEERMAFEESR YT ENRER
At AEEEAERREEBREARNER
TR HIFIF (D& P SERI R LR
IR B RO ERES RN T -

Communication and Responses

38 B0 fE

Meetings, training, workshops,
programs, website updates, and
announcements.

G B TR 5181 - UL =
JoUNEE

Interaction and visits, government
inspections, tax returns and other
information.

B#RFFD  BFRE iR B R &
HME K -

Briefing sessions and seminars,
interviews, shareholders’
meetings, issue of financial
reports or operation reports for
investors, media and analysts.

B RE R E sk REK
E-RREE -ERROTEREM
MBREHEERS

Newsletters on the Company’s
website, if appropriate.
B E R AR B 48k 32 R o

Site visits.

BhEFEsS o
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

&

Customers

'R

Employees

B&

Community

tE

FJ AE R 7k Rb

Service quality, service delivery
schedule, reasonable prices,
service value, and personal data
protection.

IR E = RIFIEME - SIEE
BRBEEREABERE

Rights and benefits of employees,
compensation, training and
development, work hours, and
working environment.

B BRI R K AR ~ f 18 ~ 1535/l B 3%
B~ TIFR 8k TRIRIR -

Community environment,
employment opportunities,
community development, and
social welfare.

HEBIRE -EBEKE HEZERERT
&R o
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BB RO R

After-sales services.

EBRE -

Union activities, training, interviews
with employees, internal memos,
and employee suggestion boxes.

TEEH BI-EEFH > NEHE
ShkEERREMEC

Community activities, employee
voluntary activities, community
welfare subsidies and donations.
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

The Group has identified ESG issues that have a potential or
actual impact on its sustainable development from various
sources, such as issues identified in previous ESG reports,
internal policies, industry trends, and the Sustainability
Accounting Standards Board’s Materiality Map. The ESG issues
have been analyzed with reference to an array of factors,

IR T ERERRS

BTG
AEBERZERRHANGHIFELERAA
BENERTENESGEIR AT BEESGHR
EHRHEANEER REBR TEBE RS
ZREAENZEENEENTEE AEED
HESGREETON WKSE—RIER &
BAEENBERE ERURBHNKRER &

including the Group’s overall strategy, development, and goals EECETEEMTGE UG EEERRFN
and targets. The Group has conducted a materiality assessment EMEFEANEHPESGEEREZENEERE
to rate the identified ESG issues that are pertinent to its business ESGEENELXFUWT :
and stakeholders, and their respective levels of impact. The ESG
issues have been prioritized as follows:
High —
(12]
©.%
0 ® O
g@m
o
S [16]
55 @
Q=
S
£
(4]
09
®
00
(15)
Low
=
Low Impact on Businesses High
= HEBNEE =
Environmental Issues Social Issues
IRIREIR ===
1. Emissions ki 9. Employment 12 {&
2. Hazardous Waste B ZEEY) 10.  Health and Safety #E & %2
3. Non-hazardous Waste FEZEEEY) 11.  Development and Training 3% /& & 153l
4.  Energy Consumption SR H #E 12.  Labor Standards % T %8I
5.  Water Consumption Fi/K& 13.  Supply Chain Management fi & $i& & 12
6. Packaging Materials S &7k} 14.  Product Responsibility = fm & 1
7. Environment and Natural Resources 215 K& B AL R 15.  Anti-corruption R &35
8. Climate Change ®f&&1E 16.  Community Investment 1t &8 &
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OVERVIEW

With over four decades of operations, the Group produces
high-end footwear for famous brands including Cat, Chaco, Dr.
Martens, Merrell and Wolverine. Our manufacturing factories are
located in Vietnam and Cambodia, while our offices are located
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), Taiwan, and Hong
Kong. Being one of the major footwear manufacturing groups
in Asia, we recognize our corporate duties and obligations
to protect the environment. As such, we have integrated
sustainability into our day-to-day operations by implementing
various measures to reduce carbon footprints and mitigate
undesirable impacts on our environment.
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PART A. SOCIAL

Key performance

ud

IR T ERERRS

AZRSY. 1t E
RISRARY

No Child Labor
EET

Diverse Occupational
Training

Z T bR

Employment and Labor Practices

The management believes that the employees are one of
the most valuable assets of our group and considers human
resource management as an integral part of our overall business
strategy. Therefore, getting the right person for the right job by
understanding employees’ personality traits and unique talents
is the cornerstone of the Group’s success. As such, we offer
attractive remuneration and provide many internal and external
training opportunities to attract, motivate and retain the right
people.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied with all
laws and regulations in relation to employment that have a
significant impact on us. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group in relation to employment
aspects.

Community Donation

Strict compliance

&R of law
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Employment

The Group strictly complies with the requirements of the Labor
Law Code in Vietnam and Cambodia, as well as other relevant
laws and regulations related to employment protection and
benefits, including but not limited to the Social Insurance Law in
Vietnam, the Medical Insurance Law in Vietnam, the Syndical Law
in Vietnam, the Law on Social Security Schemes in Cambodia,
the Trade Union Law in Cambodia, and the Law on the Protection
and Promotion of the Rights of Persons with Disabilities in
Cambodia.

The Group has established personnel policies and procedures
that set out its standard internal procedures relating to
recruitment and promotion, working hours, holidays, equal
opportunities, compensation and dismissal, employee diversity,
anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits, etc., to provide standardized and comprehensive
guidelines on work practices for employees. For anti-
discrimination, the Group has established a procedural policy
prohibiting discrimination, harassment and retaliation, along with
a complaint and resolution process. Moreover, the Group has
set specific policies and practices that protect female rights,
and reinforce feminist social and political rights through training
courses.

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, approximately 6,300
employees (2022: approximately 7,000 employees) were
employed during the Reporting Period. The Group welcomes
industrial experts to join our team, add value to our pool of
professional expertise in the industry, and bring in innovative
ideas. In terms of gender diversity, the majority of the Group’s
employees in Vietnam and Cambodia are female. The Group
highly appreciates the women workforce to support our
daily operation and strives to empower women in the local
communities in which we operate.
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The statistics of our workforce by region, gender, age group PIRS AR MRt E 5 - FE 4R 2R
and employment type during the Reporting Period are shown as ARSI HRTERENT -
follows:

2022/23

ZEZZ =&

Total workforce BT 6,300

Breakdown by gender %% R 8 93 B9 BB 4

Male B4 1,300

Female pegs 5,000
Breakdown by age group HEBERE 5 rYER 4R

<25 <25 1,200

25-29 25-29 1,100

30-39 30-39 2,300

40-49 40-49 1,400

> 50 > 50 300
Breakdown by employment type HEFEHEIE SRR

Full time S 6,300

Breakdown by region ¥ ith & 21 53 B ER 4H
Vietnam HiE 3,100
Cambodia RIHFE 3,200
Workforce by gender Workforce by age group Workforce by region
BRSNS EIS ERENBI DS E N Bit& 8 S EN S
51% 49%
& 37% '
7 Male B Female %4 M<2s 25-29 [l 30-39 ™ Vietnam #rg Cambodia SRIHZFE

7 40-49 >50
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The statistics of our employee turnover rate by region, gender,
age group and employment type during the Reporting Period are
shown as follows:

RG> JARME 45 - FEAER KR E
BRABDNESERKERMABBNT

2022/23
—E-_ /"=

Total turnover rate HWME T REKE 10%
Turnover rate by gender EERNSSHNE T REAE
Male Bt 16%
Female i 8%
Turnover rate by age group BERENISHNETIRAR
<25 <25 16%
25-29 25-29 11%
30-39 30-39 9%
40-49 40-49 6%
> 50 > 50 4%
Turnover rate by employment type REFEREISHNEIREE
Full time el 10%
Turnover rate by region BMEE SN ETIREX
Vietnam ieg=) 12%
Cambodia HIEE 7%

Attract and retain talents

The remuneration policies of the Group are in line with
prevailing market practices and are determined on the basis
of competency, qualifications and experience of the individual
employees. Management of the Group constantly reviews its
employees’ remuneration packages and promotion opportunities.
Adjustments are made, usually annually, to conform to the
market standard in order to retain talents and ensure the offer is
competitive as compared to the rivals in the industry. A standard
remuneration package includes basic salary and variable
incentive-based remunerations which are distributed according
to individual employee performance. Share options and awarded
shares may also be granted in accordance with the terms of
the Group’s approved share option scheme and share award
scheme.
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Moreover, a labor union has been established to protect the
interests of our employees. To better understand the concerns
of workers, meetings between management and the labor union
are held on a quarterly basis. It acts as a channel of regular
and constructive communication between the Group and its
employees to have an open discussion about employee welfare
and employment conditions.

Anti-discrimination and equal opportunities

The Group is committed to building a diverse and inclusive
working environment. The Group ensures that no interviewee
or employee will be discriminated against or deprived of
opportunities due to gender, ethnic background, religious belief,
color, sexual orientation, age, marital status or family status in
respect of recruitment and promotion. Any kind of discrimination
or harassment based on the employees’ gender, age, marital
status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace is
strictly prohibited.

The Group always listens and responds to the requests from our
employees. It is the goal of the Group to create a friendly and
peaceful working environment. We encourage our employees to
provide feedback in relation to any employment-related matters,
especially when they encounter any unpleasant or undesired
treatment from colleagues or senior management. Employees
may lodge their complaints in writing and place them in the
suggestion box at the office building. The Human Resources
Department is responsible for handling all cases and conducting
investigations. If any unfair treatment and harassment are found
and confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in writing to the
employee who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or
her depending on the seriousness of the incident.
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Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, the Group offers
various welfare and benefits to our employees. For instance,
employees are entitled to an extra number of days of paid leave
according to their job level, in addition to all public holidays and
the minimum number of days of paid leave in accordance with
the Labor Laws in Vietnam and Cambodia.

Moreover, the Group conducts a series of team-building activities
every year to promote our Group’s corporate culture among
employees. However, due to the Coronavirus disease 2019
(“COVID-19"), large-scale company activities were not organized.

As most of our employees are female, the Group does its best to
ensure its female staff are feeling comfortable and happy while
working with us. The Group offers a wide range of activities
including training related to reproductive health care, health care
of women, health and welfare of pregnant women and many
more health-related topics to its employees. However, due to
COVID-19, large-scale training activities were not organized.

In addition, 6 months of paid maternity leave are offered to all
pregnant employees of our Vietnam factory to ensure that their
job positions are available when they return from their maternity
leave. As stipulated in our staff handbook, the Group offers full
support and care to its pregnant staff. At the Vietnam office
and factory, labels are provided to pregnant workers in order to
remind other staff to provide special assistance when needed.
Last but not least, employees who have children aged between 1
and 6 years old are entitled to subsidies if they are living in Binh
Duong Province in Vietnam.
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Health and Safety

Employee’s health and safety is of utmost importance to the
Group. During the Reporting Period, the Group has complied
with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to safety, as
well as hygiene and health. The laws and regulations include
but are not limited to the Labor Safety and Health Law in
Vietnam, the Medical Insurance Law in Vietnam. The Group
aims to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between
work and a healthy lifestyle. To prevent our employees working
in manufacturing factories from occupational hazards, the
Group has established “Occupational Safety and Health Policy”,

» o«

“Chemical Safety Policy”, “Personal Protective Equipment Policy”,

“Accident Investigation Procedure”, “Emergency Response Policy
and Procedure”, and “Risk Assessment Policy” that cover labor
safety and health. The policies clearly detail all the appropriate
practices and requirements related to employee health and safety
so that the safety of our employees is protected. For instance,
workers are required to wear earplugs during trimming and wear
gloves during gluing. When using dusting machines, workers are

required to wear masks.

The Group has also established a “Health and Safety Control
Procedure” in line with 1SO14001 and OHSAS 18001
international standards, with an aim to provide a safe and
hazard-free working environment, prevent and mitigate the safety
risks exposure of our employees. The Procedure clearly lists out
the corresponding responsibilities of environmental and safety
management representatives, department heads, management
level etc., to allocate the tasks of promoting, monitoring and
implementing relevant safety policy. In addition to establishing
a robust environmental management structure, the Group also
conducts a series of health and safety training for our employees
in orientation or on a regular basis, so that it can be ensured all
employees are aware of potential occupational accidents and
risks in the manufacturing factories. The training topics include
hazardous chemicals, first-aid and other Occupational Safety and
Health-related topics. However, due to COVID-19, large-scale
training activities were not organized.

IR T ERERRS

REARE

EERRAZE2HNAEEAMSEMEZ - NRE
W *EECETAERZE  BERBERFR
ERERER ZFEAREREBEETRIE
MEHLE2HEEREEBRERIE L AEEES
EREERHMZERERNIFRR TREE
THIFREREEZHNZEEIE T /L
ARETIMIFNEEERHELSS FEEE
RIHBEH T2 RBENHEXZ 2 BERH
R MERMBEER) ~ MEABEEFEER]
EHRERF)  [BERERBERNER KA
BT MR - XS BRI L BB ERE K
Z2BEANFTAEBENERER URERES
Lz -flal TABEESRKMBEEZEURE
MERE LFE-EEMAKRESK TATERM
HOS-

EETEREINEIS014001 KOHSAS 18001
B EENTRERZZESER > EERER
2ELBHRNITFRIE BHRAKEE@EBRNE
2RAE -REFERIIGIRIELEEIEMAR M
FE - BEBSNEERS UNEEMZTEK
RHHE EESREMIE-BEILIBE2NIRE
BEEBIN AEBNTEEOREHHESET—
Y| EERZ2EN URRMEEE T HR R
BETIRNEBETRESHRER - BIIETBECIEDT
FEBR SR EEMBELT2EEEAERE
%o SR > FRCOVID-19 5 SRAEAB B A BV 3II5E
&f o

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 41



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

IR (1B RERRS

Moreover, a safety audit is conducted for annual inspections to
make sure that all our machines and fire alarms are functioning
well. Any machinery defects and malfunctions would be
immediately reported to the Maintenance Department for repair
and maintenance. The safety audit is followed by working
environment monitoring and safety risk assessment, in which
existing dangerous sources of toxic gases, noise, high falling,
explosives, etc. are identified. The goal is to evaluate the risk
level of the working environment and implement appropriate
measures to eliminate the identified risks correspondingly.

The Group’s health and safety policies and procedures are
summarized as follows:

s ZPIGFEHEETLRE2E L UHEFREM
BT A 1 83 R N BB 1T E 1T R 4T o (R I M ER IE
R IRV RS G R EBPIETHEE KRR
BoRe2ERZBDIERESEINKRZ2 AR
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W E iR - BTG TRIRIG R AR KT
F A8 FE B i 4 2 BYFE e M B B SR B! B LR ©

FEERRAZEHRKEFHLNT

Establish Environmental Management Structure

BIIRIREERE

Health and Safety Training

fERE R 2

Safety Audit
ZEEZ

4

4
4

Environmental Monitoring

IRIGES A

Safe Factor Identification and Risk Assessment

LRERE M KRR
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The Group has carried out the following actions in order to create AREBDHRBRUTTE UAHEESRIS TR
and maintain a good, comfortable, safe and healthy working B -8 Z2hERNIFRE:
environment for its employees:

e  Establish a Health, Safety, Environment (“HSE”) team to o EBURRE -Z2KIRIE (THSE)) BEEHT

conduct random checks on workers to ensure that they are NETEEBE BRESFHSENT
wearing proper work gear; RS

e Keep all emergency exits in the workplace unobstructed; o FEIESPMAMBERESHOGIEENE;

e Provide sufficient light in the workplace; o RIEGFRIRMHTERAA ;

e Ensure that all devices, machines and equipment are safe; e MWRAMAXRE WREREEZS;

e Carry out regular repair and maintenance work on all o  HWI(EBMBIMARERILISETEIE
devices and machines used in the workplace; BRFRE;

e Maintain a high standard of hygiene in the workspace; o  HEIEGHMERSEENESE ;

e Prohibit smoking in the workplace; and o BIMNTIESPMARE; &

e Conduct regular safety inspections and fire drills. o THIETZEWERNEER-

During the Reporting Period and the past three reporting periods, RHREABMRBE=ZEARSHAE AEE T EE

the Group did not have any work-related fatalities. The statistics FRIFECEHR - NEERBREHABNAE =
of work-related injuries and lost day results during the past three WREPEN TERBARERERNOT
reporting periods, including this Reporting Period, are shown as

follows:
2020/21 2021/22 2022/23
_E_E /& “E”_—/""F “B__/"Z=&
Number of injuries TE%E 91 37 51
Lost days BEEH 263 120 182

During the Reporting Period, there were 51 work-related injuries, RSB BESITIEEH MBEREED
which the employees concerned have been compensated for EXAERBEHEFRENHERFRE -RITEELXT
and covered by the Group’s medical insurance. The number EFHEI2H AEBEEXR BEREENZ 2
of working days lost due to work-related injury was 182 days. FOWMB IR ELNERTERAREAEREREY
The Group continues to reflect on its existing safety policies ExEliikd

and is committed to continuously adapting and improving its

occupational safety measures as would be necessary.
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The Group has implemented various measures to ensure
employees’ health and safety. For each work-related injury, an
incident investigation report was prepared and evaluated, a
corrective action plan was also prepared with a target date to
complete the rectification at the first opportunity. In response
to the incidents, the Group held a special meeting and training
workshop to enhance employees’ awareness on personal
protection and work safety. Moreover, the HSE team would
undergo more frequent inspections on-site to alert the employees
of occupational safety and underlying risks in the workplace.

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has
developed guidelines on the prevention of COVID-19 and work
arrangements for offices and factories. The guidelines help to
reduce the risk of mass infection in the workplace. The Group’s
preventative measures and hygienic guidelines in response to
COVID-19 are shown as follows:

o Encouraging employees feeling unwell to take sick leave
and caring for their wellbeing;

° Cleaning shared vehicles regularly;

o Maintaining a high standard of hygiene in the workspace;
and

° Advising employees who have respiratory symptoms to
leave and seek medical advice promptly.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on its financial performance, closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 pandemic and the exposure to the
risks and uncertainties in this connection. The Group will take
appropriate measures as necessary.
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Development and Training

The Group believes that the skills and experience of employees
are critical to the long-term development of the Group. The
Group offers opportunities that foster our employees’ leadership
skills and professional development, and in turn, promote job
satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. An annual training
schedule is in place to ensure our employees are offered training
during the Reporting Period in order to keep them updated
with information, knowledge and skills required at work. All
new joiners received induction training on their first day of
employment.

The Group’s professional training programs cover a wide range
of specialties. The training categories include human rights
safety and skills applicable to work, etc. Employees are also
encouraged to attend external training courses and seminars
that can help them gain practical knowledge in the fast-changing
business world. Any fees incurred for the courses or seminars
are sponsored by the Group. During the Reporting Period,
the Group has conducted training for its employees in relation
to occupational safety and health, disease prevention, legal
compliance and first-aid.

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, no training was conducted
in Vietnam during the Reporting Period to comply with the
government rules and protect the health and safety of our
employees. The Group will schedule more training hours in late
2023 for our employees to ensure they gain adequate knowledge
and skKills required at work.
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The percentage of employees trained and average training hours RESHE RN REERNBDNZIINEES
by gender and employee category during the Reporting Period Bt R B g T
are shown as follows:

—E-C- /"=f&

Percentage of employees trained by gender #1452 73 89 ZI1ES B 5 L
Male 5% % 26.3
Female %1% % 73.7

Percentage of employees trained by employee category #1ES 558/ 5 B9 =3 1ES 55 L

Management staff &2 A & % 1.2
Senior staff &/E & T % 9.6
Junior staff 2E & T % 89.2

Average training hours by gender %14 5|25 B9 F 155 3/ 5 8¢
Male 3 1% Hours RFEL 2.1
Female Z M Hours BFEL 1.0

Average training hours by employee category %1€ 5 13 5|2/ 53 B9 -F 149 = 3| b 2

Management staff &2 A & Hours FF & 0.9
Senior staff /@ & T Hours BF#L 1.4
Junior staff 2B &8 T Hours BF#L 1.2
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Labor Standards

The Group is committed to complying with the labor laws and
regulations in Vietham and Cambodia, as well as the relevant
international human rights conventions relating to employees’
protection and prevention of child or forced labor. Every
employment of the Group is subject to a stringent internal review
process that involves a well-established monitoring procedure
for verifying a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and any form of child labor. For instance,
the staff member responsible for recruitment collects the
identity proof from the candidates to ensure that the age of the
candidates fulfils the requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labor is strictly prohibited.
In Cambodia and Vietnam, the Labor Law allows the younger
generation aged 15 or above to work. As such, the Group has
established a policy for young employees (15 to 18 years old) to
provide additional guidance on the arrangement of welfare and
work allocations. The Group strictly follows the relevant laws and
regulations, and provides adequate protection for our employees.
Employees’ rest time is well respected by the Group, and any
arrangement of overtime work must be agreed by the employees
voluntarily in advance, in order to prevent forced overtime work.

If any employment of child or forced labor is discovered, the
Group will immediately terminate the employment concerned.
During the Reporting Period, all employees were legally and
properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No incident of illegal child labor
or forced labor was recorded.
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OPERATING PRACTICES
Supply Chain Management

The Group understands that supply chain management has an
inseparable relationship with its sustainable development, and is
therefore committed to establishing a long-term and harmonious
cooperation relationship with its suppliers. The Group expects its
suppliers to uphold the principles of integrity and pragmatism,
and provide products and services in strict compliance with the
requirements of applicable laws and regulations concerning both
environmental and social aspects.

Although most of the suppliers are designated by our customers,
the Group has an internal mechanism to assess and evaluate
our suppliers in order to control the quality of our materials.
The Group evaluates all potential suppliers’ backgrounds,
qualifications, expertise, experience, financial status, and
professionalism, etc. Moreover, social and environmental aspects
are also important criteria for supplier selection. To promote
environmentally preferable products in the industry, the Group
will not select suppliers with poor environmental performance
or reputation. All approved suppliers are reviewed regularly to
ensure the quality of the services and products purchased is up
to standard.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 399 main
suppliers. The number of suppliers by geographical region during

the Reporting Period is shown as follows:
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Product Responsibility

Providing safe, quality and reliable products to our customers
is one of the core values of the Group, and it has a strong
commitment to attain high quality standards in our manufacturing
process. During the Reporting Period, the Group has strictly
complied with the laws and regulations in regard to product
responsibility in the PRC, Vietham, Cambodia, Korea, Taiwan and
Hong Kong that have a significant impact on our businesses,
including but not limited to, Law of the PRC on the Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests, the Civil Code of the PRC, the
Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, the Sale of Goods
Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Law on Protection of Consumer
Rights in Vietnam. During the Reporting Period, the Group did
not recall any sold or delivered products for safety or health
reasons.

The Group’s primary focus is to provide high quality services and
products to our customers. In order to build customer trust and
loyalty, the Group has established relevant policies which cover
product and service quality. The Group has a product quality
inspection team that monitors product quality. The Group’s
production processes, including manufacturing, packaging,
labelling, etc., are subject to the product quality inspection
team’s monitoring and auditing. Products and materials must
go through sampling tests to ensure the quality of products
meets our customers’ expectations. The Group also welcomes
customer’s own quality control teams to visit our factories to
conduct quality inspections.

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not make any
advertisements relating to products and services provided. If the
Group makes any advertisements, we will adhere to all relevant
laws and regulations to ensure that we do not convey false or
misleading messages in relation to our products.
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Complaints and Feedback Mechanism

The Group has established a “Customer Feedback and
Complaint Policy and Procedure” to ensure that customers’
feedback and complaints are addressed efficiently. Customers
may lodge a formal complaint to the Group through email,
phone call or letter. When a complaint is received, the manager
from the responsible department relevant to the complaint shall
conduct an internal investigation, propose suitable solutions to
the customers and finally initiate internal corrective actions that
must be completed within a proposed timeframe. All customer
complaints must be responded to within a reasonable time. For
each complaint received, a Customer Complaint Form shall be
filled in with the customer complaint details, the date of receiving
the complaint, the solution and corrective action. The Group’s
management office will monitor the status of the complaint
handling process to ensure that all complaints are handled within
a reasonable time, and internal corrective actions are carried out
within the timeframe proposed by the responsible department.
The case of the complaint will be deemed as closed only after the
Head of the Factory reviews the Customer Complaint Form and
confirms that all corrective actions are performed properly. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not receive any product or
service related complaints.

Receive Client Information Responsibility
Complaints Identification Identification
KE &R &R E2EA HEERE
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Intellectual Property Rights

In respect of privacy, data and intellectual property rights
protection, the Group has complied with all the relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the Intellectual Property
Law of Vietnam, the Cyber Information Security Law of Vietnam,
the Trademark Law of Cambodia, the Law on Copyright and
Related Rights of Cambodia and the Patent Law of Cambodia.
The Group has established internal policies that cover intellectual
property and privacy protection. Its employees are obligated to
retain in confidence all information obtained during the course
of their employment, including, but not limited to, trade secrets,
know-how, customer’s information and personal data, supplier
information and other confidential information. The information
is clearly stated in the staff handbook. The Group also maintains
information technology systems with the high level of security
to prevent unauthorized access to confidential information.
Fingerprint identification facilities are installed at the showroom to
allow only a few authorized employees to enter.

Anti-corruption

The Group strictly prohibits corruption and bribery committed
by its employees. In the case of conflict of interests, employees
must declare the concerns to management. In the case of
suspected corrupt practices, employees should report to the
management. Employees are strictly prohibited from utilizing
business opportunities, power and/or occupational position for
obtaining personal interests or benefits. During the Reporting
Period, no reported case of corruption, bribery, fraud or extortion
was noted by the Group.

The Group values and welcomes our employees to report any
suspected malpractices confidentially to the management.
The Group handles reported cases of malpractice cautiously
in line with the whistle-blowing mechanism established. A full
investigation will be conducted confidentially, disciplinary action
will be imposed on the employee involved upon confirmation of
the occurrence, and further legal action may be taken depending
on the nature and particular circumstances of each case.
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The Group closely monitors regulatory development and will
arrange relevant training for employees and directors when
necessary. In order to prevent any corruption or bribery behavior
within the Group, the Group will brief newly joined employees
on our anti-corruption practices during their orientation, and
emphasize that we do not tolerate any form of corruption. All
directors received training on corporate governance prior to the
Group’s listing or at the time of joining the Group, it is ensured
that they are aware of their duties and responsibilities in relation
to integrity.

Community Investment

The Group earnestly fulfils its social responsibilities, actively
carries out public welfare activities, and regards public welfare as
an important aspect of its corporate culture. Therefore, the Group
encourages our employees to take part in community services so
as to contribute to a more sustainable and harmonious society.
In particular, the Group is devoted to helping orphans through
making donations to charitable bodies, building primary schools
and participating in school visits. During the Reporting Period,
the Group made a donation of approximately HK$162,000
(2022: approximately HK$185,000). The Group has donated to
World Vision Hong Kong for Child Sponsorship in helping 50
needy children to bring life-transforming changes by improving
their growth environment. Also, we donated to the Cambodia
Government to assist in flood relief and purchase of COVID-19
vaccines for society.

The Group will continue to contribute to the local community to
develop a better environment for society and children.
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PART B. ENVIRONMENTAL

@

Q
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Reduce GHG Emissions

R E AR R

Reduce Electricity Usage
BWLRE

The Group strives to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable
working environment by improving energy efficiency, addressing
waste management, supporting environmental education and
promoting the idea of recycling and reusing. The Group has
established a set of management policies, mechanisms and
measures on environmental protection and natural resources
conservation to help ensure the operations of the Group are
in line with world-class environmental protection practices.
Moreover, the Group has recruited third party professionals
to conduct energy audit test in order to assess and evaluate
our existing energy saving policies and to determine whether
the adopted measures are adequate in terms of saving cost
and energy, as well as increasing productivity, while meeting
stakeholders’ expectations.

Optimize Resources
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Since our manufacturing factories are located in Vietnam
and Cambodia, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the
environmental issues and relevant measures that are applicable
to these two operating units. To achieve the environmental goals,
the Group has implemented the following measures:

o Comply with all applicable environmental laws and
regulations;

° Identify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental
impacts associated with the Group’s activities;

° Maintain high leadership commitment and develop a strong
culture of environmental stewardship within the entire
workforce; and

° Make resources and systems available, with the provision of
the necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill
our environmental responsibilities.

Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted
from direct vehicle emissions and the Liquefied Petroleum
Gas (“‘LPG”) used for cooking; while other indirect emissions
mainly arise from the use of business facilities. The Group has
implemented various measures to ensure that the emissions are
kept at the minimum, and to reduce the impact of our business
activities caused to the environment. During the Reporting
Period, the Group has complied with relevant environmental laws
and regulations, including but not limited to, the Environmental
Protection Law in Vietnam, the Water Resources Law in Vietnam,
and the Law on Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Management of Cambodia.
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Air Emissions

During the Reporting Period, 8 motor vehicles were used to
serve our management team members, guests and clients, while
3 forklifts were used for lifting and transporting heavy loads in
Vietnam and Cambodia factories. In our business operations,
employees are seldom required to travel to different locations
for work. Due to the epidemic situation being relieved, the
business of the Group has gradually resumed and more business
operations are incurred during the Reporting Period. Hence,
higher usage of fuel for vehicles leads to the air emissions
increased. To uphold the principles of sustainable development,
the Group is committed to reducing or maintaining each type
of air emissions between 95% to 120% for the next reporting
period, against the level of the baseline year ended 31 March
2023.

All usage of fuel and mileage of the vehicles are recorded by
drivers on a daily basis in order to monitor the usage of vehicles.
Furthermore, all vehicles are under regular maintenance checks
to facilitate fuel consumption efficiency, ensure road safety and

keep air emissions and carbon dioxide emissions at its minimum.

IR T ERERRS

BRI

PSR HAR > MR R S I T A8 R B
ERMNEEERNE BERER > REHAIMH
XREEEREHEY EHRMANEBEET B
ERVEZAEFEMBETF-RIREHE > A
REBEEMER ~EBXBEESEREBR
BEEBEE-RHIL EWMANNERERLNE
RERFBIEN - A REFIFHEERNRA &
ERRAON T —ERSHER S EERFRE
BRRFEHEE_T_=F=A=1+—01H
BEFEKFHIS%E120%Z fE

BARERECHEWOMAMHERKRERE
o UEREWMAERBER IS FrEERS
TETERERERDS  UERSBEEENR
T FRIRER R 2 UK B R — |66
MERFERMEKF -

Air Emissions & HF

Nitrogen Oxides (NOx) & & 1E#3(NOx) g
Sulphur Oxides (SOx) & 1E4(SOx) g
Particulate Matter (PM) Z&#i4(PM) g

! The air emissions data for the last reporting period has been
restated based on the data that made available.

2021/22! 2022/23
B/ ZE--/"=

26,223 76,930

496 727

1,484 4,019

! BT RS B E R P EIE SRR A R BUE
ERIIE
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GHG Emissions

GHG generated from human activities is one of the significant
drivers of global warming which affect the lives of the present and
future generation. Therefore, the Group is highly concerned about
the importance of monitoring and mitigating the GHG emissions
in our operations.

Due to the epidemic situation being relieved, the business of the
Group has gradually resumed and more business operations are
incurred during the Reporting Period. Hence, higher usage of
fuel for vehicles and more consumption of purchased electricity,
which leads to the total GHG emissions increased. In order to
reduce the use of fuel and the emissions of GHG, all machines
and equipment would be turned off while they are not in use. For
mitigating measures to reduce indirect emissions from purchased
electricity and paper, please refer to the below section sub-
headed “electricity and energy usage” and “generation of waste”
respectively. During the Reporting Period, the GHG emissions
intensity increased by 3%, which achieved the target set in the
previous reporting period. To uphold the principles of sustainable
development, the Group is committed to reducing or maintaining
the total GHG emissions intensity between 95% to 120% for the
next reporting period, against the level of the baseline year ended
31 March 2023.

GHG Emissions B = R EHEK

Unit B {iI

BEREHK
ANBEHEENEERESERERERENE
EERRERZ— ?,Efﬁ1t&1§1t$/§°lltt ZIN
EESERMIEERERN KB REREIN
MEZEM-

RSB AR RIBEMER  NEEXES
EETEZ LREIHEHFEERT AL
BEWMMARERERBEENEIHEEEM B2
&?ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%éﬁm 7 AR B9 5 B o

RENHBFIENERNKERREEEE
% BRIBINE R AR SRE R PR R
M ERRSRE T X BNRERER UK TE
EERY) KM -NRENE REREFREE
EA3% BN E—REPEFARENER - BR
FoFEERNRA AEBR IR T —ERS
HEREEREAFNEZEERERNFRHFERE
TECZF-ZR=T—HUENEEFEKFTHN
95%ZE120% 2 fE ©

2021/22 2022/23
—_— /% —EB-__ /"=

Vehicles B4 kg T7% 82,644 117,372
Generator 25 & 1% kg T7 3,925 3,297
LPG &1 EHR kg T7 22,175 21,225

Purchased Electricity 4Mi8E kg T7 8,384,945 9,362,871

Paper 4% kg T3 41,932 38,495

Total GHG Emissions Intensity kg/pair of shoes

BERBEREZE T, EE 1.55 1.60
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Air-Conditioning

In Vietnam and Cambodia factories, the indoor temperature is
maintained at 25 degree Celsius or above to reduce unnecessary
energy wastage. Air-conditioners are switched off when they are
not in use. The Group has also put notices at prominent locations
to raise employees’ awareness of energy conservation.

Use of Resources

The Group always endeavors to promote sustainability and aims
to cease resource wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the
environment. Various measures have been implemented to attain
the goal of using resources efficiently. These measures have
been effectively communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring that
all employees understand clearly the importance of conserving
energy and making full use of available resources during work.

“Use of Resources Policy” has been implemented by the Group,
and certain resource efficiency goals and plans have been made
to save energy. The Group has also assigned a department
responsible for energy management, whose duty includes
carrying out regular inspections and monitoring the usage of
energy. The Group is aware of the importance of energy saving
for our business and society, and has made several investments
in saving the use of energy and resources. The measures taken
are as detailed in the below section headed “water usage” and
“electricity and energy usage”.

Water Usage

Water usage arises from the production process of footwear
and the daily use of water by employees at the offices during
working hours. Monthly water consumption depends highly on
the production volume of the month and has slight fluctuation
throughout the year.

IR T ERERRS

=
BEARBRIMNENEEERE2REKE
g L BUR DA Z2RIBETRR & o 2B A E
BRERM - ~EETFNERNUERES T
LR S REEERR

HRERA

AEB-—BRNOREANFESERENIURS
AMBERRE  URHIRREMIBE - RER
SRERERNER  HFIER T ZREH - &
SHECAENBEERRE D RR2EREES
REOHMERNESMTETFPROER
BRER

AEECENR ERERBR - LEREESE
AETERY @ BRKEE - AERTFEIKEFI&
BREREE HRSUEAHREHRE MR
REERBER A EETHE SRR B E R
THNEEN TEAMHNERRERNERTE
EHBURRE - PREREXBVIE I SE B X TR K&
BN MBERERIRE-

K

AKERKEEHEBENEEBRURRAZRE
R AR R B ERK - §8MNEKEEKRRE
ELFERREANES B2ER A/ MRS -

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 57



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIG - B RERERS

At the factory in Vietnam, meters are installed to monitor the
water consumption which makes analyzing the consumption
index of each production stage easier. As for the Cambodia
factory, it is convenient for the site to source natural water from
wells in the nearby area and meters were installed during the
Reporting Period to monitor the water consumption.

In order to enhance water efficiency, the Group has installed
automatic water saving taps in toilets and has placed written
notices in conspicuous areas to remind staff to save resources.
Moreover, we have also consulted third party professionals to
evaluate the existing energy saving policies and suggest ways to
improve our measures.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to the discharge of sewage
in Vietham and Cambodia, and paid sewage fees to Vietnam
Singapore Industrial Park in Vietham and Manhattan Industrial
Zone in Cambodia, to handle the waste water on our behalf. No
confirmed non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by
the Group.

Unit B i

HrIHEZEAERUEARKE KMES
RO S EE ERE R HFEE# - 2N UIHET
J > HEBR T @ RO H R AR R AAKE A& B
RESHBEZEAERUGENRKE-

BIEBAKMER AEBEERPIZE T BEEHK
KEESR WHARRNUERE Y SEE T 128
ETEHNER UL HATHEAE=TFEA
THIRBEMERRETTHE ) WERSCERETR
F3ke

RE|BEHE HABETERRRBER RIS K
BRI BIPR B BRI AR ROE R > W AUl Fa By ik
EHNETEERRBRENBR T XEXIHE
RIS & URKRILMBIEREK - AEFE I =
REEEIN A EGREMIRF

Water Usage FA7K

Water consumption FA7K & ms3 17 75 K
Sewage ;5K Z ms3 17 75 K

Intensity ZE
Water consumption F7K =

Sewage ;5 K&
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md/pair of shoes I /5 K /& &

m3/pair of shoes 17 /53K /€&

2021/22 2022/23

—E-_— /& TE__/"=8&
294,131 325,271

232,010 260,217

0.0534 0.0546

0.0421 0.0437
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Due to the epidemic situation being relieved, the business
of the Group has gradually resumed and more business
operations during the Reporting Period. Hence, the total water
consumption increased. During the Reporting Period, the water
consumption intensity and sewage intensity increased by 2% and
4% respectively, which achieved the target set in the previous
reporting period. The Group will continue to put more effort into
reducing unnecessary water consumption. Therefore, the Group
strives to uphold our leadership in sustainability and aims to
reduce or maintain the water consumption intensity and sewage
intensity between 90% and 120% for the next reporting period,
against the level of the baseline year ended 31 March 2023.

Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to the
communities, the Group has made steady progress in reducing
its carbon footprints across its business operations. The
electricity consumption of the Group has mainly arisen from
daily consumption at the offices and factories in Vietham and
Cambodia. Moreover, the Group has engaged a third party
consulting company to perform energy audit tests at the Vietnam
factory and provide suggestions and comments on the existing
policies for improvements in electricity and energy usage.

Due to the epidemic situation being relieved, the business
of the Group has gradually resumed and more business
operations during the Reporting Period. Hence, the total energy
consumption increased. Although the total energy consumption
level increased, it increased by a proportion less than the
increase in the production volume. Thus, the energy consumption
intensity decreased by 2% during the Reporting Period and
achieved the target set in the previous reporting period. The
Group pledges to reduce or maintain the energy consumption
intensity between 90% to 120% for the next reporting period,
against the level of the baseline year ended 31 March 2023.

IR T ERERRS

RS AR B BEAMER AEEEHD
BYEHABHRESEXBEE -HIL BKEE
BN BKEBRERSKEEEDH LA2%E
4% FEH E—REPBRENER - EIL &
EERNEFTRMAEIFEERSERELH
i WHKRKT—ERSHBRABRKEBRER
SKEBERERBREREBRE_S ==
=+ —BHIENEEFEKTFHI0%E120% 2 [E o

BIKREERER
ZEIMEERENRERE  AEBRETALD
BEXBESHRET D ECIRERIER K
EEREEETIZELAUEAREENRAE
RIHBEBEHEE LI ZEBCERESE =54
ARBEME IRETEREZAG UMIRE
BAKREREBBRNBERHEZERER

REESHE BN RBEMER AEBEHBD
ZOEEEBRESEHEE-FIL  HEHEE
YR BERUH FEAR B K F#EB Fr LT HIB R
REEIEE FIL > SERHERERRSHAB T
2% ER L —REMEMKRENE R -TEH
EER T —ERSHESERHEREREER
METRE_ZS_="F=-"BA=+—HBMEEF
FEIKTFHI90%E120% < fE ©
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Energy Consumption? SE§E2

Unit B i

Diesel (Generator) 4538 (25 &5 1) kWh F R B
Diesel (Vehicles) &3 (EE8) KWh T FLBF
Petrol (Vehicles) 7558 (E24R) kWh F FL B
LPG &R1EEHR kWh F FLEF
Electricity & kWh F LB
Total Energy Consumption fEFE4E & KWh F EL B

Total Energy Consumption Intensity

FEFERREE

The following are the measures that the Group has implemented

to preserve energy and electricity:

60

Lighting, appliances, machines and equipment are turned
off when they are not in use to reduce energy consumption;
Air conditioners and lights are turned off during non-office
hours, including lunch hours, and in idle rooms;

Employees are required to put computers and other devices
into sleep mode or turn them off when they are not in use
(such as during customer visits and lunch time) during
business hours;

Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air
conditioners, computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure
they are operating efficiently;

Printing machine in the office is set to energy-saving mode
by default, and the sleep mode is automatically turned on
if not in use for a certain interval in time so as to reduce
unnecessary energy consumption;

The data of energy consumption for the Reporting Period are
disclosed in accordance with “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange to display the
more comprehensive performance of the Group.

The data of energy consumption for the 2021/22 reporting period
are reinstated and disclosed in accordance with “Appendix 2:
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock
Exchange for meaning comparison.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

KWh/pair of shoes T E B /& #

2021/22° 2022/23

—/ZF3-8B-- /"=
16,055 13,486
266,297 387,393
60,048 78,902
53,393 51,104
12,694,023 13,326,421
13,089,816 13,857,306
2.38 2.32
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° Used printer cartridges are sent to the printing company for
recycling; and

° Investment in technology is made to improve the efficient
use of energy.

Packaging Materials

The Group’s products mainly use packaging materials such as
paper, paper boxes, and partition cardboard. In response to
environmental protection, the Group has strived to minimize
the wastage of packaging materials to the greatest extent by
reducing the use of new cartons by reusing and recycling old
carton boxes. The following table sets forth the total usage of
shoe boxes and carton boxes during the Reporting Period.

2021/22

Shoes

Packaging Materials Boxes
—E-—/

—_—F

2R B2
Total volume 42 & ton M@ 847.41
Intensity = & ton/pair of shoes 0.000154

Mg, R

Generation of Waste

The solid waste generated by the Group mainly arises from
day-to-day operations, including, but not limited to, office-use
paper, office waste and excessive materials generated during
the production process. Total paper waste disposed at landfills
was approximately 8,000 kilograms (2022: approximately 8,700
kilograms). The Group has made a great effort in reducing
paper waste, which leads to a drop in total paper waste level.
In order to alleviate the pressure on landfills and promote
environmental friendliness, we have implemented various
measures to encourage recycling of office supplies and other
materials, and eliminate the over-consumption of unnecessary
products; prioritizing reuse and recycling over disposal. For
example, the Group promotes the use of double-sided printing
and encourages its employees to use electronic administrative
platforms and online communication channels.

RIE - B RERERS

o ERABNITEIREZRBEIER AT E
fTlElu 5 &
o  RERMUMEERNERMA-

MR

AEBENERTEEBMR RBERDEBRIRE
BEME - HEHRRGERE FEEERER LD
BEMMBRE  RAREMBBEREH RO
WERE R MBERER - TREIINHKREH
BHEIAEA2BERE-

2021/22 2022/23 2022/23
Carton Shoes Carton
Boxes Boxes Boxes
—E-—/
——F
RS
601.08 898.89 677.14
0.000109 0.000151 0.000114
EEEEY

AEBEENEBEYTERONEEEES S
FERRRBABK BAEEEYREERBRE
FREFESNRIEGRME - EHIEE R ENEERLE
#9758,000F 52 (ZB - Z 4 : #98,700F 52) o &
EEIB R VRRIRE  EERES TR A
BEHEBEENR N RIEERFRH  HMAEE
T2 IEE I > s B EIU A B & R B4Rt L
HABBEEETVERD ; MEEMSEBRLER
BRAREW G AEBEEFRLEEmIIR
TEBHEEFERETFTHIEERERERE
o
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Both hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are generated during
the manufacturing processes. In order to reduce the production
of solid waste, statistics of waste are recorded monthly in order
to keep track of the volume of disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes. Employees are always reminded to use
resources carefully and avoid using excessive materials during
the process of shoe-making. The head of the factory closely
monitors the monthly waste disposal record. If there is a large
increase in the amount of monthly waste disposal, the head of
the factory will conduct a thorough investigation and perform
follow-up action promptly. For example, the head of the factory
will put reminder labels in the factory or hold a briefing session
with the factory workers to re-emphasize the importance of
waste reduction.

As our customers introduce new types of products, the
production process and material were changed accordingly. Also,
due to the epidemic situation being relieved, the business of the
Group has gradually resumed and more business operations
are incurred during the Reporting Period. Hence, the hazardous
waste intensity increased by 11%, which achieved the target
set in the previous reporting period. For the non-hazardous
waste, the Group has made a great effort in reducing the waste,
which leads to a drop in total non-hazardous waste level and
its intensity, which also achieved the target set in the previous
reporting period. The Group will strive to reduce or maintain the
hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste intensity between

90% and 120% for the next reporting period, against the level of
the baseline year ended 31 March 2023.

REBETEELASRESERY RBELVE
EEREERY KPS AL ERY R BUE
NERHMBEEREEREEMNREEE - HfIRK
RERE/NOVERER BREREBRETER
BENME -BMEZVEZESANERYEET
Ho-MAERRMEEERBIRN MEGET
WMERFASE > T RERNEETH -HIN BEE
EIRREEESTRATAGBHBRSG  £EH
BENEEZMN -

BEZRTEEHWEER HANEERER
MO BE 2 3 £ B1E - TR 1B B P AR 8 -
FEREXZEZRTIMEARBREHMEREES
EH AL AEBEEVMEE LFA11% ERE
—REHMBAMRENER -NESEREYMS
FEBBORVERYES  WEESEEYE
ERHEBZEAFRTE BR E—REMBIMR
ENER-AEERN T —ERSHBEZIRA
EREVAESERYTERBUETERE
TECZF-R=T—HUENEEFEKTHN
90%E120% 2 &

Waste EEY) Unit B (i

Total Hazardous waste B EEEY)4E S kg F7=

Total Non-hazardous waste EEEEZEY4EE kg T 7=

Intensity & E

Hazardous waste B EEE &) kg/pair T3z /&5t
Non-hazardous waste &= =4 kg/pair T3,/ & &t
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2021/22 2022/23
—E_— /& B /"=
76,856 92,237
2,937,663 1,947,276
0.014 0.015
0.533 0.327
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The Group actively advocates the idea of a green and sustainable
working environment, and full compliance with Part D of Article
36 Chapter V of the Vietham Law on Environmental Protection
and Law on Environmental Protection and Natural Resources
Management of Cambodia. We have recruited licensed parties to
handle all wastes generated during the manufacturing process.
During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance
incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation to
waste disposal.

Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with all relevant
environmental laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on us, including but not limited to, Law on Environmental
Protection and Natural Resources Management in Cambodia and
Law on Environmental Protection in Vietham. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in
relation to environmental issues.

IR T ERERRS

FrERRBEEGERAIFEIFRENES
I & [ ST R IR IR (R 5 A BVE F361RDE
REERERRERERBABEREE L - HFAEHA
EHR N REREBRNEENRBERY -
REHME AEEBLERSTEERYEERRN
ST G MBI

BR KR

REBESHE AEEET THRMEERTEN
FREMRRIRRERER  BEETRINEHEN
RIERERBAREREEEREPIRGRE
Eo AEBI ESTHIRFRERARMAVERET
GREF IR

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 43



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- HHEREGHRS

Climate Change

The Group reviews and identifies the climate-related risk annually
while conducting the risk assessment. We have considered the

potential climate-related risks in respect of the recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosure, which
are the physical risks such as extreme weather conditions
and transition risks such as regulatory change or emerging
technologies, and the potential climate-related risks are

summarised as below:

RIREE

FEBRTET AR GHER  SFRE KHE7
REAERAE R - RIS RBRIZEMY B EMNR
BTRENEZE REENREERER 215
mim KRR N EERERAKEEZEHIMER
@R BERGEAARMERSLDNT

Medium

(One to Long

three (Four to

years) ten years) Mitigating Strategy

R (AREHME P (—E28) RE@E+E) BHER

Short
(Current
Reporting
Risks Type Potential Financial Impacts Period)
ERER BEMBERE
Low Medium High
18 F =l
Physical Risks Acute

BERAR

Reduced revenue and increased costs from
business and supply chain disruptions due
to extreme weather conditions

=73

RBHA RN SR ET R AREEE &
HRARD REAR

Chronic

Increased operating costs related to
the sustained elevated temperature

et

ARERRARNEENAEM
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Established a safety
management system,
including adverse
weather guidelines
RUZETEBZR A
TPk i=E]

Adopted energy
conservation measures
to reduce the impacts
of our work on the

environment
REERAE A T2
HIRENRE



Risks Type
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Potential Financial Impacts

BHEMBRE
Low Medium High
1& d =

Short Medium
(Current (One to
Reporting three
Period) years)

AR (RREHR) P8 (—E=%)

RIE - B RERERS

Long

(Four to

ten years) Mitigating Strategy
RE(OE+E) BHER

Transition Risks
BE AR

Changes in climate-related regulations
Higher compliance or operating costs due to

the adoption of more rigorous regulatory
standards

RIEIER %2

RFMERENEERESRARALEER
Syl

Continuous monitoring
of the regulatory
environment

Adopted mitigating
measures to reduce the
impacts of our work on
the environment

Adopted measures in
coping with the power
restrictions imposed by
the local government
FREREERE

RO T
RERGHNTE

RERFEH S BN
BB 71 IR B9 1

Emerging technology

Increased costs due to the adoption of
new practices or materials that are more
environmentally friendly

Shift in customer preference

Reduced revenue due to reduced demand of
products and services

ATER A

RN EIRIRAVETIE G A K BB A A

EREFESL

E m B RS B R D B AR

Keeping abreast of
the industry standards
and adopting green
procurement

Adopted a stringent
environmental
management system

to ensure the Group
meets the expectations
and requirements of the
customers
RRTERE RAL
B

RERENREEER
o EFRAEETER
FHHZRER
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HKEX ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND AR RIRIE - ERERREIESIA
GOVERNANCE GUIDE CONTENT INDEX AE5|

Description
et

General Information on: Emissions, Generation of
Disclosure Waste
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

—RRIFE BRBERAEERESR BAAKRIHNET BEREERE HN ELEFEY
BEYNEEEZMN :
(a X, &

(b) BTFHBTABEAZEERMERRAEM

BB o
KPI' A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Air Emissions
BRESIEIRA11 BRI ELEE R AE R BRI - JER L
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas GHG Emissions

emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

RRAENIEIRA1.2  HiE EE1) REEREE FEE2) REREHNE UWstE) BERETFK
R NER BE MUBESSA - BERMH)
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Aspect Description Chapter
EE it =111

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FRENISIEA13 MELBEEEEVEE LUESTE) kK (MER) BE WUSE
BEEM -BEREAE) o

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BRENIEIEA14 FELBRSEEVESE CUESE) k MEBER) BE WUSE
EEM -BEREE) o

KPI' A1.5 Description of emissions target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.
BREMISIEA1S HIFETUNIREB R A ETE L BRI L R o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

FRENIEIEA16 HAEEEERESEEYN G L KEMFTETIIAREB
B 7 iE S5 L B IR PR ERELAY 27 §% o

Generation of Waste

ELERY

Generation of Waste

ELERY

Use of Resources

=9

Generation of Waste

ELERY

General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy,
Disclosure water and other raw materials.

— R B BRAEREAER (BFEER KREMEME) BB -

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g.

electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

RREMIEIEA2.1  REE NE RIUH BN EREKHEZEREEE (XL
TEFERFEFSE REE UNSEEE MU SHEKMTE) °

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
RREMIEIRA2.2 MBREKEREE WUSEEEB( SERME) °

Use of Resources

BIRIEH
Electricity and Energy Usage

B RFERIEH

Water Usage

FHK
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Aspect Description Chapter
fEm Rt EEf

KPI A2.3
PR I51RA2.3
KPI A2.4

RE S4B WIS 1ZA2.4

KPI A2.5

B ERIEIRA2.5

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps Use of Resources
taken to achieve them.
PRSI UM RERAN T ERERAEISEERMRNN HREH

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water Water Usage
that is fit for purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results

achieved.
HMRBGER AR EREEEEMAME URBKE B Ak
K PT3ZE R A 3R o

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) Packaging Materials
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

N mFTAEEMENGEE CUIESHE) &k MEBR) 28 XM
EEAEE-

General
Disclosure

—RIRE
KPI A3.1

B R AR RIEARAS A

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the Use of Resources
environment and natural resources.

BERBBETAHRERRARBEREMNERTZ ENBR BR&H

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the Use of Resources
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to

manage them.

HLEBETHHRBRERRAARERNEAXERERNEES BHFREH
RxENITE -

General
Disclosure
— R E

KPI A4.1

e 2 M RS ARA4 A

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the Climate Change
environment and natural resources.

BERBRETAHRERRABEREMERTZ ENHR- RIREE

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the

actions taken to manage them.
HMERRAIEEHETAEEXENEARBEERET RELZT
REBEMSENRERYHTH

68 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- HHEREGHRS

Description
it

General Information on: Employment and Labor
Disclosure Practices
(a) the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— AR 2 ERFMEE-BEEEA - TERE-RA -TERE -2 FEEREZIEZH
ToAE ~ IR I AR MUK ELAth Fl 2 Ko @ A B9 -

(a) HBXE; &
(o) BFHETABEATZENEREZEKRAG
B o
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full-  Employment

or part-time), age group and geographical region.

RRENIERBI1 M RERE WEHIAER)  FRANRMEI DR FEF

BHBH

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment
geographical region.

ARG NIERB1.2 RUF - FRMANRMER SN EERKE - e’
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RIE- HHEREGHRS

Description
B

Chapter
EEf

General
Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B2.1

8 SR 4B WIS 1ZB2.1

KPI B2.2
PR A 15 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3

B R AE R IE1RB2.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
AR ZE2TFRERREESBEBMELLCEN !

(a) B, &
(o) BEBTFHETABERTENERR AR KRG

BBk

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of
the past three years including the Reporting Period.

BE=F (BRERSHE) SFETTHRHABKREER

Lost days due to work injury.
ATEIERTIEHS

Description of occupational health and safety measures
adopted, how they are implemented and monitored.

B PR B R R R 2 2 ABRRITRER T -

Health and Safety

RBEHZE

Health and Safety

REHE

Health and Safety
BEHZE

Health and Safety

General
Disclosure

—MRIRE
KPI B3.1

B 2 A 51883, 1

KPI B3.2

B A IE1EB3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work.

ERRARERET TEMENM B R ENEER -

The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).

R REELER EREERE FREER) 22092 3E
BBEDLEe

The average training hours completed per employee by gender

and employee category.
B REELERE D BREETMRINN TR -
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Development and Training

BERIFH

Development and Training

#Zr R

Development and Training

ZE R



General
Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B4.1

R SR AR 15 1R B4
KPI B4.2

B RARIE1RB4.2

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RIE- HHEREGHRS

Description
it

Information on:

(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labor.
EREPIEET @8BS TH !

(a) B, K&
(b) BEFHETABEAFENBREERRREL

BE R} o

Description of measures to review employment practices to
avoid child and forced labor.
g st PR B AR e U B R E T KB T o

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

B AERRERBREHRE BB RS R

Chapter
=111

Labor Standards

ZTHEA

Labor Standards

=T HEA
Labor Standards

HTHEA

General
Disclosure

—RIRE

KPI B5.1
R R A S 15 12 B5. 1

KPI B5.2

R R AR XIE1EB5.2

KPI B5.3

B AR MIE1RB56.3

KPI B5.4

RS AR 15154

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the
supply chain.
ERAEEMRERNIRE Rt TR BBER

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

&8 DM HEFHE -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, how
they are implemented and monitored.

7 75 R B R (A FE R B9 1B 1 () EL 1T 5 RIS 1) B0 £ FE 7 X
B HERARITRERSG A

Description of practices used to identify environmental
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

H AR AR E RS EIRANIRIE R GRS > UL
T ERAHAT R BE B 5 7% ©

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers,
and how they are implemented and monitored.
HATHREHRERERREFESARRERKRBHIES > Uk
AT RER AL

Supply Chain Management

REEETE

Supply Chain Management

RERETE

Supply Chain Management

REEETE

Supply Chain Management

REEETE

Supply Chain Management

REEEE
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RIE- HHEREGHRS

Description
B

Chapter
EEf

General
Disclosure

—RRIREE

KPI B6.1

B 2 1A X F512B6. 1

KPI B6.2

8 5 45 5 12B6.2
KP| B6.3

B4R 51%B6.3

Information on:

(@)  the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
ERfMREERERBHNERELZS BES RERMESE
MR ¥ 77 7R R

(@) BE; &
(o) BTFHBETABEATENERERZRBEA

B o

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls
for safety and health reasons.
BEENEEXERBHTRL2HEREAMERLNE D
Eto

Number of products and service related complaints received
and how they are dealt with.

WEIRR Em M RFIRFE B UREH 5E

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

ot B e 5 T AR IR R 58 EE FE R RABOIE B
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Product Responsibility

Complaints and Feedback
Mechanism

RFRREHT]

Complaints and Feedback
Mechanism

KRR BT
Intellectual Property Rights

M EE
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RIE- HHEREGHRS

Aspect Description Chapter
EE it =111

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall Product Responsibility
procedures.

FARAAMIEIEB6.4 HitEEREBRRERERARIRZER- EmEF

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Complaints and Feedback
how they are implemented and monitored. Mechanism

RARABNIE1EB6.5 MU BEEBRHMRERMBER  HEARITRERS % RIR R BT

General Information on: Anti-corruption

Disclosure

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— R BRI LIRS ~ 1R~ REF R R AR 881 ¢ RET
(a) B, K&
(b) ETFTHBELTABEAZENERERE LR
B o
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices Anti-corruption

brought against the issuer or its employees during the
Reporting Period and the outcomes of the cases.
FRENIEEB71 NRREHBHETANEHEERHLEEENESHLENE KEST

O QEDSEIEIN LS

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures, how they are implemented  Anti-corruption
and monitored.

RASRAAXMIEIRB7.2 HhEE i HARNIT RER G £ RES

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption
and staff.

RARENISIEB7.3 HitmMESEAETRMNKRESE RES
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RIG - B RERERS

Description
Rt

General Disclosure  Policies on community engagement to understand the needs
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

—ARiRE BREUMESERTRETAEEMNEIHERTEMRARAE
BEBeERHEF mIBER

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labor needs, health, culture, sport).

FRENIEEBS.1 HAISKMEE WHE BEFE - HSIHER-E#ERE X8
B) e

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.

FRENIEEBs2 AFEINBABHAER WHENFRH) -
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has established a formal and transparent
procedure to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. The Board is committed to ensuring the self-regulatory
practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of the
Company. These include a Board with high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Board and the management of the
Company are committed to the maintenance of good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The Company believes
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
sustainable business growth and enhancing shareholders’
value. The Company regularly reviews the corporate governance
procedures and developments of the Company. The corporate
governance duties have been delegated by the Board to the
audit committee of the Company. The primary duties of the audit
committee in relation to corporate governance include developing
and reviewing the Company'’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and making recommendations to the Board, so as
to enhance and to ensure the corporate governance practices
of the Company are in line with the relevant requirements. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year under review.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2023.

TEERBRS

EEERER
AABBHETERRBRZRER  LURIEEA LT
BRRZFm BEFERNRFEAGERRESR
B URERALAFRRNm - BEEERGUEHE
REXNEENZETE EFXEZET -AUR
BEEZRERANESEEFE -EFGRARFE
ERRNNRHERRENEEEBERNEF &
NERERUENEXRERESAUNEE B2
NABXIE I BN ER SRR REBER
FHREER - ARB EERBRA LT RABZEEE
BREFRER - BEFEEHZREALTEREZEG
BEANBZEXELAER-BENEZEGAME
FELRZIEBEEEMT BN ERT ZE
FEAHRKRERKAESSFHES FILRE
AAERBZEXEEARRKBERETSHEBAR
EoARBNBEERBEFARBHENEBH SR
ZARARABRES EMAER (TEHRA) Wk
Tz EEATH ((EXEEATR) AT
X Z IR WETF 2 ETRIFEX -

EFETESFRS

AR ERM—EEFETESTRBZTAT
A BRI R RBE L RAMERTFr#iz b
BTANEFETESFRGZRETR (MREST
Al R REBEERE-ERMBESRIFLHA
REHE EENEE_S=F=A=+—H
IEFERBBEETZITATRRIRETRIFTR
EZBBEREURHEFTGREFTETESTRS
2177 THe
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Parasing
TEERRS
GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE BIaRE
Board of Directors
=
(3 Executive Directors,
3 Non-executive Directors and
4 Independent N
Non-executive Directors)
(Z2RTES - =ZAFENT
EERMNABIUIFRNITES)
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee Audit Committee IBLEET
HMEEE EZEEY (1 Executive Director,
(1 Executive Director (1 Non-executive Director 1 Non-executive Director
and 4 Independent and 4 Independent and 4 Independent
Non-executive Directors) Non-executive Directors) Non-executive Directors)
(—RHTEER (—RIFEAITEER (—HITES
MBI IFNITES) MBI IENITES) —RBIEHITES K
AU IEHITES)
Int;;:; LA*;d't ESG Working Group
(by an i:dfp;ndent Sl ?ig&"éié}lfﬁd\ﬁﬂ
international (6] Exeoutwe Directors and
" : 2 senior management members)
accounting firm) CLATEER
EFEPTETT) B =S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS E5g

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible and EEEHENUBEZREREBRZEAE
effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/her duty BAEEH MEFHELABTERE  E3E
in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing applicable TEREORERZEE  ITHEREUEARE R
laws and regulations and act in the best interests of the Company ERBEzRENGAT ROEFARBEERR
and its shareholders. During the year under review and up to the SR EEGRERE

date of this report, the members of the Board included:

Executive Directors: MITESR

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chairman) BRWL LT (FE)

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu (Vice Chairman) =HEBRE FIEE)
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares (Chief Executive Officer) PRICER ST A (TTBCAE %)
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Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel
Mr. Wong Hin-wing, MH
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2023)

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. In particular, Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, the Chairman, is the mother of Mr.
Chen Yi-wu, Ares, the Chief Executive Officer. Save as disclosed
above and in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”,
there is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship(s) among the Directors. Code provision C.2.1 of the
CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the year, the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer were two separate positions held by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares respectively with clear
distinction in responsibilities.

Directors’ Attendance Records

The records of attendance of individual Directors at the Board
meetings and annual general meeting, and relevant committee
members at Board committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in the following table:

TEERBRS

JEMITESE .
PSS
WERHELE
BkfEE L BrHES ATMmt

BIIERITES .
BRRILELE
S A e
(G fodum
RS E  pmgs
(B - - =fF—H—HIEEZF)

EXSEERESENERZEG WA RN AF
REFhSEEEABRE cAEMS£FE
BERMRERITERBMREERENTR PR L
XRBEEREShEEEEASBEIFTKE
B BRZBUETAOMSE EH REXH
EKX AR % - RIFEEEATR Z TR
NXEC21MF TFERITBERNACETUED
REARBALEE - RER TERITEBED
BIEREFH L T RRILFRERE HRS5EE
EREED -

EFHFEGRCR

TR EEFNODEFERNERTZEFTEE
FERRREFRG URBMEZES SN SO
FERRTZERZEGERIHELE

Number of Meetings Attended/Held

HE/BTEERY
Audit Nomination =~ Remuneration Annual General
Committee Committee Committee Meeting

BREEY RLEEE HWEEE RRBEAS

Name of Directors Board
EEN4 -
Executive Directors HifTEE
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &% % - 4/4
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & 18184 4/4
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares BEZE £ %4 4/4
Non-executive Directors JFHIITESE
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel & %% 4/4
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian R 5% 4/4
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.

BKEEL REHES KATHL 4/4
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITES
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 583 [E 46 4 4/4
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 314 4/4
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel REE %+ 4/4
Mr. Wong Hin-wing, M1 HEBSE L4 > 5B ghE 11

N/ATER 1/1 11 11
N/ATER N/ATER N/ATE R 11
N/ATER N/ATEH N/ATER 11
N/ATER N/ATEH N/ATER 11
N/AREH NATEHR N/ATE 11
2/2 1/1 N/ATEH 11
2/2 1/1 11 11
2/2 11 11 1/1
2/2 11 11 11
N/ATER N/ATER N/ATEH N/AT
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TERERRS

Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim financial statements for Board
approval before public reporting, execution of business strategies
and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,
and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and
regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

Non-executive Directors

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific
term of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the Company’s annual general meeting in
accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

The Board has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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In order to ensure that independent views and input of the
independent non-executive Directors are made available to the
Board, the Nomination Committee and the Board are committed
to assess the Directors’ independence annually with regards
to all relevant factors related to the independent non-executive
Directors including the following:

° required character, integrity, expertise, experience and
stability to fulfill their roles;

° time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

° firm commitment to their independent roles and to the
Board;

° declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as
independent non-executive Directors;

° no involvement in the daily management of the Company
nor in any relationship or circumstances which would affect
the exercise of their independent judgement; and

° the Chairman meets with the independent non-executive
Directors regularly without the presence of the executive
Directors.

The above mechanism is reviewed annually by the Board and the
Nomination Committee to ensure its effectiveness. The Board
and the Nomination Committee have reviewed its implementation
during the year and consider that it continues to be effective in
ensuring that independent views are provided to the Board.

TEERBRS

BTRERBUFATESIRNESSTRMEL
BMhER R EgRlEETg8FEREE
VFRTEFARNMARBRERFGEEBEIL
o HehEE

s RBUHRSMOBHNEM EERE -FX
R KB R ABRENE

o HARTEHBRANFERES

s EBRENTHSABUSFENHERRAE
EEIMF;

s HHRMEABUFATESTERNN DG
REIR;

e ABEARTINBEEER TIAEITE
HAER B I A BBV E IR R IR 5 &

s IRARBUCTEFRHRENBR TEHA
BN ITESFS@E

AR EREFERRELEZESGEFERN B
BREANIE EFERRELEETCERET
B EF PO BY B IR 6 58 25 s I B BE I AR B SRR AR )
ERERHBIIRE-
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TERERRS

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. During the year under review, relevant materials on
legislative and regulatory updates were circulated to all Directors,
namely Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu,
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Kimmel,
Phillip Brian, Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, Mr. Tam King-ching,
Kenny, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven, Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel
and Mr. Wong Hin-wing, as to keep them abreast of any changes
to the regulations and disclosure obligations. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares, Mr. Chan
Ho-man, Daniel, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian and Mr. Wong Hin-wing,
also attended relevant training courses arranged by the Company,
on management, duties and responsibilities of a director and/or
other topics organized by external professional bodies during the
year under review to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY
INSURANCE

The Company has subscribed an insurance policy since 2000
with an aim to indemnify its Directors and senior executives from
any losses, claims, damages, liabilities and expenses arising
from, including but not limited to, any proceedings brought
against them during the performance of their duties pursuant
to their respective service agreements entered into with the
Company.
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PROCEEDINGS OF BOARD MEETINGS AND
BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Board considers that all meetings should be properly
convened. With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman of the Board takes the lead to ensure that Board
meetings and Board committee meetings are convened in
accordance with the requirements set out in the bye-laws of
the Company, the terms of reference of the respective Board
committees and the Listing Rules.

In convening Board meetings, the Chairman is responsible for
drawing up and approving the agenda for each meeting after
consultation with all the Directors and the Company Secretary.
Prior notice of each regular Board meeting is given to all the
Directors at least 14 days in advance.

Board meetings are held at least four times a year. In addition,
special Board meetings are held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or
through other electronic means of communication, of all the
Directors.

Dates of regular Board meetings are scheduled in advance to
provide sufficient notice to give all the Directors an opportunity to
attend. For special Board meetings, reasonable notice is given.

The Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

The minutes of Board meetings record in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board, including all concerns raised
by the Directors and dissenting views expressed. The minutes of
all Board meetings and Board committee meetings are kept by
the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by any
Director, auditors or any relevant eligible parties who can have
access to such minutes.

TEEERERS

EXERARMESROBERIENHNAM &
ABEMENHH T EFTTETFEEEEFTELUR
REFTERENEFZETTRIREANER
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TERERRS

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rules 3.25 and 3.26 of the Listing Rules, the
Company should establish a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights
and compensation payments, such as any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment,
and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee also review and/or
approve matters relating to share scheme under chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee consisted of an
executive Director and four independent non-executive Directors
as set out below:

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Mr. Wong Hin-wing, MH

The Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
remuneration packages of the Directors with reference to the
factors including salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Group. The Remuneration Committee
has adopted the operation model where it performs an advisory
role to the Board, with the Board retaining the final authority
to approve the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the remuneration packages of the Directors are fair
and reasonable and has recommended the same for approval by
the Board. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors are
set out on page 122 of this report.
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The Remuneration Committee has reviewed and approved the
grant of share options and share awards to Directors and other
employees of the Group for the year ended 31 Mach 2023. The
Remuneration Committee considers that the share options and
the share awards to the Directors and other employees of the
Group are at level which is commensurate with award levels in
the market and are fair and reasonable.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management
(excluding Directors) by band for the year ended 31 March 2023
is set out below:

Remuneration band Number of individuals
Below or equal to HK$500,000
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

4

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates
for Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s
bye-laws in selecting and recommending candidates for
directorship.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. The policy sets out the approach to
achieve diversity on the Board. The Company recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance
the quality of its performance. In determining the Board’s
composition, the Nomination Committee will consider board
diversity in terms of, among other things, gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on merit, and candidates will be considered against
appropriate objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board. The Nomination Committee will monitor
the implementation of the diversity policy and review the same as
appropriate.
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The Board recognises the importance and benefits of gender
diversity at the Board level and shall continue to take initiatives
to identify female candidate(s) to enhance the gender diversity
among the Board members. As at 31 March 2023, The Board
currently has two female Directors.

Our diversity philosophy including the gender diversity was
generally followed in the workforce level throughout the Group
for the 12 months ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March
2023, approximately 18.8% of our senior management and
approximately 78.3% of our total workforce were female. We will
continue with our endeavours to maintain female representation
in our workforce.

The board diversity policy is reviewed annually by the Board and
the Nomination Committee to ensure its effectiveness. The Board
and the Nomination Committee have reviewed its implementation
during the year and considered that the board diversity policy
including the gender diversity objective has been achieved.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted a nomination policy, which sets out
the criteria and process in the nomination and appointment of
Directors, with the objective to ensure the Board has a balance of
skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
requirements of the Company’s business.

1.  Selection Criteria

The factors listed below would be used as reference by
the Nomination Committee in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate:

° Reputation for integrity

o Accomplishment and experience

° Qualifications

° Compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest
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o Independence — in case of nomination or re-
appointment of independent non-executive Directors,
the requirements and guidelines on independence of a
candidate in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules

o Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be
exhaustive and decisive. The Nomination Committee has
the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.

Nomination Procedures

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call
a meeting of the Nomination Committee, and invite
nominations of candidates from Board members if any, for
consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its
meeting. The Nomination Committee may also put forward
candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

The Nomination Committee should evaluate such
candidate based on the selection criteria mentioned
above to determine whether such candidate is qualified
for directorship. If he or she is considered appropriate, the
Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval for filing a casual
vacancy. For proposing candidates to stand for election
at a general meeting, the Nomination Committee shall
make nominations to the Board for its consideration and
recommendation. A candidate is allowed to withdraw his/
her candidature at any time before the general meeting by
serving a notice in writing to the company secretary of the
Company. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to the recommendation of candidates to
stand for election at any general meeting.
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Retiring Directors are eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election at a general meeting. The Nomination
Committee and/or the Board should review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director and his/her level of participation and performance
on the Board.

If an independent non-executive Director is subject to
re-election, the Nomination Committee and/or the Board
will also assess and consider whether the independent non-
executive Director will continue to satisfy the independence
requirements as set out in the Listing Rules.

During the year, the Nomination Committee consisted of
an executive Director, one non-executive Director and four
independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sSBS, J.P.

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Mr. Wong Hin-wing, MH

The Nomination Committee considered and resolved that all the
existing Directors shall be recommended to be retained by the
Company. Further, in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws
and as resolved by the Nomination Committee, Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian,
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Mr. Wong Hin-wing will retire
from office by rotation, and being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting (except
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven who will not seek for re-election).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal control systems.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit HE_Z_-—_F-A=+—HULEMEFE BZ
Committee consisted of a non-executive Director and four ZEEH N —RIIFHTESKOALEILIEHR

independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel

Mr. Wong Hin-wing, MH

TEFMAER
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee reviewed the REEERN BREZEGEERAERZREE
Group’s consolidated financial statements, interim and annual BHRR -TPHARFERS KAz E5tRAIKE
reports, the accounting principles and practices adopted and BN EERR - BIZEZERINEWET Kt
internal control systems. The Audit Committee also reviewed ENERZBEN 2 R ERGR TEREESS
and approved the external auditor’s remuneration and terms of BEBEMEEINEZEET o

engagement and recommended the Board for re-appointment of

the external auditor.

The Audit Committee is also responsible for performing the EBEZZEGTEERTLEERABE 815

corporate governance duties, including:

° To develop and review the Company’s policies

%JD]—& MJZK/ATZJJ:¥ =} /Dﬁ%&ﬁ%ﬁ

and practices on corporate governance and make UEkmEEEEHES

recommendations to the Board;

e To review and monitor the training and continuous e MAMEREEASHRBEEEZBIIKE
professional development of directors and senior BEERER
management;

e To review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices e MIAMBERARNBDETEIEAGEERTES

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

HZBRRER

e To develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and o HIE - BEAERBEBNEEREES T
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and ATRRERFM WB) ; &

Directors; and

e To review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and . *ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@ﬂ?_ﬁ/\¥m%?Q'JZ‘%‘RLXEZ

disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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The Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal requirements,
and that adequate disclosures have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditor are fair and reasonable.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditor, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review, the
fees payable to the Company’s external auditor for audit services
and non-audit services were HK$1,816,000 and HK$593,000
respectively. The non-audit services relate primarily to tax
compliance and consultancy services.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements for each financial year,
which give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company and its subsidiaries as at the end of the reporting
period and of their financial performance and cash flows for
that year in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with relevant law and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
the Listing Rules. The Directors have prepared the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for keeping proper
accounting records which reflect the financial position of the
Group with reasonable accuracy at any time.
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The Directors’ responsibilities and the responsibilities of the
independent auditor with respect to the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 March 2023 are set out on pages 129 to 137 of this
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board recognizes its responsibility for maintaining an
adequate and sound enterprise risk management and internal
control system and through the Audit Committee and, if
necessary, an external independent professionals to provide
internal control services, conducts reviews on the effectiveness
of these systems at least annually, covering material controls,
including financial, operational, compliance and strategic risk
control functions. The Board understands that such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

During the year under review, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, conducted an annual review of both design and
implementation effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls,
with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions are
adequate. In this respect, the Audit Committee communicates
any material issues identified to the Board.

During the year under review, the Company appointed BT
Corporate Governance Limited (an operating entity of Baker Tilly
Hong Kong) (“BTCGL"), an external independent professionals to:

° assist in identifying and assessing the risks of the Group
through a series of workshops and interviews; and

° independently perform internal control review and assess
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems.
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The results of the independent review and assessment were
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. Moreover,
improvements in internal control and risk management measures
as recommended by BTCGL to enhance the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and mitigate risks of
the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on the findings
and recommendations of BTCGL as well as the comments of the
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control and
risk management systems effective and adequate.

The Board has adopted a whistleblowing policy and an anti-
corruption policy during the financial year ended 31 March 2023.
Such Policies are reviewed annually by the Audit Committee to
ensure their effectiveness.

Our Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The Group established its enterprise risk management framework
during the year. While the Board has the overall responsibility to
ensure that sound and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and implementing an
internal control system to manage all kinds of risks faced by the
Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment processes, risks
are identified, assessed, prioritized and allocated treatments. Our
risk management framework follows the COSO Enterprise Risk
Management - Integrated Framework, which allows the Board
and management to manage the risks of the Group effectively.
The Board receives regular reports through the Audit Committee
that oversight risk management and internal audit functions.

90 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

BUBERAKIENERENBEZZEERES
FRE UM BEEFERMNTEHZLEETRE
BY P9 BB B 42 R LB B IR HE i BY AU > DU SE A &
EHEBREERANBEZERFURB D AEER
MNER RELZCEFZTNRAEER KRR
REZZEENER EFEI/AMEEREA
BEBERRBUERD

EEgEREE_S_=F=A=1+—81tH
BFEERMBRBERERBRBER -BREEE
SFEERETHRUBREANIE-

KNG X EREEEER

AEERFRZILT EEEREEER #ARSE
FEREBREARFRERREEMNANIEE
BEEEaERFIRERABEERG UEE
FEEEENSERR -

i 48 L R B R 5T AR B AR 0 EBR AR A ~ 5T S
EEBARFLETHERE - RMANEKREE
EREBRECOSOLEX:AREE —AGIER NFF
EFEEREEEASUEEAERENAR -ES
EEBEREZETRNERRS BERREE
2 P BB R A% BB BE ©



Principal Risks
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During the year ended 31 March 2023, the following principal

risks of the Group were identified and classified into strategic

risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks.
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Strategic Risks Risk of economic recession & B 3 P =R E S

Operational Risks

Financial Risks

Compliance Risks

Unstable political environment of some
of the countries where we operate our
production plants

Customer concentration risk

Pressure on rise in operating cost

Risk of inflation/deflation

Credit risk

No significant risks identified
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Risk Control Mechanism

The Group adopts a “three lines of defence” corporate
governance structure with operational management and
controls performed by operations management, coupled with
risk management monitoring carried out by the finance and
compliance team and independent internal audit outsourced to
and conducted by BTCGL. The Group adopts risk management
policy and procedure (the “Risk Management Policy”) and
maintains a risk register to keep track of all identified major
risks of the Group. The risk register provides the Board, the
Audit Committee, and management with a profile of its major
risks and records management’s action taken to mitigate the
relevant risks. Each risk is evaluated at least annually based on
its likelihood of occurrence and potential impact upon the Group.
The risk register is updated by management as the risk owners
with addition of new risks and/or removal of existing risks, if
applicable, at least annually, after the annual risk evaluation has
been performed. This review process can ensure that the Group
proactively manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all risk
owners have access to the risk register and are aware of and
alert to those risks in their area of responsibility so that they can
take follow-up action in an efficient manner.

Our risk management activities are performed by management on
an ongoing process. The effectiveness of our risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually, and periodic
management meeting is held to update the progress of risk
monitoring efforts. Management is committed to ensuring that
risk management forms part of the daily business operation
processes in order to align risk management with corporate goals
in an effective manner.

92 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

| B B HE A

FEERB =BT EXELER AEEE
ERATEEEEREE MEMBEREHEERK
FENRBEESEE UkBEREEESINE
RITBE I EZ - A EBHFMEREER
KRR (REEERE) WHERREBRBEE ML
ERTEEMAERNNEIZRARZEM - AR
EEAEFE BRZECREEERHATE
JEV R YR E2 15000 » 3 SO Bk ' IR B A AR AR AR RE LB
I ITE -AERELSERBIAREE
R BEMENE A EBNEER BETT G -ER
TEERRTEZE BEEE (FRRERAES)
REVESFEEH AR G0 R R K, M
RIRARR WER) - BRREARRAEEE
HEEHEMERAER > BIPTA R A EE B L
BRI E TR EHEHSERENE
%o LUERSAMEM MR ETE -

FANEREE TSR EERBFEET - HFAN
EREEERNEREREDGFET —RF
fh TERBTEEEERUAENERERNTF
MER BEERBRONBAERRREEBMAEE
BEEREN D WERMM G — AR EE
RyNSII Sz



Corporate Governance Report

The Company will continue to engage external independent
professionals to review the Group’s system of internal controls
and risk management annually and further enhance the Group’s
internal control and risk management systems as appropriate.

There is currently no internal audit function within the Group.
The directors have reviewed the need for an internal audit
function and are of the view that in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the business of the Group, it would be more
cost effective to appoint external independent professionals to
perform internal audit function for the Group in order to meet its
needs. Nevertheless, the directors will continue to review at least
annually the need for an internal audit function.

Disclosure of Inside Information

The Group has established internal control procedures for the
handling and dissemination of inside information in order to
comply with Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules as well as Part XIVA
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”). The internal
control mechanism includes information flow and reporting
processes, confidentiality arrangements, disclosure procedures,
and staff training arrangements, etc.

DIVIDEND POLICY

It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits
and for the Company to retain adequate reserves for future
growth. The Company expects to maintain a general dividend
policy of declaring and paying approximately 30% to 60%
of the Company’s consolidated net profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company in each financial year subject to
the financial performance, business development, working capital
requirements and capital expenditure plan of the Group. The
Company may in addition from time to time consider to declare
special dividends subject to the macroeconomic environment,
funding needs on business development, overall cash position
and any future capital commitments of the Group.
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Declaration and payment of dividends shall remain to be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board, taking into
consideration of, among others, the following factors:

(i) operations and earnings;

(i) business development;

(iiiy  liquidity position;

(iv)  capital requirements and surplus;

(v)  general financial conditions;

(vi)  contractual restrictions (if any); and

(vii) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

Subject to the Companies Act of Bermuda and the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-laws”), the Company may from time to
time declare dividends in any currency to be paid to the members
of the Company but no dividend shall be declared in excess of
the amount recommended by the Board.

The Board may also from time to time pay to the members of
the Company such interim dividends as appear to the Board to
be justified by the profits of the Company. Any declaration and
payment as well as the amount of the dividend will be subject to
the Bye-laws and the Companies Act of Bermuda.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors and has adopted the Shareholders
Communication Policy. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and announcements which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’s website at
www.kingmaker-footwear.com.

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, the chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. In addition, a representative
of the Company’s external auditors is requested to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct
of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditors’ report,
accounting policies and auditor independence.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to express their views and ask Directors and
management questions regarding the Company. All shareholders
of the Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices
of AGM and SGM and other corporate communications.
Separate resolutions are required at general meetings on each
distinct issue. Each shareholder is permitted to appoint a proxy
to attend and vote in his stead.

The Hong Kong branch share registrar of the Company serves
the shareholders in respect of share registration, dividend
payment and related matters.

The Company has reviewed the implementation and effectiveness
of the Shareholder Communication Policy during the year and
concluded that it continues to be effective in engaging with the
Company’s shareholders.
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
NOMINATE A DIRECTOR, MAKE PROPOSALS
AND CONVENE GENERAL MEETINGS

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, if a shareholder,
who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the general meeting
convened to deal with appointment/election of director(s), wishes
to propose a person (other than the shareholder himself/herself)
for election as a director of the Company, the shareholder must
deposit a written notice to the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company. Details for nominating candidates
to stand for election as a director are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

(i) Any one or more shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
the right to vote at the general meeting; or (i) not less than 100
shareholders may submit a written request to make proposals
or move a resolution at a general meeting; or a statement of not
more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to
in any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at a
particular general meeting. Such request must be deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong,
for the attention of the company secretary of the Company, not
less than six weeks before the meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Details of the
requirements and procedures for making proposals or moving
a resolution at a general meeting are set out in the Corporate
Governance section of the Company website.

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition sent to the Company’s registered office and at its
principal place of business in Hong Kong, for the attention of
the Board or the company secretary of the Company, to require
a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. Details
of the requirements and procedures for convening general
meetings are set out in the Corporate Governance section of the
Company website.
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PROCEDURES FOR SENDING ENQUIRIES TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board of the Company by addressing them to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
at 17th Floor, Empress Plaza, 17-19 Chatham Road South,
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon, Hong Kong by post or by email to
kingmkra@netvigator.com for the attention of the company
secretary of the Company.

Upon receipt of the enquiries, the company secretary will
forward:

1. communications relating to matters within the Board’s
purview to the executive Directors of the Company;

2. communications relating to matters within a Board
committee’s area of responsibility to the chairman of the
appropriate committee; and

3. communications relating to ordinary business matters, such
as suggestions, inquiries and complaints, to the appropriate
management of the Company.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all voting at the Company’s general
meetings shall be conducted by poll. The Company’s bye-laws
have set out the procedures and requirements of voting by poll.
Such voting procedure would be explained by the Chairman at
the commencement of the general meeting of shareholders.

CODE OF CONDUCT

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for
all employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are
expected to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and
responsible manner.
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AMENDMENT TO THE BYE-LAWS OF THE
COMPANY

To bring the Company’s bye-laws in line with certain changes
on the Listing Rules which came into force on 1 January 2022,
the second amended and restated bye-laws of the Company
were adopted by way of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting held
on 26 August 2022.

CONCLUSION

The Company will continue its enduring effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try its
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet with
the continuous changing environment and for the benefit of the
shareholders.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EEREEEEAEERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
" F B4 THEY BBER
Executive Directors
WITES
Huang Hsiu-duan, 66 Executive director and 42 Madam Huang is a co-founder of the Group, and served as the

Helen
"Rk

Chairman
HITEERERE

Chairman and the Chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company with effect from 1 February 2020. She is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee, a member of the Environmental, Social
and Governance (‘ESG") working group of the Company and serves
as a director for the subsidiaries of the Company. She is responsible
for formulating the overall business strategies and policy development,
and future development plans for the Group. Madam Huang has more
than 46 years’ experience in the footwear industry. Madam Huang is
the mother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple and Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares,
mother-in-law of Mr. Su Yi-ren and elder sister of Mr. Huang Chun-hua,
Charles. Madam Huang is one of the directors of King Strike Limited,
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
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% FE B THEH BHELCH
Chen Yi-wu, 31 Executive director 7 Mr. Ares Chen joined the Group in 2016 and is also the vice president of
Ares and Chief Executive the Group. Mr. Chen was appointed as the Chief Operating Officer of the
MR Officer Group with effect from 1 May 2019. Mr. Chen was also appointed as the
HITEERITHER Chief Executive Officer with effect from 1 February 2020 and a member
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of the ESG working group of the Company. He is responsible for the
execution of the Group's strategic plans and enterprise development, in
charge of the management and overseeing the Group’s production and
customer relations. He holds a bachelor's degree of Arts in Economics
from Tamkang University in 2014. Mr. Chen is the son of Madam Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen and a brother of Ms. Chen Zi-yun, Fiona Apple. Mr.
Ares Chen is one of the directors of King Strike Limited, which is a
substantial shareholder of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.
BEZEAER_E—AFNAFER T AFEENERH BAEE
- NEFRA-HEEZAALEENEFEEE -RELTEZE
RITERERURARATRE - HERERIMINENE B2 2F
“_R-BREM-REERTAEERRRENRCEXER EEEEY
EEAEENEEREABG - RN S —NERBRIABRELS
TR -REEARARL Tz T UARTENEANEH - RELER
4 %King Strike Limited (KA BN E S RAGHAIEXVEIETREHNE
ERH WEA—RESH-



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EEREEEEAEERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 FE OB THEY BBER
Wong Hei-chiu 56 Executive director 15 Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer of the Group, company
=EB and Vice Chairman secretary and a member of the ESG working group of the Company.
HTESREFRE Mr. Wong is responsible for assisting the chairman to formulate the

overall corporate strategy and policy development, supervision and
management of the Group’s overall financial matters and investor
relations. Mr. Wong obtained an Executive Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Sustainability Directorship from The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and completed the Prince of Wales" Business
Sustainability Programme from the University of Cambridge Institute for
Sustainability Leadership in 2019. Mr. Wong holds an Executive Master's
degree in business administration from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong and a Bachelor’s degree in business administration from Lingnan
University, Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising),
a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, a fellow member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and an associate member of Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong is also a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors.
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Mr. Wong has over 32 years of corporate finance and financial
management experience in Hong Kong and the PRC. Mr. Wong is an
independent non-executive director of Prosperous Printing Company
Limited, whose shares are listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
He was an independent non-executive director of Vico International
Holdings Limited, whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange, from January 2018 to March 2019. Prior to joining the
Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has worked as the group financial controller
and company secretary in a Hong Kong listed electronics manufacturing
company for over 8 years; and as the finance director and company
secretary in another Hong Kong listed wholesale and distribution
company for over 4 years.
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Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 FE OB THEH BHELR
Non-executive Directors
FRITESR
Chan Ho-man, 68 Non-executive director 27 Mr. Chan has been with the Group since 1996 and was the ex-chairman
Daniel FHITER of the Group from June 2016 to January 2020. He is responsible
BRIEX for advising the management on the corporate strategy and policy
development.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Chan retired as the company secretary of Kin
Yat Holdings Limited with effect from 1 September 2020, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chan has more
than 44 years’ accounting and corporate finance experience in Hong
Kong.
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Kimmel, Phillip Brian 71 Non-executive director 29 Mr. Kimmel has been with the Group since 1994. He is responsible for
fRA FHITER the Group's investors and customer relations. Mr. Kimmel has more

than 47 years’ extensive experience in the footwear industry. He holds
a Bachelor’s degree from the University of Southern California and a
Master’s degree from the University of Washington in China Regional
Studies.
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Dr. Chow Wing-kin, 73 Non-executive director 29  Dr. Chow serves as a member of the Nomination Committee and the

Anthony, SBS, J.P.
BxEEL
REMES KP#T

FRTES
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Audit Committee of the Company.
Dr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in Hong Kong, England and
Wales. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong for over 43
years and is currently a senior consultant and global chairman of the
law firm Messrs. Guantao & Chow Solicitors and Notaries. His principal
areas of practice include corporate and commercial, property law,
probate and civil litigation. Dr. Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting
Officer, an arbitrator of South China International Economic and Trade
Arbitration Commission/Shenzhen Court of International Arbitration
and the chairman of Process Review Panel for the Financial Reporting
Council. Dr. Chow was awarded the Honorary Fellowship of the Hong
Kong Education Institute, the Honorary Fellowship of King's College
London and the Doctor of Social Sciences, honoris causa, by The Open
University of Hong Kong in 2018.
Dr. Chow is currently a member of the National Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Ping An Healthcare and
Technology Company Limited and Beijing North Star Company Limited,
all are listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director of OneConnect
Financial Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed on the New York Stock
Exchange.
Dr. Chow was previously a non-executive director of China City
Construction Group Holdings Limited, an independent non-executive
director of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, MTR Corporation Limited,
S.F. Holdings Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, and the president of The Law Society of Hong Kong. He is
also the former chairman of the Process Review Panel for the Securities
and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, the board of stewards of The
Hong Kong Jockey Club, and the former deputy chairman of the council
of The Hong Kong Academy for performing Arts. He was appointed a
Justice of the Peace in 1998 and awarded the Silver Bauhinia Star medal
in 2008.
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Number of
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4 FE OB EHEH
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFRITES
Tam King-ching, 74 Independent 29
Kenny non-executive director
BHRE BUFRITES

Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the Audit Committee, and a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Company. He is a practising Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a member of Chartered Professional
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. Mr. Tam is serving as a member of the
Restructuring and Insolvency Faculty Executive Committee in the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He is a past president of
The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves
as an independent non-executive director of six other listed companies
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely, Capital Industrial
Financial Services Group Limited (formerly known as Shougang Concord
Grand (Group) Limited), Starlite Holdings Limited, Hong Kong Shanghai
Alliance Holdings Limited, BeijingWest Industries International Limited,
West China Cement Limited and Wisdom Education International
Holdings Company Limited. Mr. Tam was previously an independent
non-executive director of two Hong Kong Listed companies, namely
CCT Fortis Holdings Limited and GBA Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Greater Bay Area Investments Group Holdings Limited) in the past
three years.
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% FE B THEH BHELCH
Yung Tse-kwong, 73 Independent 17 Mr. Yung serves as the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, and a
Steven non-executive director member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
wHI BIUFHNTES of the Company. Mr. Yung is also an independent non-executive director
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of ZJLD Group Inc. since April 2023. Mr. Yung was the former Chief
Executive Officer of Imagi International Holdings Limited and was the
former Chairman of Clear Media Limited, both of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. As Managing Partner of Glocal
LLGC, Mr. Yung has over 42 years’ management experience from leading
multinational companies in the media, entertainment, consumer, retail
and FinTech industries. Mr. Yung began his career as a producer with
Hong Kong Commercial Broadcasting Company Limited and has since
held various senior management positions at The Coca-Cola Company
in the United States of America and Asia, served as Regional Managing
Director of AC Nielsen China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Korea and as
President of Nielsen Media International. He had been a director of the
Cable and Satellite Broadcasting Association of Asia (CASBAA), and is
currently a Director of the Child Development Matching Fund.
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Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 51 Independent 12 Ms. Chan serves as a member of each of the Audit Committee,
BREZE non-executive director Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
BUFITER Ms. Chan is the founder of Mabel Chan & Co, Certified Public

Accountants (Practicing) and became the deputy managing partner
of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited in 2016. Ms. Chan has over 30
years' experience in professional accounting field in Hong Kong. Ms.
Chan serves as a member of the Air Transport Licensing Authority
of HKSAR since August 2017, a member of the Trade and Industry
Advisory Board of HKSAR since September 2017, a member of Hong
Kong Business Facilitation Advisory Committee since July 2020, a
member of Hong Kong Academy of Finance since December 2020, a
member of the Independent Police Complaints Council since January
2021, a member of the Corruption Prevention Advisory Committees
of the ICAC since January 2021, a council member of Hong Kong
Association of Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors Limited since
June 2021 and a member of HKSAR Election Committee since August
2021. In addition, she served as a council member of the Association
of Women Accountants HK from January 2006 to March 2017 and the
president of the aforesaid Institute in 2010, a member of the Council
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants from December
2007 to December 2018 and the president of the aforesaid Institute from
December 2016 to December 2017. She served as the president of the
Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors from December 2009 to
December 2010, a member of Barristers Disciplinary Tribunal Panel of
Hong Kong from May 2010 to May 2020, a school board member of
Hong Kong Baptist University from January 2013 to December 2018, a
member of the Appeal Panel (Housing) of Hong Kong from April 2014
to March 2018, a member of Small and Medium Enterprises Committee
of HKSAR from January 2015 to December 2020, a member of the
Securities and Futures Appeals Tribunal of HKSAR from April 2017 to
March 2023, and a member of the Export Credit Insurance Corporation
Advisory Board of HKSAR from July 2017 to June 2023.
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Ms. Chan holds a master degree of business administration from the
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2000 and a degree
of Bachelor of Arts (Hons) in accountancy from City Polytechnic of
Hong Kong (now known as City University of Hong Kong) in 1993. Ms.
Chan is a Certified Public Accountant (Practicing) in Hong Kong, a
fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
council member and an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, an associate member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a member of CPA
Australia.

Ms. Chan currently serves as an independent non-executive director
of another listed company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
namely, Renrui Human Resources Technology Holdings Limited. Ms.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of a listed company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, namely Bank of Zhengzhou Co.,
Ltd. during the period from June 2015 to December 2021.
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Wong Hin-wing, vH 60 Independent N/A Mr. Wong serves as a member of each of the Audit Committee,
BER zzps non-executive director A Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Company.
(appointed on Mr. Wong holds a master’s degree in executive business administration
1 January 2023) from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
BIUERTER the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Institute of
R —E-_ZF—H—H Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Association of Chartered
EZ) Certified Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the

Chartered Governance Institute. He is also a member of the American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a chartered member of the
Chartered Institute for Securities & Investment. Mr. Wong was awarded
the Medal of Honour by the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region.

BEREAAREERZEE RLZEERFNZEEGZME-ER
O REEEPNARBE ZTHAEIHEERT 20 -KRATES
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Mr. Wong is currently an independent non-executive director of Jiangxi
Bank Co., Ltd. (a public company with H shares listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1916)), Zhaoke Ophthalmology Limited (a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock Code 6622))
and C Cheng Holdings Limited (a public company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1486)). Mr. Wong served as an independent non-
executive director of AEON Credit Service (Asia) Company Limited (a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 900)) from
October 2004 to June 2020, CRCC High-Tech Equipment Corporation
Limited (a public company with H shares listed on the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1786)) from November 2015 to October 2022, Dongjiang
Environmental Company Limited (a public company with A shares
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002672) and H
shares listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:895)) from June 2014
to December 2020, Guangzhou Baiyunshan Pharmaceutical Holdings
Company Limited (a public company with A shares listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600332) and H shares listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 874)) from June 2017 to May 2023,
Inner Mongolia Yitai Coal Co., Ltd. (a public company with B shares
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 900948) and H
shares listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3948)) from May
2017 to May 2023 and Wine's Link International Holdings Limited (a
public company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8509)) from
December 2017 to March 2023. Save as disclosed herein, Mr. Wong
did not hold any directorship in other public companies the securities of
which are listed in Hong Kong or overseas in the last three years.
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Mr. Wong is a member of the Anhui Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a panel member of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Review Tribunal, a member of the
Construction Industry Council, the Betting and Lotteries Commission
and the Medical Council of Hong Kong as well as a board member of
Ocean Park Corporation.

Mr. Wong is the managing partner and responsible officer of Hermitage
Capital HK Limited, a private equity firm licensed under the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong). Prior
to this, he had worked with an international audit firm for four years and
then a listed company as chief financial officer for seven years, after
which he co-founded Silk Road International Capital Limited (a licensed
corporation formerly known as Legend Capital Partners Inc.) and led the
company as the executive director and responsible officer for twenty-
three years. Overall, he has over three decades of solid experience in
corporate management and governance, investment management and
advisory, accounting and finance.
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Lai Chi-hang, David 56
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Chen Zi-yun, 40
Fiona Apple
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Mr. David Lai has been with the Group since 1993 and is a member
of the ESG working group of the Company. He is responsible for the
Group’s accounting and financial management and serves as a director
for the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lai holds a Master's degree
in business administration from University of Wales. He has more than
34 years’ experience in auditing, financial accounting and financial
management.
REREER-NNAZEMAFREEL AAATRE HERERTLE
MNEE REBAEEZ EHRMBERLERALEINBARE
E AL RERRNASIHEEE LTS - FEFBBMELY-
BHREHRBEELR

Ms. Fiona Apple Chen has been with the Group since 2007. She is a
member of the ESG working group of the Company and also serves
as a director of the subsidiaries of the Company. She was previously
the Managing Director and was in charge of the Group’s retailing
business. She assists the Chief Executive Officer for the implementation
of corporate strategies and coordination among different departments
and business units of the Group. She is responsible for the overall
administration and management information systems of the Group
and oversees the Group’s business operation in Taiwan. She holds
a Bachelor’s degree from National Taiwan University in International
Business. After graduation, she studied footwear design at De Montfort
University, the United Kingdom. Ms. Chen is a daughter of Madam
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen and a sister of Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares.
BFMEEZETLEMARER RAXRTDRR HERERT
ENERE TEEAABNBELABNESR -KAAAEEREE 68
AERNZEER BRBHTEHELEBECEERESHMELES
EBEMZENGE RAEFEENERTHAEEERAZAKE
EXAEERENABEE - REFEUSEAREL2M TBRAKE
o BE% RAEEEDe Montfort Universityd &R » TIEEHR -
BMERBRARRR T2 R R TARAHELLNEE



Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EEhEEEEAEERE

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service  Business experience
4 FE OB THEY BBER
Wertz Todd Anthony 54 Vice President, 5  Mr. Todd Wertz joined the Group in January 2018. He is responsible
XEN Marketing and Business for the Group’s sales and marketing, business development and in

development
hERER
EHERBIBH

charge of the R&D center in Zhuhai factory. Mr. Wertz has over 30
years’ experience in the footwear industry. Prior joining the Group, Mr.
Wertz served as a Regional President (Asia) in K-Swiss International
Manufacturing Limited (“K-Swiss”) from 1998 to 2017. He was mainly
responsible for the establishment of legal entities and standard operating
procedures for quality control, in charge of the manufacturing and supply
chain management within APAC, including Vietnam, Indonesia, Hong
Kong, Thailand, China and Taiwan; and the management of planning
and operations with OEM factories. Before joining K-Swiss, Mr. Wertz
served as a sales manager in Trust Leather Company and as a SMU
manager in K-Swiss International from 1992 to 1993 and from 1993 to
1994 respectively. From 1995 to 1998, he served as a Line Planner and
Finished Goods Buyer in Pearl Izumi. In 2017, Mr. Wertz also established
Lysi Solutions to act as OEM sourcing strategist and turnaround
specialist on helping companies to optimize their supply chains, quality
enhancement, software integration management, corporate trainings and
providing profitability solutions.

Mr. Wertz holds a bachelor degree of Arts in International Relations from
the University of Colorado in 1991. He also studied in Tunghai University
for several intensive Mandarin Chinese language study programs.
XEAFRER_E-\F-RAMAZEE TEEEFEENHE T
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Huang Chun-hua, 63
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Yang Mu-lang 62
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Su Yi-ren 37
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Mr. Charles Huang has been with the Group since 1983. He is currently
in charge of the overall factory sourcing and operations of the Company.
Mr. Huang has more than 40 years’ experience in the footwear industry.
Mr. Huang is the brother of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.
BREERER-NN\ZEMARER -RETEEEAATME LR
REREE RRATREERRBBIE AR BREAERRUL
2o

Mr. Yang has been with the Group since 2004. He is in charge of the
factory operation in Zhuhai. With effect from 1 January 2021, Mr. Yang
has promoted to Vice General Manager and in charge of the factory
production in Vietnam. Mr. Yang has more than 39 years’ experience in
footwear factory.
BRER_ZEMEMALRER T EZAEREH L EE- BT~
F-A-BE BAREEAAREKEBI I EEEURBZEESHo
BEETRERBBBIFE LR

Mr. Su has been with the Group since 2012. He was in charge of the
quality control management of the Company and lead multiple functions
in Cambodia in 2015. He has promoted to Assistant General Manager
of a subsidiary of the Group and in charge of the factory operation in
Cambodia in 2021. Mr. Su has more than 11 years experience in the
footwear industry. Mr. Su is the son-in-law of Madam Huang Hsiu-duan,
Helen.
BRER_2—_EMAFEE-BR_E-LFFZAELANAESE
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The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note
34 to the financial statements. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the principal activities of the Group during the
year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and analysis of the activities of the Group as
required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
including a fair review of the business, a discussion of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred
since the end of the financial year 2023, and an indication of
likely future development in the Group’s business, are provided
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” set out on pages 6 to 74 of this annual

report.

For the year ended 31 March 2023 and up to the date of this
report, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the Group
complied with applicable laws, rules and regulations in all material
respects.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 138 to 270.
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An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents per ordinary share and a
special interim dividend of HKO0.5 cent per ordinary share was paid
on 7 February 2023. The Directors recommend the payment of
a final dividend of HK2.0 cents per ordinary share and a special
final dividend of HKO0.2 cent per ordinary share in respect of the
year to shareholders on the register of members on Tuesday, 5
September 2023. Details are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements. Subject to the passing of the relevant resolution at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, the final
and special final dividends will be payable on or about Monday, 25
September 2023 in cash in Hong Kong dollars.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting

The Annual General Meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on 28 August 2023. For determining the entitlement to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 23
August 2023 to Monday, 28 August 2023, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to be entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited, at 17th Floor, Far East Finance Centre, 16
Harcourt Road, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Tuesday, 22 August 2023.

Entitlement to the proposed final and special final dividends

The record date for entitlement to the proposed final and special
final dividends is Tuesday, 5 September 2023. For determining
the entitlement to the proposed final and special final dividends,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 1 September 2023 to Tuesday, 5 September 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to qualify for the proposed final and special
final dividends, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Thursday, 31 August 2023.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of

the Group for the last five financial years is set out below. This
summary does not form part of the audited financial statements.
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Results i
Year ended 31 March EE=F=+—HILFE
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ZEZE —Z-"F - ZZFE “T-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAET TAET TAT
RESULTS %4
REVENUE & 1,061,974 842,687 804,720 1,050,064 1,100,649
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX
BRAER (B8 50,320 (33,522) 83,884 (73,790) 5,956
Income tax credit/(expenses) Fri3#HE %,/ (%) 3,616 18,703 (4,100) 20,783 27,978
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR ER#EH / (5518) 53,936 (19,819) 79,784 (53,007) 33,934
Attributable to: T3 & B
Equity holders of the Company AA B E@miFE A 53,410 (18,035) 88,098 (51,386) 35,593
Non-controlling interests 3F1Z ik # & 526 (1,784) (8,314) (1,621) (1,659)
53,936 (19,819 79,784 (53,007) 33,934
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Assets and liabilities

BEERERE
As at 31 March =B =+—H

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Z®C--ZEFE 2y T8 “T°FF “ETNF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FiEx T FET FiET

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT ¥12 BB Kk & 153,676 172,992 185,271 208,531 250,454
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS £ FRIEE & 67,870 71,359 70,581 73,356 -
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 81t 1 it 78 E 38 - - - - 85,744
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES B 4% 497,360 546,724 547,653 398,711 203,565
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B8 AT E 96,520 63,973 31,457 17,817 38,501
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS & & 445 1,800 1,845 1,885 1,924 1,970
CURRENT ASSETS MEIE & 770,733 800,439 806,558 827,252 920,389
TOTAL ASSETS 4 %& & 1,587,959 1,657,332 1,643,405 1,527,591 1,500,623
CURRENT LIABILITIES FE1& & (271,883)  (324,743)  (280,270)  (289,429)  (338,814)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES R E1& & (101,420)  (112,848) (107,883 (59,525) (25,156)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2 & & (373,303)  (437,591)  (388,153)  (348,954)  (363,970)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS FEi= i s (9,439) (8,913) (10,697) (19,011) (18,721)
1,205,217 1,210,828 1,244,555 1,159,626 1,117,932

118 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased its 1,446,000 shares
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) and these shares were cancelled by the Company
during the year. The Directors considered that the share
repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders of the Company
who retain their investments in the Company. Details of the share
repurchases are set out below:
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Further details of these transactions are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Apart from the above, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year ended 31 March 2028.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$492,538,000, of which
HK$13,616,000 has been proposed as a final dividend and
HK$1,361,000 as a special final dividend for the year after the
reporting period. In addition, the Company’s share premium
account, in the amount of HK$89,637,000, may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totaling
HK$162,000 (2022: HK$185,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for 95.8% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 63.1%. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 26% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.P.

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel
Mr. Wong Hin-wing, MH
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2023)

Pursuant to bye-law 87 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu, Mr. Kimmel,
Phillip Brian and Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven will retire as
Directors in accordance with the Bye-laws. Mdm. Huang Hsiu-
duan, Helen, Mr. Wong Hei-chiu and, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting. Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven will retire and
has decided not to seek for re-election at the Annual General
Meeting. Accordingly, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven will cease to
be an independent non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company upon the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.

Pursuant to the bye-law 86(2) of the Company, Mr. Wong Hin-
wing, being independent non-executive Director of the Company
newly appointed with effect from 1 January 2023 will retire from
the Board at the Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer
himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is recommended by the
Remuneration Committee and subject to approval by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,

responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Directors for the
time being of the Company shall be indemnified and secured
harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them, shall or may incur or
sustain by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or
about, the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has maintained appropriate directors liability insurance
in respect of legal action against the Directors during the year
ended 31 March 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

The related party transactions as set out in note 29 to the
financial statements constitute connected transactions of the
Company and are exempted from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirmed that
it has complied with the applicable disclosure requirements of
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Apart from those transactions
disclosed in note 29 to the financial statements, no Director nor
a connected entity of a director had a material beneficial interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ")),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”), were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

AR EBRZEE

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FRERMEE B REEEE
Percentage
Directly Through of the
beneficially controlled Company’s
owned corporation Total issued shares
ERATE
B# B B#1TRG
Name of director EE % BHER REEE st ZESL
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen =& R % + 500,000 263,960,041 264,460,041 38.85%
(Note 1)
(P5E1)
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares BRZEEE 4 12,235,000 - 12,235,000 1.80%
(Note 2)
(Hf5E2)
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu &8 4% 3,855,000 - 3,855,000 0.57%
(Note 3)
(PI5E3)
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel & 32564 6,540,000 - 6,540,000 0.96%
(Note 4)
(FizE4)
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 11 R {5t 4 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 0.29%
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBS, J.P. 3,343,000 - 3,343,000 0.49%
BXEEL pemes Lret
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 8% IE f 4% 510,000 - 510,000 0.07%
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 7 14 1,900,000 - 1,900,000 0.28%
Note: BT

1. These shares comprised 263,960,041 shares held by King Strike
Limited. The issued share capital of King Strike Limited is owned
by Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to approximately 38.04% and
her four children (including Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares) in aggregate as to
61.96%.

2. These shares comprised 12,085,000 shares held by Mr. Chen
Yi-wu, Ares and 150,000 unvested awarded shares held by the
trustee under the Share Award Scheme. Those awarded shares
shall be vested on 25 December 2023.
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3. These shares comprised 3,645,000 shares held by Mr. Wong Hei- 3. WERMEBEAZEEBREIFANS 645000
chiu and 210,000 unvested awarded shares held by the trustee BREROARSTEABRERMDEBFIFEN
under the Share Award Scheme. Those awarded shares shall be 210,000/ K 7 B 12 B A 17 o ZE LR BN AR 15 FE Y
vested on 25 December 2023. B =+ _A-+hAHERB-

4.  These shares comprised 6,390,000 shares held by Mr. Chan Ho- 4. WWERMEEABREIEFAENG390,000
man, Daniel and 150,000 unvested awarded shares held by the RO EASTABRERDEERSEFTAEN
trustee under the Share Award Scheme. Those awarded shares 150,0000% 5 & & 82 B B 17 o % S 2B IR (5 FE 7Y
shall be vested on 25 December 2023. TEC=f+"_A-+hHRHBERB-

Long positions in share options of the Company: EREEERZETFE

Number of

options directly
beneficially owned

BEEERZHEEZ
Name of Director EE % BREHE
Executive Directors: HI{TE % :
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares [RZEEE 4 850,000
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu g8 % 1,200,000
Non-executive Directors: JEHITESE .
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel f& & 4 4 700,000
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian ] 1G4 4 500,000
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, sBs, J.p. B/K @B T fefes kTt 245,000
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIJEHMITESE :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 2% 1E %24 500,000
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven #,F I 4E 500,000
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel fREE &+ 500,000

4,995,000

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial R EMEBIN ETESUARATESLATIRER

personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the BHEREMRARABDFEETHWEB AR Z3F

benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with EmE AR
the minimum company membership requirements.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note
26 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any Directors or their
respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share award scheme are disclosed in
note 26 to the financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme and share award scheme of
the Company, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing shares were entered into by the Company during the year
or subsisted at the end of the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2023, the following interests of 5% or more of
the issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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Long positions: =g
Percentage of
Capacity Number of the Company’s
and nature ordinary issued share
of interest shares held capital
R NS
BEITRA
Name % %18 B kiEREE Fris @R e B ZERL
King Strike Limited (Note 1) (FzE1) Beneficially owned 263,960,041 38.77%
ER%ER
Fat Tat Assets Limited (Note 2) (FizE2) Beneficially owned 34,507,500 5.07%
EnHER
Mr. David Michael Webb (Note 3) (Hz£3) Beneficially owned/ 47,986,000 7.05%
Through control
corporation
BEnEEs/
BETEEE
Mr. Lee Chi Keung &% 4 Beneficially owned 35,198,000 5.17%
En#ER
Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt (Note 4) (ff5E4) Through control 44,907,000 6.60%
corporation
BEZ A E
DJE Investment S.A. (Note 4) (ftzE4) Beneficially owned 44,907,000 6.60%
EnHER
DJE Kapital AG (Note 4) (Fffz¥4) Through control 44,907,000 6.60%
corporation
ERREEE
Notes: fff 53

1. The issued share capital of King Strike Limited is owned by Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to approximately 38.04% and her
four children (including Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares) in aggregate as to
61.96%.

2. The issued share capital of Fat Tat Assets Limited is owned by
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 6% and her four children
(including Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares) in aggregate as to 94%.

1. King Strike Limited B &TRAREASR KL T
WH38.04% R EMNL 7 (BIEREELE) &
HEEHF61.96%

2. Fat Tat Assets Limited® BB TR EAHEF H T
THEBWRENS FL (BIEMRISELE) &
BB 94% o
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3. Mr. David Michael Webb was interested in a total of 47,986,000
shares, comprising 18,000,675 shares held by him as beneficial
owner and 29,985,325 shares held by Preferable Situation Assets
Limited, the entire share capital of which is owned by Mr. David
Michael Webb based on his form of disclosure notification dated 15
January 2020.

4. According to the relevant forms of disclosure notification filed by
Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt, DJE Investment S.A. and DJE Kapital
AG, Dr. Jens Alfred Karl Ehrhardt, being the main shareholder of
DJE Kapital AG, is deemed to be interested in the 44,907,000
ordinary shares of the Company controlled by DJE Investment S.A.,
a Luxembourg-based management company and 100% subsidiary
of DJE Kapital AG, via FMM Fonds (ISIN: DEO008478116).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total number of issued shares were held by the public
as at the date of this report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for the re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Chairman

Hong Kong
30 June 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report

st
EY:x

To the shareholders of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 138 to 270, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B2 B AR S

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter
Provision for inventories

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had net inventories of HK$171.6
million, which represented 22% and 11% of the Group’s total
current assets and total assets, respectively. The estimation
of the inventory provision requires significant management
judgement, which includes judgement about the recoverability of
the cost of inventories, the nature and condition of inventories,
the marketability of finished goods and the future usage of raw
materials.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 7 and 17 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We tested the ageing analysis of the Group’s inventories. We
recalculated the inventory provision based on management’s
estimation and assessed the basis, rationale and consistency
of the assumptions applied in the inventory provision. We
assessed obsolescence provisions by considering the inventory
level against historical inventory turnover days and checked
subsequent sales and usage information on a sample basis. We
also discussed with management about the potential obsolete
inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As at 31 March 2023, the Group’s investment properties
amounted to HK$497.4 million, representing 61% and 31% of the
Group’s total non-current assets and total assets, respectively.
Management appointed an external valuer to determine the fair
value of the Group’s investment properties during the year. The
valuation of investment properties was highly dependent on
estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to the rental
value, rental growth rate, market yield, market knowledge and
historical transactions.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 15 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We considered the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external valuer engaged by management. We involved
our internal valuation specialists to assist us in assessing the
valuation methodology and assumptions and our procedures
included comparing the rent and term periods against the
existing lease agreements and performing market research
on key valuation parameters such as the rental growth rate,
capitalisation rate and market rent of similar properties.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
Tax

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had tax payable of HK$57.6
million and deferred tax liabilities of HK$93.4 million, which
represented 40% of the Group’s total liabilities in aggregate. The
income tax credit amounted to HK$3.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2023. Management is required to make judgement
and estimates when determining the tax provision as the Group
operates in a number of tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity
of local and international tax legislation, judgements have to be
made by management on the tax treatment on transactions in
advance of the ultimate tax determination being certain. Where
the amount of tax payable or recoverable is uncertain, the
Group estimates provision based on management’s judgement
of the probable amount of the liability, or expected amounts
recoverable.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3, 10 and 24 to the
financial statements.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

We involved our tax specialists to review the tax provision of the
Group. We assessed management’s judgements in respect of
estimates of tax exposures by considering the associated fact
pattern and the Group’s correspondence with the relevant tax
authorities and recent developments in the tax jurisdictions which
may have an impact on existing tax exposures.
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B2 B AR S

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuead)

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

136

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continuead)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Lai Wan Fung, Jacky.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place,

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

30 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

m7|'\ j:ﬁ o i%

Year ended 31 March 2023 &% — & = F=H=+—HIFFZE

2023 2022
—E-= -
Notes Hff s HK$000 F#sx  HK$'000 BT
REVENUE Uz 5 1,061,974 842,687
Cost of sales #§ % a7 (972,351) (817,488)
Gross profit EF] 89,623 25,199
Other income and gains, net EL U A K Wz 5 28 5 38,531 28,793
Changes in fair value of investment properties
KREMEZ ATEES 15 (13,028) (20,096)
Distribution and selling expenses 23 §5 K i € B 2 (22,364) (19,650)
Administrative expenses 17 B 2 (74,852) (80,526)
Finance costs B4 & fl 2 6 (137) (30)
Share of profit of associates F& {4 B A 5% K1) 32,547 32,788
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX k& miiE+), (F548) 7 50,320 (33,522)
Income tax credit FTE Ik % 10 3,616 13,703
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR R & A, (K518) 53,936 (19,819)
Attributable to: 7% B :
Equity holders of the Company & A S @ IFHE A 53,410 (18,035)
Non-controlling interests JE3% & #E23 526 (1,784)
53,936 (19,819)
EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
ANBEEFEARGERRR (5Gi18) 11

Basic &7
— For profit/(loss) for the year —EPiEF] ~ (B5148)

HK7.92 cents&l

(HK2.69 centsEll)

Diluted #&
— For profit/(loss) for the year —F P F] ~ (B548)

HK7.91 cents&l

(HK2.69 centsE1ll)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
l|‘7|_ = éﬁl‘ly %%

Year ended 31 March 2023 8t —&E _=F =H=+—HIFFEZF

2023 2022
o= — = ——

—_—=— —_—

HK$’000 &7t  HK$000 TH 7T

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FE W% # ~ (B518) 53,936 (19,819)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) EMi2mE %, (B)

Other comprehensive income/(expense) that may be
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
B EEMYEEEaR Htt2ElE, (D)

Exchange differences: FE % Z=%8 :
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
MBEBIMEE R 2 B R AR (33,106) 14,200

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR
FEHME2EKE, ) (33,106) 14,200

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSE) FOR THE YEAR
FE2EWE, FIx) 48 20,830 (5,619)

Attributable to: % & IERE(S :

Equity holders of the Company &AATHEHIFH A 20,304 (3,835)
Non-controlling interests JEIERZ #E & 526 (1,784)
20,830 (5,619)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARG MBEANR

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2023 2022
—E-= -
Notes iz HK$'000 F#7x  HK$000 FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEfR#E E
Property, plant and equipment #12 i = K 2% 13 153,676 172,992
Right-of-use assets A E E 14 67,870 71,359
Investment properties & &) % 15 497,360 546,724
Investments in associates ¥ & A 5% & 16 96,520 63,973
Investments in club memberships EFF (£ E 1,800 1,845
Total non-current assets JE 7 BN & E 4228 817,226 856,893
CURRENT ASSETS #i#h& &
Inventories 7 & 17 171,572 209,008
Accounts receivable FEUT RIS 18 136,261 213,523
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TR RIE T R H MU ERTE 15,604 8,542
Due from an associate & W& A 518 16 54,409 64,705
Tax recoverable 7] Y [0] #7218 239 233
Cash and cash equivalents IR & &% RIIREEH 19 392,648 304,428
Total current assets i )& E 42 %8 770,733 800,439
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8 & &
Accounts payable &1 BRI 20 123,229 159,743
Accrued liabilities, other payables and contract liabilities
EstaE EtECRERSNERE 21 90,033 87,982
Bank borrowing $R17f& & 22 = 14,773
Lease liabilities A& & & 14 1,011 1,502
Tax payable F&1J 0 IE 57,610 60,743
Total current liabilities 7 8) & B 42 28 271,883 324,743
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

= AL APy
R IEIRR
31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H
2023 2022
—E-= =2
Notes izt HK$’000 F#757%  HK$'000 TH7T
NET CURRENT ASSETS SREh& & 3 E 498,850 475,696
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES
BEEEERRSEaE 1,316,076 1,332,589
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JEHREI & &
Lease liabilities fHE & & 14 1,593 2,569
Deposits received B W% % 6,466 6,937
Deferred tax liabilities R L IBEE 24 93,361 103,342
Total non-current liabilities 3R Eh & B 4848 101,420 112,848
Net assets B & F 8 1,214,656 1,219,741
EQUITY #E#f
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
KANBERFAE AEGER
Issued share capital B 21T 7~ 25 68,078 68,111
Reserves & 27 1,137,139 1,142,717
1,205,217 1,210,828
Non-controlling interests JEIZIE # &= 9,439 8,913
Total equity #2348 28 1,214,656 1,219,741

FyTT]

Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &35 i
Director %

Wong Hei-chiu &8

Director %

FEEEXERAR

AT F 2023 14



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

mAEmEER

Year ended 31 March 2023 #%2 _— & — =

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FZF=+—HILFEZE

AR HEE AEG
Shares
held under
Issued Share Capital share Share  Exchange Asset Non-
share premium  redemption award option  fluctuation  revaluation Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
BB
BT B4 Bx  REHEE BhRe ER BE R
(2 wEE EEEE  ERG HBE ORDEE BREEE  REEF =5 Bn  EalH
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER FER TER TEn FER FET FEL THET TET TER FET
At 1 April 2021 RZ2Z—EME—H 68,154 90,550 7,360 (9,440) 9,611 31,781 216,439 830,100 1,244,555 10,697 1,255,252
Loss for the year FERIEHE - - - - - - - (18,085) (18,035) (1,784) (19,819)
Exchange differences related to
foreign operations
HEMNEEEB R ERESE - - - - - 14,200 - - 14,200 - 14,200
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) for the year
FE2ENE/ (A% E8 - - - - - 14,200 - (18,035) (3,835) (1,784) (5,619)
Issue of shares from exercise of share
options (note 25)
TfeBREMETRA (Hz5) 31 264 - - (52) - - - 243 - 243
Shares granted under a
share award scheme (note 26)
RER DR B3 BE L RIA (W326) - - - 2,534 - - - - 2,534 - 2,534
Shares repurchased (note 25)
BRI (M3E25) (74) (700) 74 - - - - (74) (774) - (774)
Final 2021 dividend declared and paid (note 12)
BERRENZ-E-—FEFRERE
(Hizx12) - - - - - - - (10,084) (10,084) - (10,084)
Special 2021 dividend declared
and paid (note 12)
BERRRKIZZEZ—FERAIRE
(HizE12) - - - - - - - (8,740) (8,740) - (8,740)
Special 2022 dividend paid (note 12)
B2 2B EERAKRE (H12) - - - - - - - (18475 (13,475) - (18475
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
DR EURIAZ I ZAIE (HE26) - - - - 404 - - - 404 - 404
Share options lapsed (note 26)
BEMERE (f1:26) - - - - (8,440) - - 8,440 - - -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
l|‘7F = Emﬁ@]%

Year ended 31 March 2023 8t —&E _=F =H=+—HIFFEZF

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FAFREEE AR
Shares
held under
Issued Share Capital share Share  Exchange Asset Non-
share  premium redemption award option fluctuation revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account reserve scheme reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
3
BE{T ianl fRa  EEE iR iE ER BE JEiER

ks EER  RORG  AERG W NBEE  EMEE FRER a3 i EEAE
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 ~ HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx  FExn  FET  FEx  FEx  FEx  FExm TR  FEx  TEm  FEn

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022

RZBZZ&=A=+—Hk

ZE__EMA-H 68,111 90,114* 7,434* (6,906)* 1,523* 45,981*  216,439*  788,132* 1,210,828 8,913 1,219,741
Profit for the year & /9& 7| - - - - - - - 53,410 53,410 526 53,936
Exchange differences related to

foreign operations

HEMEEERBH ERER - - - - - (33,106) - - (33,106) - (33,106)
Total comprehensive income/

(expense) for the year

FE2EWE/ (B 858 - - - - - (33,106) - 53,410 20,304 526 20,830

Issue of shares from exercise of share

options (note 25)

TERREMETRN (F:i5) 112 932 - - (155) - - - 889 - 889
Shares granted under

share award schemes (note 26)

RER A RE B B R (F5E26) - - - 3,296 - - - - 3,296 - 3,296
Shares repurchased (note 25)
LR (HizE25) (145) (1,409) 145 - - - - (145) (1,554) - (1,554)

Final 2022 dividend declared
and paid (note 12)
BERREAZZZZZEEXBRE

(GEIR) - - = = - = - (13,486)  (13,486) - (13,486)
Interim 2023 dividend paid (note 12)
BRI ZZEZ=FERBKE (f512) - - - - - - - (12,167)  (12,167) = (12,167)
Special 2023 dividend paid (note 12)
BRkAZZFZ=FERBIRE (H12) - - - - - - - (3,380) (3,380) - (3,380)
Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
BB REEURIAE [T 2308 (E26) - - - - 487 - - - 487 - 487
At 31 March 2023
RZEZ=§=ZR=+-H 68,078 89,637* 7,579* (3,610)* 1,855* 12,875  216,439*  812,364* 1,205,217 9,439 1,214,656
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZERERANGEVBERIRZES
HK$1,137,139,000 (2022: HK$1,142,717,000) in the consolidated f“#1,137,139,0008 - (Z & - — F :

statement of financial position. 1,142,717,000% 7¢) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

m7|'\ Eﬁ-%/}lli%

Year ended 31 March 2023 8t —&E _=F =H=+—HIFFEZF

2023 2022
—EZ= . ——
Notes Bfi s+ HK$’000 F#7t  HK$000 FE T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
K EFHPMEZIREMRE
Profit/(loss) before tax B AIER], (E518) 50,320 (33,522)
Adjustments for: &L zH%E :
Finance costs f# & Y 7~ 6 137 30
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
MR B R EITE 7,13 27,569 29,568
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (B EZ EITE 7,14 3,081 3,611
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories
FERE (BERD) 7 (2,020) 8,570
Loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net
PEME -BERRBEE ZEBRFER 7 210 10
Amortisation of club memberships & Ffr & 55 ## 84 7 45 40
Fair value loss on revaluation of investment properties
EMREMEZ R TERE 7,15 13,028 20,096
Impairment allowance/(reversal of impairment) of
accounts receivable
FE BRI R B 815, CRIE D) 7 913 (1,234)
Interest income F] 2 UL A 7 (9,064) (1,963)
Equity-settled share option expense
MG E ERERS 7 487 404
Equity-settled share award expense
MiEmasE 2 IR R BRI 2 7 3,296 2,534
Share of profit of associates F& 1k B % A 5] % F) (82,547) (32,788)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes B X &8 > & £ 208 (1,426)
55,663 (6,070)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories 12 & />, (3&10) 39,456 (56,888)
Decrease/(increase) in accounts receivable
FEUW AR IE R/ (K h0) 76,349 (21,235)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
TER IR e R EH M EWEIRIEE (3,937) (857)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable
FEAT AR IBIE 0, CRizL) (36,514) 28,938
Increase in accrued liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
EstadE  HtEMRERSOEEEN 2,051 11,587
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received
Biszeigm, e (471) 1,691

144 Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mRIRERER

Year ended 31 March 2023 B E — & _ =& =H=+—HIFFZE
2023 2022
—E=F ==
Notes Bff 5 HK$’000 F#Jx  HK$'000 F & 7T
Cash from/(used in) operations A& & 18,/ (Fr ) IR& 132,597 (42,834)
Interest received B ULF] 2 5,941 1,832
Interest paid E13F S (137) (30)
Hong Kong profits tax paid B4 & & H 51 28 (2,000)
Overseas taxes paid B4 /89MNMR1E (1,849) (1,239)
Net cash flows from/(used in) operating activities
REEEME (TR 2ReNEFE8 136,580 (44,265)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
KEETHRAEZRERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment
BEYME BRERXREER 13 (12,116) (14,852)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment
HEWE BEMREEBEMRSHIE 279 -
Decrease in an amount due from an associate
FE U — R Bt i A B IR D 10,296 4,368
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with original maturity of
over three months when acquired
RIKERREINHESR=@A ZEHEFEIORL (8 (212,216) 144,021
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activities
BEEEE (FTA) 2REREFEHE (213,757) 133,537
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
RMELTHFAEZRERE
Dividends paid EfF IR & 19 (29,033) (32,299)
Issue of shares & 171D 25 889 243
Repurchase of shares B&[C] &5 25 (1,554) (774)
New bank loan ¥7R17 & 31(b) - 14,773
Repayment of bank loan (B2 R1TE N 31(b) (14,773) -
Principal portion of lease payments & {17 2 A& 2 5 31(b) (1,499) (903)
Net cash flows used in financing activities
MEEBFTA RS RNE R (45,970) (18,960)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS
ReRkERREBEHIEM (&) Fi8 (123,147) 70,312
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FHzREAERRETIER 156,073 85,489
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
PEEREE) 2 B EFRE (849) 272
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
l|‘7|_\ Eﬁ-%/}lli%

Year ended 31 March 2023 &% — & = F=H=+—HIFFZE

2023 2022
—E-= -
Notes FfizE HK$'000 F#7x  HK$000 FETT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR
FrRBEERERRTEE 32,077 156,073
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERERRESEB &G 22T
Cash and bank balances R & K& B1T45 6% 19 22,888 75,510
Time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months when acquired
RERREZHA DR =@P ZERFER 19 9,189 80,563
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
consolidated statement of cash flows
RERERERITZHEERERREIEE 32,077 156,073
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture
and trading of footwear and property investment.
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
detailed in note 34 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties
which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

2.1

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

RNEREEER

EEREHEEEBERARDANBRESM
RIZZERRAB - AAB 2T MM ERE
fiIf*Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda ©

FRAEREEREREFEBERURY)
ERE - ARAETEWNB AT ZFBHEN
AR MIEE34

B
IEEHMHFRECRESEGSLE (IF
BESEAE)) B2 EBMBREER
(IERAMBHREER - HBEMEEB
MHREEN -BBGER (EB G5
Q) k2B - BBLRBZERALUIK
BERERBRAIZRERERK - ILFMH
BRDLIRBEELRAZMGER  ERAF
B EZREMERII - MLEMFHRERU
B () 25 BB AEREN A
MIRBEAEREILZ TU#-
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continuea)

148

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March
20283. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the equity holders of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

150

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3,  Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Coniracts -
Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 1,
HKFRSs 2018-2020 HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are

described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and
Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
(the “Conceptual Framework”) issued in June 2018
without significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception to
its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should
refer to HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively
instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively
to business combinations that occurred on or after
1 April 2022. As there were no contingent assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of
the amendments arising in the business combination
that occurred during the year, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

31 March 2023 — & _ =
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

152

(b)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment any proceeds from selling items
produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items as determined by
HKAS 2 /nventories, in profit or loss. The Group has
applied the amendments retrospectively to items of
property, plant and equipment made available for
use on or after 1 April 2021. Since there was no sale
of items produced prior to the property, plant and
equipment being available for use, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous under
HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises
the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.,
direct labour and materials) and an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for
an item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract as well as contract management
and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to
the counterparty under the contract. The Group has
applied the amendments prospectively to contracts
for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1
April 2022 and no onerous contracts were identified.
Therefore, the amendments did not have any impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(d)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are applicable to the
Group are as follows:

° HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower
and the lender, including fees paid or received
by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment
prospectively from 1 April 2022. As there was no
modification or exchange of the Group’s financial
liabilities during the year, the amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

154

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

Amendments to HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?
Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contract®

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative
Information®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the "2020 Amendments’)?*

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants
(the "2022 Amendment”)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition,
as a consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39
rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1
January 2023

An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating
to the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall
apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

The Group is in process of making an assessment of the

impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application, but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised HKFRSs would have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

156

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of
the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount
of the associate upon loss of significant influence and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

24 BERGHBEREME @

ATE &

FERNRESREMREAFEFEERE
ME-AFEDTHESEERFELRE
BEFXZTHEBEMBERZ BRIEER
BEMEZNZER QA FEFENDRER
RHELBENBBER/ZIXSNEENE
BEETHN (EEXEHHERT) R
EENEERAEEZHTHETMFEL =
EURABETHABTERNEAZT
B-BENRRZATENRRRTES
HENEENEBEEERIRIUKSE R
EEENEITEMET &

FMBEEZ A TEFBASKTS2HA
EERBERARECAZEEENRER
BOARZEELRETRRARECLAZ
EEENRERARZHAMMIS2EERE
& R W o

AEBFMBERARATRBRARBRDH
BUHSEQAFEZGED X BEEA
HEAHRGARBERBE R DERATH
BREAHRE-

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 157



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing
a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of
the lease terms
and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, equipment 10% to 25%

and motor vehicles
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Investments in club memberships

The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the club memberships may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for club
memberships with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments in club memberships (continued)

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. Such club memberships are not
amortised. The useful life of a club membership with an
indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the statement of profit
or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an

investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Leasehold land 19 to 38 years
Buildings 3 to 4 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)

164

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The
lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Leases (continued)
(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of buildings (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases
of equipment that is considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is
accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in
which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of accounts receivable
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair value,
plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Accounts receivable that
do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS
15 in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI”) on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models are
classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

24 BERGHBEREME @

KREREMMBEE (&
WL EE R E (1B

AERERVBEENEFENIEENM
EREUBEEUELTRERE - EHRER
ANEEREAELSRERNEGNRER
E HEMBEE WAMERE - REHMN
TNBERFAEZHUHFEESEEBRAR
URAMBEENUNREGNRERERH
WM BEE MEAFESAREMEZE
WD ERFENTHFEESTA LR
GRS RERBERBNEEFTEAR
RAENMBEE KRN LA EBREAANST
EZMBEERATFES ABmDEKE

=
=

MHEEZPE—REBEHNZZH ElE
ERAEBENHEZEEZAHR TN
R —REENERBHE —RBEER
B E-—EHBRARNVEEZMBEEER

=

y

Iy
%
i

MBEEZHERSEBURINHEU T !

BB BRI B EE (BFELR)
REBIHNAFENYHFEERRERER
FRESHE WA RETE BEEER
IEFEER MERT SURER ) W M a1 B m
RHESD

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 167



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

168

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value
through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference
between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within
the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life
of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort, including historical and
forward-looking information. The Group considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within
the following stages for measurement of ECLs except for
accounts receivable which apply the simplified approach as
detailed below.

Stage 1 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 - Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that are
not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(out that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For accounts receivable that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For accounts receivable that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with
policies as described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings, other payables as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings and other payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable,
accrued liabilities, other payables and contract liabilities,
bank borrowing, lease liabilities and loans from non-
controlling shareholders.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either
the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Shares held under share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired and held by
the Company or the Group (treasury shares) are recognised
directly in equity at cost. No gain or loss is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue
or cancellation of the Group’s own equity instruments.
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178

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference
on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related assets, expenses or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipt in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
and associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group with a significant financial benefit for
more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of footwear products

Revenue from the sale of footwear products is recognised
at the point in time when control of the assets is transferred
to the customer, generally on delivery of the footwear
products.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Other income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over
the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the
Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of
the related goods or services to the customer).
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Related parties (continued)

(b)  (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services in exchange for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details of
which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited Annual Report 2023

24 EXGHBEHRE @

RIEAL @)
L) #

v) ZEEBAXEERALAEREAE
MEERBMESMNERILZ
BEBEAETE

Vi) ZERZ@QETEMNAIZES
S EZEH ;

(vii) 754\( VEEEMATHZERE
FENBZER (WZER
M!QTIEMEEA ;&

(viiy ZEBRBNZBERMBER ZF
AREABARERNEAER
BREEEFTEBEERE ABR
;%o

BABg 7 32 4 BYTRIA

AABREBRES B RRN RS
HPTEHAERNNEEZ EZBIFHER
ZEERZAERHEBNEE - AEH
WES (BEES) WEMURMN T
M MESFRHEKRFURREETR
(TUEmEEZRX5]) °

BEEETZURGEE XA
BD2REHHBEN A FEMmSE - 2 FE
ThHMNEEEMEE 2 EBEREE
PR BEHN I ERERM 260



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at
the end of each reporting period until the vesting date
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired
and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to
the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

24 BERGHBEREME @

MR 2 FBITRIA (2

NEmEE X5 A EREEN KR
/BBR TS A5 {4 JE A X 2 HA A P9 i 2 A R
maEtn R EEEH A RS - EHE D
iRl BEREMREINUBREE 2R
SHRHAX RIREEHE IR D K
FEENERRERBENRD TREMER
REMF - EE-—HBARERERAZN
PRECERR > Th R BR R 5T R ST IS AR B HA R
SRR EEH -

BERBzELARATFELAEBRE KR
FEHHBRIBEM  EREEMFFZ R EM
AT EREERNRRKERBENER
TREHBZEREGSZ MO -HIHRR
FERRBREREBZAFE MHERE
By B AR R B AR TS B R 2 A R E M fiF
frERRIER BRI - IR B IR RIRTE
BRIz A TET SR HZER R
FERTEIRBR, RNRRMEM

RRBEEEFTIHBRRR,SARBEET
BYRRRTEREZEZR/IL TS EDH
X o HRB IR —EMBUIERBIR M &
mMBAIFRBIRTEDEN ZHEFERXS
HERESERE ARREMAHEMKE
K/ SBRF R AR A o

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 185



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

186

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
maodification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee
as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions
within the control of either the Group or the employee are
not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award
on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards
are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as

additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)

Other employee benefits
Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Vietnam, Cambodia and Mainland China are required to
participate in a central pension scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and the Group recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continueq)
Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease terms
and constituting a major part of the economic life of the
commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially
all the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of these properties which are leased out and accounts for
the contracts as operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash
flows largely independently of the other assets held by
the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately
under a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions
separately. If the portions could not be sold separately, the
property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
made on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Provision for inventories

The estimation of the inventory provision requires significant
management judgement, which includes judgement about
the recoverability of the cost of inventories, the nature and
condition of inventories, the marketability of finished goods
and the future usage of raw materials.

Provision for expected credit losses on accounts
receivable

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
accounts receivable. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by customer type). The
provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix
to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-
looking information. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
accounts receivable is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for properties in the same location and
condition and subject to similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group considers
information from a variety of sources. The valuation of the
investment properties at fair value was highly dependent
on estimates and assumptions, such as those relating to
the rental value, rental growth rate, market yield, market
knowledge and historical transactions.

Further details, including the key assumptions used for fair
value measurement, a sensitivity analysis and the carrying
amount of investment properties, are given in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including the
right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting period.
Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists.
Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment when
there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less
costs of disposal and its value in use. The calculation of
the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
Further details, including the key assumptions used for the
impairment assessment, are given in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continueqd)
Tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
tax jurisdictions. Due to the complexity of local and
international tax legislation, judgements have to be made
by management on the tax treatment on transactions
in advance of the ultimate tax determination being
certain. Where the amount of tax payable or recoverable
is uncertain, the Group estimates provision based on
management’s judgement of the probable amount of the
liability, or expected amounts recoverable, which may be
materially different from the estimated provision. Further
details are included in note 10 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their business activities and has
two reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) manufacturing and sale of footwear products; and
(b)  property investment.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is
measured consistently with the Group’s profit/(loss) before
tax except that interest income, non-lease-related finance
costs and other unallocated income and gains/(losses),
net and unallocated expenses are excluded from the
measurement.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. SESEEE @
(continued)
Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and NWBEEFBEREAERAREEERE
other unallocated assets as these assets are managed on a MEDEBEE RZEBEETUEEREE
group basis. BEIRo
Segment liabilities exclude unallocated liabilities as these NHEEFEERIEEE EBREEE
liabilities are managed on a group basis. TDUEEEEER
The segment information for the year ended 31 March 2023 BE_Z_—F-RA=+—HIEEND
is disclosed as follows: EERHFENT
Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
HERHEREER MERE o)
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
e “ETTF —E-= “ECCE e “ETTE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAET TAT THERT TAT
Segment revenue
SE
Sales to external customers
HEFIRER 1,061,974 842,687 - - 1,061,974 842,687
Rental income & WA - - 28,207 24,822 28,207 24,822
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4. BEDPIHEE @

(continued)
Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
RERHERTER MERE =8
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
ZEZ= T Z%BCZE= T F  IZBZE= _ECCfF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET TAT FAET FTAET TET
Segment results & ¥4 40,712 (25,507) 11,809 1,181 52,521 (24,326)
Unallocated income and
gains/(loss), net
FOBRMARYE/ (B5#B) 28 230 (150)
Interest income ¥ E WA 9,064 1,963
Unallocated expenses & BB 2 (11,493) (11,009)
Finance costs (other than interest
on lease liabilities)
REME (HEEEZHERMN (2 -
Profit/(loss) before tax
BrigalER (§598) 50,320 (33,522)
Income tax credit
PrEmER 3,616 13,703
Profit/(loss) for the year
FERR/ (B8 53,936 (19,819)
Assets and liabilities E& & & &
Segment assets DI E E 688,006 802,955 500,414 546,724 1,188,420 1,349,679
Unallocated assets kDB & E 399,539 307,653
Total assets BEBE 1,587,959 1,657,332
Segment liabilities 3 ZE & 187,483 258,447 99,700 110,046 287,183 368,493
Unallocated liabilities k2 & 1& 86,120 69,098
Total liabilities & E48%8 373,303 437,591
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31 March 2023 — & —=#=H=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, EEHEN @
(continued)
Manufacturing and sale
of footwear products Property investment Consolidated
HERHEHEER MELE Eode)

2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
—EC-= g IZEZ= 2 IZEZ= EICE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FTHET TET TET TAERT TAET

Other segment information

Htt 7 B E#

Depreciation: #7% :
Segment 3 & 27,569 29,568 - - 27,569 29,568
Unallocated &7 ¢ - _

27,569 29,568

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

TREEENE 3,081 3,611 - - 3,081 3,611
Capital expenditure*

BAREZ 12,116 14,852 - - 12,116 14,852
Share of profit of associates

FEL S N B F| (32,547) (32,788) - - (32,547) (32,788)
Impairment allowance/(reversal of

impairment) of accounts receivable

FEURBRERE (AERED) 913 (1,234) - - 913 (1,234)
Fair value loss on revaluation of

investment properties

ERRENEZ AT EBE - - 13,028 20,096 13,028 20,096
Provision/(write-back of provision)

for inventories

FERE/ (BERRE) (2,020) 8,570 - - (2,020) 8,570
Loss on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment, net

HENE -BERREBEZ

R38R 210 10 - - 210 10
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant * BEARTHAEYE HEAREHAMR

and equipment.
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31 March 2023 — & —=#=H=+—H
4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. EESHEH @
(continued)
Geographical information & &
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KESNIFREEHIW
2023 2022
—EBEZ=F —E2-
HK$’000 T+ & T HK$'000 F#& 7T
The United States of America EF/E & R & 396,361 374,444
Europe EUM 239,080 204,678
Asia T2 161,987 109,956
Others EAh 264,546 153,609
1,061,974 842,687
The revenue information above is based on the LR BE R UE R ER A kiR o
locations of the customers.
(b) Non-current assets (b) FETEEE
2023 2022
HK$’000 F#757  HK$'000 FHET
Hong Kong & % 51,277 54,712
Mainland China H7 5 79 #f 461,527 511,597
Cambodia IEE 66,364 71,318
Vietnam #3 139,486 153,159
Others Eh 252 289
718,906 791,075
The non-current asset information above is based on LIRS EEERUEEMETES
the locations of the assets and excludes investments RiB > BRARPRBEATDNKREK
in associates and club memberships. BTEEEo
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)
Information about major customers

Revenue derived from the manufacturing and sale of
footwear products business with over 10% of the total
revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 March
2023 and 2022 is as follows:

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H
SESHER @
FEFRER

BE_TZ_-—FRBI_F=ZA=+—
HEFERN GXREERRKREBIEI0%Z
RERHEEBEEREFMEEN W@ N
T

2023 2022
—E_= —EF
HK$’000 +#&J7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Customer A B FA 669,530 545,674
Customer B & FB 342,085 208,968
1,011,615 754,642

The above amounts include sales to a group of entities
which are known to be under common control with these
customers.

FHEEEERN—HER EFERE L]
ZRHRFEES) BIIHELE

=
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,
NET

(a) Revenue

5. Yw=-

(@ W

AN A R W 5 88
2023 2022
—E-= ———

HK$’000 &7 HK$' 000 T8 7T

Revenue from contracts with customers
REEFEREHZWNEG

Sale of goods SHE & &

1,061,974 842,687

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

All the revenue from contracts with customers
are recognised at a point in time. The revenue
information disaggregated by geographical
market is disclosed in note 4(a) to the financial
statements.

Revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that was included in contract liabilities at
the beginning of the reporting period:

@

72 il B

BEREHNNFAEREENE
11 B 5] B R 50 o ¥tz fh 35 0 4
B9 U o B LR B #S 3R R M 54 (a)
o

RSB RERDIW RN RS
Bt ABERE:

2023 2022
—— = —=——

—_—— _—

HK$’000 F+#&t  HK$'000 T8

4= @O

Sale of goods HE & &

1,575 915

(ij) Performance obligation

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of goods and payment is generally due
within 30 to 90 days from delivery.
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31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, 5. W= HthUW A B W= 358 @)
NET (continued)

(b) Other income and gains, net (b) HWAKRUEFEEE

2023 2022
it S —E-=

—_—=—

HK$’000 &7t  HK$ 000 TH 7T

Bank interest income $R1TF B Uk A 9,064 1,923
Interest income from accounts receivable f& U RIS 2 FI| UL A - 40
Loss on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment, net

HEME -BEMIHEE 2B FEE (210) (10)

Gross rental income T8 & U A 42 58 28,207 24,822
Foreign exchange differences, net [ R Z 8% & 158 1,523
Subsidy income* ##BE UL A* 1,104 -
Others Eh 208 495
38,531 28,793

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies * i 4% 75 fRD LEE 478 Al Y R 5 AR 14 B B

relating to these subsidies. AEIHo
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. BB
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MEREANDTWT
2023 2022
—E-=F -

HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 TH 7T

Interest on bank loans $IRITE& 2 FI 8 2 -
Interest on lease liabilities TR E&E 2 B 135 30
137 30
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31 March 2023 —E_=F=H=+—H
7. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRIRENEF (8518)
The Group’s profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after KREBHBRR AR, (B518) TH &0,
charging/(crediting): GTA) UTFIER :
2023 2022
—E=F =
HK$'000 F#7t  HK$000 FE T
Cost of inventories sold $H & 72 5 B 2 636,119 479,704
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
W RE R HITE 27,569 29,568
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {F A& EITE 3,081 3,611
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories*
FE#RE ((BEEER) (2,020) 8,570
Lease payment not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
Rt AHEABESIENHENR 696 702
Impairment allowance/(reversal of impairment) of accounts receivable
FEWBRIE R E#H, (REREE) 913 (1,234)
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net
HEME -BERREEE ZEHEEFE 210 10
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 2§ EHEN 4 1,816 1,945

Employee benefit expense (including directors’
remuneration (note 8)):

EERNAX (BRESME (5E8)) -

Wages and salaries T#& K& 267,760 266,567
Equity-settled share option expense M4 E 2 BB 487 404
Equity-settled share award expense MU 545 & 2 G0 82 EhET 2 3,296 2,534
Pension scheme contributions 3B k& 512 {t =k 19,979 15,097

291,522 284,602
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX (continued)

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H

bR EER (B518) @

2023 2022

- = = — —

—_— —— [ p—

HK$’000 +#&57t  HK$'000 T#& 7T

Amortisation of club memberships* & Ffr & £5 {8 §4*

Fair value loss on revaluation of investment properties
BEREMEZ A TERBIE

Bank interest income $R17 % 8 W A

Interest income from accounts receivable FEUTERIE Z F| B UL A

Foreign exchange differences, net B 72 = 2838

Direct operating expenses (including repairs and maintenance)

arising from rental-earning investment properties

BRI REVEMEE EREERST (BEEERRE)

45 40
13,028 20,096
(9,064) (1,923)

= (40)
(158) (1,523)
3,370 3,545

Cost of sales includes HK$248,503,000 (2022:
HK$248,030,000) relating to direct staff costs and
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for
each of these types of expenses.

Provision for inventories is included in “Cost of sales” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

* Amortisation of club memberships is included in
“Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

HERASOFEBREEE TR AR SR
W37 B $£248,508,00058 75 (T - —F
248,030,000 7T) » HIMEB RN U LIFE
MERAERE - S EERZ Ao

* FERFESTAGERaRZHERAE
e

o EEEBEEARSEERZITH
FZIAe
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202

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (The “Stock Exchange”,
the “Listing Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EFME

FR EFWERREBHRERZMAR
ANE) (THEAZPT) B EHRR (TEHR
A1) ~ BB RBFRGIZE383(1)(@) ~ () ~ (c)A(f)
HR(RE RBEESFEER) RO H280
WEWMT

2023 2022
g = =
HK$000 F#sx  HK$'000 FHBiT
Fees #85&

— Independent non-executive directors — I8 JEHITES 624 576
- Non-executive directors —3F#1TE SE 912 912
— Executive directors —HI{TEE 552 552
2,088 2,040

Other emoluments: E fthffi 4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & ~ 2B R EYIF & 2,944 3,275
Discretionary bonuses € 8% 274 274
Pension scheme contributions & k4 5t 2| =% 36 36
Equity-settled share option expense M 45 8 > BEIS R X 295 164
3,549 3,749
5,637 5,789

During the year and in prior years, certain directors were
granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company,
further details of which are set out in note 26 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has
been recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above directors’ remuneration
disclosures.
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(@) Independent non-executive directors (a)

8. EEMET®
BUERITES
ERNEZAFBIERTEE BEH

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

T

Allowances
and benefits

Equity-settled
share option

Total

Fees in kind expense remuneration

= 4194 MigEmgE 2
2023 e BRI fERIER W&
“E-=fF HK$'000 % HK$000 T HK$000 F#E7T HKS000 FHT
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 383 [E ¢ 4 192 - 29 221
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F3 1% 4% 192 - 29 221
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FREE % + 192 - 29 221
Mr. Wong Hin-wing & B 28 5t 4+ 48 - - 48
624 - 87 711

Allowances Equity-settled
and benefits share option Total
Fees in kind expense remuneration

LN DEGREREZ
2022 ok BMA & R R il 48 %8
B & HK$'000 F#mr  HK$'000 FAE7r  HKE000 F#Em  HKS'000 FHET
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 383 [E ¢ 4 192 - 12 204
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 7 F31 %4 192 - 12 204
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel FREE % + 192 - 12 204
576 - 36 612

FREEEMEMNBIIFATESTZ

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year s (CE- 2% ) o
(2022: Nil).
* Mr. Wong Hin-wing had been appointed as an * BEREER S =F—HA—H

ELERBIUIFNITES

independent non-executive director on 1 January
2023.
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31 March 2023 —FE =& =H=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM=w
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors b) BITESERIEHITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses contributions expense remuneration
g 2R Bhe  UESDLEE

ik BWHE REiks sEfR 2ERERS AL
2023 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b a5 FAT FAT FAT TAT FAT TAT

Executive directors: H1TE%

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
ERBUT - - - - - -
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares” FRZE5E 5 4 372 1,031 101 18 9 1,531
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu E12#8 % % 180 1,736 143 18 82 2,159
552 2,767 244 36 91 3,690

Non-executive directors: FH{TES :

Mr. Ghan Ho-man, Daniel B35 304 360 143 30 - 59 592
Dr. Ghow Wing-kin, Anthony [k #1& 1 192 - - - 29 221
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian & %% 360 34 - - 29 423
912 177 30 - 17 1,236
1,464 2,944 274 36 208 4,926
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31 March 2023 —ZE=-=#=F=+—H
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM=w
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors b) BITEZRIERITESE (@)
(continueq)
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits  Discretionary scheme  share option Total
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions expense  remuneration
e 2R Bhe  DlEREE
ik BRI NEgke A 2ERERZ B ke
2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ETE TER TET TER TAL TATL TEL
Executive directors: HifTE%
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
ERBuL - - - - - -
Mr. Ghen Yi-wu, Ares™ BZE £ 74 372 1,028 101 18 37 1,556
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu & &85 % 180 1,734 143 18 42 2,117
552 2,762 244 36 79 3,673
Non-executive directors: FH{TES :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel (73 5 4 360 141 30 - 25 556
Dr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony Bk B8+ 192 - - - 12 204
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1R {655 % 360 372 - - 12 744
912 513 30 - 49 1,504
1,464 3,275 274 36 128 5,177
* Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares is the chief executive of the * FBRISEESAE A AREEITHMER
Group.
There was no arrangement under which a director EEMERERN LEAZHRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during REEREAAME (T2
the year (2022: Nil). fm®) o
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two (2022: two) directors of the Company, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2022:
three) highest paid employees who are not directors are as
follows:

haEEHES

FRLARSHESEERATME CF
TTHE I mR) BEF HNEFBRHN LEX
MeEg - RFEHGB =% (T __F: =
Y IFEFZESHEEZMEFBUT

2023 2022

—_——— R

HK$’000 +#77t  HK$'000 FETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ ~ 2 Y R SV & 4,513 4,733
Discretionary bonuses B E 3 % 747 810
Equity-settled share option expense MM H 458 ~ BE IS HERT X 68 72
5,328 5,615
The remuneration of the remaining three (2022: three) HBpR=% (CZ2ZZF . =4%) FEH2

non-director highest paid employee fell within the bands
of HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000, HK$1,000,001 to
HK$1,500,000 and HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 (2022:
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 and HK$3,000,001 to
HK$3,500,000).

During the year and in prior years, share options were
granted to non-director highest paid employees in respect
of their services to the Group, further details of which
are included in the disclosures in note 26 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options, which has been
recognised in the statement of profit or loss over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director highest paid
employee’s remuneration disclosures.
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31 March 2023 —FE =& =F=+—H
10. INCOME TAX 10. FRiSH#
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of EEMERDIBEFRNRE BRI G
16.5% (2022: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits FEER A IZ16.5% (ZE-"F : 16.5%)
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits ZHEBE At ERRAERRERN 2
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates MIEBNRAERREEBERR B4
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the a2 ZBRFMETH
Group operates.
2023 2022

HK$’000 +#&7x  HK$'000 FE T

Current — Hong Kong BNEAFR 1B — & &

Charge for the year A EERIEL H 10 208
Underprovision/(overprovision) in prior years
BEEERETRE (BREEE) (11) 604
Current — Elsewhere BN HB#R 18 — H fihith &
Charge for the year A EERIBEL H 5,000 5,000
Overprovision in prior years 81+ F E B a1 (6,300) (16,000)
Deferred (note 24) 3&3E (Ki5£24) (2,315) (3,515)
Total tax credit for the year R IEIE S48 %E (3,616) (13,703)
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

208

=5=+—4

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for the
countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and the
majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax credit at
the effective tax rate is as follows:

10. FREM @

BEARNBRERBOHBABMEERAR,
B A& 2 AERMEFEBBAN BRR AR
Rl (F518) 2MIBEZH, (E%R) HIRER
MEABZRIBRE ZHROT ¢

2023 2022
HK$000 F#x  HKS$'000 FHEiT
Profit/(loss) before tax BRI BTE A, (B518) 50,320 (33,522)
Tax at the applicable tax rates 2 BRER X E 2 R1E 10,042 (2,526)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years
BEFEERERZH AR (6,311) (15,396)
Profit attributable to associates B & /2 5 FE(L % F) (6,509) (6,558)
Income not subject to tax B ZERF WA (2,828) (1,085)
Expenses not deductible for tax A A 3170 2 B 5,516 11,773
Tax losses utilised from previous year #B1= F E B AR IBE 18 (3,526) (850)
Tax losses not recognised Sk FEERIRIE S 18 - 939
Tax credit at the Group’s effective rate
BAEEBEEMREFE REBER (3,616) (13,708)

The share of tax attributable to associates amounting to
HK$3,853,000 (2022: HK$4,238,000) is included in “Share
of profit of associates” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2022: 16.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rates of 15% to 20% (2022: 15% to 20%),
the Cambodia Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2022: 20%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 20% (2022: 20%), the
Corporate Income Tax rate in Mainland China of 25%
(2022: 25%) and the respective tax holidays granted to the
subsidiaries of the Group in Cambodia (2022: Cambodia).
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10. INCOME TAX (continued)

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), a 10% withholding tax is levied
on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies
to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
For the Group, the applicable rates are 5% and 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated.

In addition, pursuant to Cambodian withholding tax
regulations, a 14% withholding tax is levied on dividends
declared to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group
is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Cambodia in respect of
earnings generated.

At 31 March 2023, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the
Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China and
Cambodia. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with undistributed profit of Mainland
China and Cambodia subsidiaries for which deferred tax
liabilities have not been recognised totalled approximately
HK$49,570,000 (2022: HK$32,239,000) at 31 March 2023.

The Group has estimated tax losses of approximately
HK$72,372,000 (2022: HK$81,718,000) arising in Hong
Kong that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries
that have been loss-making for some time and it is
considered not probable that the Group can utilise these
losses in the foreseeable future.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

10. FRI8M @

BEREARLME (PR BERER
Eo P EAMA I SN E R ERINE K
BEEERZKRERHEUI0%TRINMN - &
RMER—_TZNF-—A—HEEN LE
AR-ZZEZLtFE+_B=+—HRBREEZ
B o i [ Py 3t S Sh 3% B B P B ) OA
BEZBEURBHEA AEAREZ
RIIME -pAERMS  BRARNERE%
Fe10% o 7 & [ (A T 28 mi 5S A B P9 3 Bl 12
ZWBRBMELEZ B FTIKEZKR BB
MFEIOM -

LESh > iR IR SR FE TR MRARG] > B IEA M=
RRREIRZRKRER B EUKI4%TRIR
EE > FEBERNREFEA L ZHEAR
Bl EE 2 BFFTIKE 2 RS BIMTAINIR

RIEZI=F=ZA=+—H> > mEMLE
[ 5% A [ P th e B 37 2R A A 2 B B A B FE
fi%&%%é?ﬂ%ﬁlei&Eﬁ%uz;@fﬂﬁmWﬁ
RIRIERIB - EER A ZEMBLANRAR
HaJET\kTﬁE’ﬁ,)&ﬁEaﬁbﬂ PR =
FZA=+—B > P EANM R RFE
MEARZ RERIELERBEEEZ RDIK
AR 2 B E RS H4949,570,000
T (CB T 32,239,000587T) ©

AERBGBAREREECRNBESHENS
72,372,000 (ZEZ "4 : 81,718,000
BIT)  ZEBEAERRREREREH
Bz ABHEBERERR AN HIRZEWS
NE—EREBEHER BAEBRETHRER
FRZEEBRZUEEAA WL ENS
R IERRIEERIEEE
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

11. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share (2022:
basic loss per share) amounts is based on the profit for
the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$53,410,000 (2022: loss of HK$18,035,000), and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
674,173,100 (2022: 671,566,334) in issue during the year,
as adjusted to reflect the number of shares of 4,808,000
(2022: 7,798,000) held under the share award scheme of
the Company and shares of 1,446,000 (2022: 740,000)
repurchased during the year and cancelled during the year
(2022: subsequent to the year end date).

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per
share is based on the following data:

1. ZREETFHEARGSRET

/ (E518)

EREXARH (CE__F EREXE
%a) SN RBEEAD BB AEGE

@ 453,410,000 c (CE - " F | k5
T518 035,000 7T) RERNRDE1T E.Lﬁy
Dufr&‘iiﬁ%wm 173,100fk (Z& - —
671,566,3340%) st & > Iﬁ«ﬁ”u&ﬂ%ﬁﬁf
A B B BR 19 H5 B 51 B P % 8 B0 R 19 B B
4,808,00008 (ZZE =4 : 7,798,00008) &
PENEEREN CR—F  FEEB)
#91,446,0008% (ZZ = Z 4 : 740,0008%) A%
70

SREXKREERF], (BER) THIEUTH
BEtE

2023 2022
HK$'000 T35 HK$'000 T8t
Earnings/(loss) &),/ (E518)
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR RFE AEBEERN (E518) 53,410 (18,035)

Number of shares

i & B
2023 2022

Shares &%
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating

the basic earnings/(loss) per share

SEESRERET (BB MAZEBRIMETHH 674,173,100 671,566,334
Effect of dilution-weighted average number of ordinary shares:

BETE-ZERMETEE:
Share options B & 1 695,502 N/AT 48
Share awards B& 17 42 &h 222,112 N/AT & A
Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating

the diluted earnings/(loss) per share

STEEREERT (BB MR EBRINETHH 675,090,714 N/AT 8 A

For the year ended 31 March 2022, no adjustment has
been made to the basic loss per share amount presented
in respect of the potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue
during the year as the impact had an anti-dilutive effect on
the basic loss per share amount presented.
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12. DIVIDENDS

Notes to Financial Statements
AT e R M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H
12. IRR
2023 2022
—g-= L —

_—— —

HK$’000 +#&7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Dividends paid during the year & /B k1% 2

Final in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022 -
Nil (2021: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share
ﬁﬁi_g__i B=+—HLMBFENREARE
—EREBRE CZET—F 11.58MW)

Special final in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2022 —
HK2.0 cents (2021: HK1.3 cents) per ordinary share
MBE_E__F=-A=+—HLEMBEEFEN
BRIFRAKRE —SREER2.0EBWL (CEZ—F 1 1.381)

Interim — HK1.8 cents (2022: Nil) per ordinary share
RHRE-—SREERISEW(CEI2F . 5)

Special interim — HKO0.5 cent (2022: HK2.0 cents) per
ordinary share

R B —SREBIR0.SEI (TEZ —F 1 2.081l)

13,486

12,167

3,380

10,084

8,740

13,475

29,033

32,299

Proposed final and special final dividends
BRI RS R R AR 2
Final — HK2.0 cents (2022' Nil) per ordinary share
FERE-—SREBER2.08BWLCEZZF:5)
Special final - HKO.2 cent (2022: HK2.0 cents) per
ordinary share

FRIRARE —EREBER2BWL (T 2F 1 2.0%)

13,616

1,361

13,595

14,977

13,595

The proposed final and special final dividends for the year
is subject to the approval of the Company’s shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial
statements do not reflect the dividends payable.

AEERKKRARFGHRBREAEERR
BIRERIN AR BRITZRRBFRG LHE
%> HEIFE -RFYMBRRILERREN

R o
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

212

13. ME -BWERRE

Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and and motor Construction
buildings vehicles in progress Total
e RA -
RE-HEME
T RIEF RERSE TEIRE aF
31 March 2023 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E”_=f=H=+—H THT FTHT FET FHET
Cost: 78
At 1 April 2022 PZE - Z&ENA—H 259,620 353,695 - 613,315
Additions K& - 10,923 1,193 12,116
Disposals H%& - (10,016) - (10,016)
Write-off #fi - 2 - 2)
Exchange realignment 4 552 (4,306) (4,569) - (8,875)
At 31 March 2023 W _E - =F=B=+—H 255,314 350,031 1,193 606,538
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
REtERBE :
At 1 April 2022 R_E_-__"FHWHBE—H 130,237 310,086 - 440,323
Depreciation provided during the year
FAHEITE 10,822 16,747 - 27,569
Disposals & - (9,527) - (9,527)
Write-off #fi - 2 - 2
Exchange realignment 9 EE 528 (1,794) (3,711) - (5,505)
At 31 March 2023 RZZE-=F=F=+—H 139,265 313,597 - 452,862
Net book value: BE B3 (& :
At 31 March 2023
RZE_=F=H=+—H 116,049 36,434 1,193 153,676
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31 March 2023 —ZE=-=#=F=+—H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ME - -BERRE®
(continued)
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Land and and motor
buildings vehicles Total
R A
mEHEYE
THIRIEF KERAE =5
31 March 2022 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
—E-__F=ZB=+—H THET TAET THET
Cost: A7~ :
At 1 April 2021 RZ_E_-_—FMWA—H 256,785 337,263 594,048
Additions RE - 14,852 14,852
Disposals & - (1,232) (1,232)
Write-off #fi$H4 - (513) (513)
Exchange realignment %) [F& 58 %2 2,835 3,325 6,160
At 31 March 2022 R & _-_"_F#=HA=+—H 259,620 353,695 613,315
Accumulated depreciation and impairment:
Kt MERAE :
At 1 April 2021 R -_ZE_-_—FMB8—H 117,147 291,630 408,777
Depreciation provided during the year
FRHRITE 11,888 17,680 29,568
Disposals tH& - (1,222) (1,222)
Write-off {24 - (513) (513)
Exchange realignment 4h & 582 1,202 2,511 3,713
At 31 March 2022 R -_E_-__F#=H=+—H 130,237 310,086 440,323
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 March 2022 A &2 - _"F&=H=+—H 129,383 43,609 172,992

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 213



Notes to Financial Statements
B TSR R MIEE

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

14. LEASES
The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various leasehold land
and buildings. Lump sum payments were made upfront
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 19 to 38 years, and no ongoing payments will
be made under the terms of these land leases. Lease of
buildings have lease terms of 3 to 4 years. There is a lease
contract that includes an extension option, which is further
discussed below.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use

14. A8

FERR/EBEA

AEEMZHEBAEIMAEFIEHEES
e BIRAFE—RENMRMUBBER E K
BHEHRR19EFEMAE LM W HIR
BRELHBENFERAIEERENMN
BFEENEMAIE4F -ZEEEAT
BEEREER HE—DHRU T

() EAREE
ERAEE EAREEREERS

assets and the movements during the year are as BT
follows:
Leasehold
land Building Total
HE T BF AaF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
As at 1 April 2021 RZZE_—FWA—H 69,762 819 70,581
Addition R"E - 4,087 4,087
Depreciation charged during the year
FRITEX W (2,678) (933) (3,611)
Exchange realignment % B 582 301 1 302
As at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022
RIE_Z_H=A=+—HK
2B —H 67,385 3,974 71,359
Depreciation charged during the year
FRITEXLH (2,066) (1,015) (3,081)
Exchange realignment 4h B& 35 %8 (429) 21 (408)
As at 31 March 2023
RZZEZ=%=A=+—H 64,890 2,980 67,870
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H
14. LEASES (continued) 14. 188 @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEREBEA (B
(b) Lease liabilities ) HEAE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FNHEAGREEREHNT !
movements during the year are as follows:
2023 2022

HK$’000 F+#7x HK$'000 FE T

Carrying amount at 1 April A E —HZEREE 4,071 930
New lease #HE - 4,087
Accretion of interest recognised during the year

FRERIF EIEE 135 30
Payments It &% (1,634) (933)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 582 32 (43)
Carrying amount at 31 March R =B =+—HZKEE 2,604 4,071

Analysed into: D47 :

Current portion BVEREE 7> 1,011 1,502
Non-current portion JEENHEEE 3 1,593 2,569
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in EESREIEE DT HRERW

note 32 to the financial statements. FE32IREE ©
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31 March 2023 —&E _—=#F=H=+—H
14. LEASES (continuead) 14. 88 @
The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBELEAEAN B
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to (c) EREBENEmTERNEEEUT

leases are as follows:

2023 2022

f— —— — = — —

—_—— _

HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Interest on lease liabilities A& & &2 ) 8
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets A B EFTER
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in administrative expenses)
B EAR 2B GtATTEHAS)
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
(included in administrative expenses)

HEBEEEMERM A Gt ATTHAN

135 30
3,081 3,611

690 695

Total amount recognised in profit or loss 718 SR V4R EE

3,912 4,343

(d) Extension options: (d)

The Group has a lease contract that includes an
extension option. This option is negotiated by
management to provide flexibility in managing the
leased-asset portfolio and it is aligned with the
Group’s business needs. Set out below are the
undiscounted potential future rental payments relating
to periods following the exercise date of extension
option that is not included in the lease term:

AEENEREEREERNEES
MoZEERHBHEEEERUNE
EHEEEEAGRRHELEREARN
GAREENEBER - BAREINHE
EfRMPEREEENTEEAN
BEE AR R R BT RREEN
MEFIWMT

2023 —EZ=
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total
REFNRER REFHEM Mt
HK$’000 F# T HK$’000 &t HK$’000 &7
Extension options expected not to be exercised
st TR EREEE 884 5,640 6,524
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31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

14. 1§ »

The Group as a lessee (continued) TEBEAEBAA &)
(d) Extension options: (continued) (d) BHEEERE: (B
2022 BT F
Payable Payable
within after
five years five years Total
RAEFENEN RAFBEMN HEEt
HK$'000 &7  HK$000 FHEmx  HKE000 FET
Extension options expected not to be exercised
BRI AR ERE 906 5,781 6,687
The Group as a lessor FEBEAEHBEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 15)
consisting of three (2022: three) commercial properties and
four (2022: four) industrial properties in Hong Kong and
Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants to pay
security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental
income recognised by the Group during the year was
HK$28,207,000 (2022: HK$24,822,000), details of which
are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2023, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

AEERESEHEZHHBELEY X
(MF3E15) » BIEUNEERFPE A
CE(CECCF D) mEYERNE

TEITF I MIE) TEME-REKR
M—RERBEEZMNFREETRBEFN
WITHRERAE AEBRNRFRERHN
AU A %28,207,0008 70 (B -4 .
24,822,000/ 7) » HeF F N M B KM
5E50

R_IE_=F=A=+—H > AEE®X
FEAERIE R EA AT LA A B AR
FHEMRIREWHEERIENT ¢

2023 2022

HKS'000 T HKS'000 T B

Within one year —&F & 14,292 15,833
After one year but within two years —F BB M E K - 1,151
14,292 16,984
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

218

15. REYE

2023 2022

2= B
HK$'000 F#7  HK$000 FETT
Fair value at beginning of year IR E#] 2 A& 546,724 547,653
Fair value loss on revaluation EfH A FEEE (13,028) (20,096)
Exchange realignment 4h & 582 (36,336) 19,167
Fair value at 31 March ®=B=+—HZA¥& 497,360 546,724

The Group has determined that the investment properties
consist of two classes of assets, i.e., commercial and
industrial, based on the nature, characteristics and risks of
each property.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on
31 March 2023 based on valuations performed by
Castores Magi (Hong Kong) Limited, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at HK$497,360,000 (2022:
HK$546,724,000). There has been no change from the
valuation technique used in prior years.

Each year, the Group appoints an external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria of an external valuer include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group
discusses with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is
performed for interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2023 — & —=#=H=+—H
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REWZE @
Fair value hierarchy NTEERER
The fair values of the Group’s investment properties as RZEZ=—F=B=+—HBKRZZE_Z
at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are estimated by —A=t+—"B rEBEZREMEZLATF
using significant unobservable inputs and the fair value BNEREARTHREBASEG A
measurements are categorised within Level 3. FTEFAEDEAE =R
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRFE—REAE R EEERATF
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no Bt TESAFZHAEE=_RHEL
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil). (CE2ZZF |-
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised RAFEBRE-SNDPEATESE
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: HER
Commercial Industrial
properties properties Total
HEME TEME =]

HK$'000 F#7c HK$'000 F#7x HK$'000 &t

Carrying amount at 31 March 2021

RIE_—F=RB=+—HZKEE 64,617 483,036 547,653
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised

in profit or loss

REGPHERZEHATEER (7,202) (12,894) (20,096)
Exchange realignment 91 55 %2 1,189 17,978 19,167

Carrying amount at 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022
RIBEZ-_F=A=+—HK

TEITFNME—HZERAEE 58,604 488,120 546,724
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised in profit or loss

REmPHERZEHATFEER (5,683) (7,345) (13,028)
Exchange realignment 9h & 55 %2 (1,981) (34,355) (36,336)

Carrying amount at 31 March 2023
R_EBE_=F=B=+—HZKREE 50,940 446,420 497,360
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31 March 2023 —FE =& =H=+—H
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15. REME @
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RFEERBHR #E)
Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques UTAREMEGEMERZEER EK
used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment FTEMABIEZBE !
properties:
Significant
Class of property Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
YRR HESE ERTIHRE AR |
2023 2022
—E=F s
Commercial Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$105 to HK$107 to
properties approach (per square metre and HK$209 HK$295
[EEZVES WABAREE per month) 1058 T E 1078 TTE
HEtHEEE 209% 7T 2957 7T
(BYHARKREA)
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
e REE
Market yield 2.7% - 4.6% 2.7% - 4.4%
5 W =
Industrial properties Income capitalisation Estimated rental value HK$19 to HK$24 to
TEYE approach (per square metre and HK$99 HK$102
WAEARILE per month) 198 TTE 24BLE
EEtEEEE 997 7T 102787
(GEHKREH)
Rental growth rate 1% 1%
e REX
Market yield 3% - 8% 8%
35 W A 2

EAEEEE (BFTAARAKRER) REEE
RERBEB LA (TE) RERKREY
EZNTEREBLEFA (FK w5l
XREEBEA (TE) BERREYE
ZAFEREBETE (EFH) -

A significant increase/(decrease) in the estimated rental
value (per square metre and per month) and rental growth
rate in isolation would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/(decrease) in the market yield in
isolation would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in
the fair value of the investment properties.
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H
16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES BEABKE
2023 2022
—E=-= s
HK$’000 +#&7c  HK$'000 T 7T
Share of net assets [E15 B EFE 96,520 63,973

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-

free and repayable on demand.

The particulars of all the Group’s associates are as follows:

AREREE-

Percentage of

BN —EHEATREARSERT REX

AEBFABRERRZFHBUNT :

ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FEEREG
mEREER
%18 FREFEHITRNZEE G Ad-E ik BAlL FEEH
Alliance Investment Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40 Investment holding
Development Limited =R REHTRED REERK
Star Praised Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40 Investment holding
BBk HBEERRES KREER
Kingmaker Il (Vietnam) Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$23,000,000 =] manufacturing
EMER WEHBESD
23,000,000% 7T
Empress Choice Limited Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Investment holding

HER

REBEBRES

REZER
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31 March 2023 —Z_ =

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

222

=5=+—4

16. B EATIIE @

Percentage of

ownership
Particulars of Place of interest
issued incorporation attributable  Principal
Name shares held and business to the Group  activities
FEEREG
BEEES
%18 PR B &ITRM S G- E it BAlE FEER
Maystar (Vietnam) Registered capital of Vietnam 40  Property holding
Footwear Co., Ltd. US$10,359,182 e SEoEYES
HMER
10,359,1823% 75
Ally Power Developments Ltd. Ordinary shares British Virgin Islands 40  Trading of footwear
BEHERBRAT e HEERRES products
HEERES
Able Team (China) Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Inactive
B (RE) BIRAF ZEk &8 HEax
Cheer Benefit Trading Ltd. Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Trading of footwear
BB RERAT ZER EE products
HEERES
Ally Power Developments Ordinary shares Hong Kong 40  Trading of footwear
Limited Zimk 58 products
HEERES
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31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H

16. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

17.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information in respect of the Group’s associates adjusted
for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:

16. B ZEATIIRE @
TERITREAGHBREEREHREYN
AEERSATNURERBEURES
BRI PR E A RS

2023 2022
HK$’000 F#7t  HKS$'000 F &t
Current assets i1 & E 404,022 340,348
Non-current assets JERENE &= 394,517 377,793
Current liabilities ;A Eh & & (197,274) (188,880)
Non-current liabilities JE7R 8 & & (359,965) (369,330)
Net assets B EFE 241,300 159,931
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate:
REBPBERNBAERRE !
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 £ B ¥ 75 #& tE 4 40% 40%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate
AEBREEHEATEEFE 96,520 63,973
Revenue Uz 957,135 894,900
Profit for the year & A& #) 81,368 79,110
INVENTORIES 17. 78
2023 2022
—E-=F =S
HK$000 F#&7x HK$000 FHE7T
Raw materials [R#4 &} 72,003 109,274
Work in progress 735 8,363 16,897
Finished goods B4 Af & 91,206 82,837
171,572 209,008
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

18. FEULERIE

2023 2022

—E= -
HK$’000 F#5  HK$'000 TH&7T
Accounts receivable FEUTERIE 141,216 217,565
Impairment & & (4,955) (4,042)
136,261 213,523

The Group’s accounts receivable mainly relate to a few
recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment terms
with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are normally
payable within 30 to 90 days of issuance. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly
reviewed by the Group’s senior management. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the accounts receivable as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the date of goods
delivered and net of impairment, is as follows:

AEBZBEREIZRVBNGREE
BZREPAERM-BTERZARGREER
mEEXN-BEMS  FRNHEKIE
0B MEfT - AEE BT BRI KUK
Z FEWERTE » LUBRE B R  BEIR I AK
HRAEESHREEEEHEZ BIK
BB AE R

UEMRNABREELINREE B
BRIAMN ISR ZRE DT ¢

2023 2022

—E-= —E-
HK$’000 F#7t  HK$'000 FET
Within 90 days 90H A 120,987 207,916
Between 91 and 180 days 91 HZE180H 13,574 5,341
Between 181 and 365 days 181 HZE365H 1,700 266
136,261 213,523
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of
accounts receivable are as follows:

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H

18. FEUREBRIE (@

BWEREREREREZEEINT ¢

2023 2022
—E=F =BT
HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8

At 1 April RIBBE—H 4,042 5,276
Impairment losses charged/(reversed) during the year (note 7)

FREHR (BE) MRERE (I:E7) 913 (1,234)
At 31 March =B =+—H 4,955 4,042

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by customer type). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and
reasonable and supportable information that is available at
the reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
accounts receivable are written off if past due for more than
one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s accounts receivable using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 March 2023

REHRSAHOXBEBRERETRED
o UGt EREEER - BHEXDERE
MEAELGEEEANZEZR DEET
o BMZEREE) MaRNBE#EE-
ZEBERBUAKNMEGR G ZFFE
BEANEKREHHAISHNERBESE
SRR R ARG ERRIERN G E K]
REMN -—RME HARBE —FRILE
FISR BT RS I M R W AR TE

TREFAEEERBERERSENERK
RENEERBRER :

RZIEZ_=F=H=+—8

Gross Expected

carrying amount credit losses
IREARE FAHAEERSIE
HK$'000 F#77x  HK$'000 T &7t

Assessment of expected credit losses by credit risk portfolio
EEEERBASTHEREESE

141,216 4,955
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18. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

226

As at 31 March 2022

18. FEURERIA )

N_E__F=A=+—H

Gross Expected
carrying amount credit losses
FRE4E TEHRE EEE
HK$'000 F87c  HKS$'000 F T
Assessment of expected credit losses by credit risk portfolio
BREERBMESTLTEREERE 217,565 4,042

As at 31 March 2023

BWZEZ=F=H=+—H

Past due
i HA
Less than Over
Current 3 months 3 months Total
EP &R Dt3E A iBiE3EA aF

Expected credit loss rate

TARREERIEXR 0.58% 17.38% 45.02% 3.51%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000)

REARE (FET) 121,694 16,430 3,092 141,216
Expected credit losses (HK$ 000)

TARAE &R (FH ) 707 2,856 1,392 4,955
As at 31 March 2022 N TR TFE=RA=+—H

Past due
31 5B
Less than Over
Current 3 months 3 months Total
B0 A LRABME B BB 31E B =R

Expected credit loss rate

TERRE ERIEX 1.21% 19.41% 44.93% 1.86%
Gross carrying amount (HK$’000)

IREARE (T 210,455 6,627 483 217,565
Expected credit losses (HK$ 000)

FRHE BB (FHET) 2,539 1,286 217 4,042
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H

19. REXFRREIEE

2023 2022

:g—: — 5= — —

_—— —

HK$’000 +#&7c  HK$'000 T 7T

Cash and bank balances & K $R1T45 6% 22,888 75,510
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months

REFHEH DR =EA ZEHRER 9,189 80,563
Time deposits with original maturity of over three months

when acquired

RUERREZNHEBB=E8 2 EHEMR 360,571 148,355
Cash and cash equivalents IR & R ZERIIREEE 392,648 304,428

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to HK$17,340,000 (2022: HK$11,335,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one week and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RIS AEBUARKE TARKE) 5t
B2 IREMIRTTHERRA17,340,0008 7T (=
T T4 :11,335,000/87T) c ARERE
BEHRRBAEME A REPEAM
HNBE B I 5 ) e A5 BB ~ S BB o (T BE HIEAR
T AREEAEEAETINEERE ZRIT
BARERIRAHMEN .

RITREWEBHRTERMRZFHAE
SR -EHERZHRA-—BE—F1%
RIAEBZARRSFERME  BER
EHERARAR

RITEBRRERFREFEEEERFAR
HAr SR R Se i 2 SR1T
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20. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 20. FE{FERIE
An ageing analysis of the accounts payable as at the end of MNszEHBAEE BNREBERRS
the reporting period, based on the date of goods received, AR Z BREQ DATAN T ©
is as follows:
2023 2022
HK$000 F+#Jr  HK$ 000 FE7T
Within 90 days 90H & 82,921 108,500
Between 91 and 180 days 91 HZE180H 28,635 39,521
Between 181 and 365 days 181H Z£365H 24 4
Over 365 days 365H U & 11,649 11,718
123,229 159,743
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are FERREARE > B—REMRIOHHRA
normally settled on 90-day terms. AT
21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES, OTHER 21. BstaE -HtEMRERES
PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES afE
2023 2022
e e —

—_—— —_—

Notes i &E HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 87T

Accrued liabilities and other payables

EstaEREMENIRIE (a) 89,065 86,407
Contract liabilities &4 & & (b) 968 1,575
90,033 87,982
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21. ACCRUED LIABILITIES, OTHER

PAYABLES AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)  Other payables are non-interest-bearing.

(o)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

Notes to Financial Statements

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=+—H

21. EstEE -EMEMIRERSY
BE®

MIEE
(a) HMEMIKREBEATRTS

() AEEMNEEZFROT:

31 March 31 March 1 April
2023 2022 2021
—E-= = BT
=B=+—H =B=+—H MA—H

HK$’000 F#7 HK$000 FEr HKS$000 FHET

Short-term advances received from customers

B & B W ER R 52 i B R

968 1,675 915

Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to
deliver goods. The decrease in contract liabilities in 2023
was mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances
received from customers in relation to the sale of shoes
at the end of the year. The increase in contract liabilities
in 2022 was mainly due to the increase in short-term
advances received from customers in relation to the sale of

shoes at the end of the year.

22. BANK BORROWING

BNEREEARNEYMKERZEHRR
MeRITEBE=F - aHaER L TEAN
FRMELAHEMB TR WEZ BN
ML RIEHF ENAGEEMNEER
RERPEHHEMBEZTF W ZEHE

TRIE A0 o

22. RITEE

Effective
interest
rate (%) Maturity HK$’000
BB
F £ (%) FIHAE R FHTT
Current BN
Bank loan (note) 2022 RITE (Mist) 2= N/A 2023
rER ZZTZ= 14,773
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22. BANK BORROWING (continued) 22. SR{TEE @
2023 2022
—EZ= S ——
HK$000 F#s;x  HK$'000 FHBiT
Analysed into: D74 -
Bank loan repayable: FEEZEIRITER !
Within one year —&£ & - 14,773
Note: MsE -
The Group’s bank loan was unsecured, interest-free and repayable AREEBNRTERAERF - RERER—F
within one year. ANEE-
23. BANKING FACILITIES 23. RITRLE
As at 31 March 2023, the Group had available RZE_=F=R=+—H &x&EEAHFH
banking facilities amounting to HK$40,000,000 (2022: FARITRIE 40,000,000 (ZE -
HK$54,773,000), of which nil (2022: HK$14,773,000) was fF 1 54,773,000 7T) » EFEEBAZ &
utilised. The unutilised banking facilities of HK$40,000,000 T T HF 114,773,000 7T) o KRB HIRITRY
were secured by corporate guarantees executed by the #40,000,00078 7T HAS A Bl 2 1L YA B
Company. {RIEHEIR
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31 March 2023 —&E_=#=H=+4+—H
24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 24. REREE(E
Revaluation of
buildings and
investment
properties
BFERKE
MEEMKE
HK$’000 F#& T
At 1 April 2021 R -ZE - —&FMABE—H 102,637
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10)
FRFAGEBRRAIIELERIE (W:E10) (3,515)
Exchange realignment 4hF& 58 %8 4,220

At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022

RIB__H#=A=+—HBKZZEZ”"HWMAE—H 103,342
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss

during the year (note 10)

FERNFFAFREBmKRPIRELERE (M5E10) (2,315)
Exchange realignment 4h & 58 % (7,666)
At 31 March 2023 R &2 _-_=F#=HA=+—H 93,361
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25. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

25. g
RR15

Number of ordinary shares of

HK$0.10 each HK$’000
SREE0.108TZ
EERHEE THERT
2023 2022 2023 2022
= B2 F —E=F BT F
Authorised: J5E :
Balance at beginning and end of year
FA) e F AR 1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: 22T REE :
Balance at beginning of year #4554 681,110,445 681,535,445 68,111 68,154
Repurchased (note (a)) B[E] (5% (a)) (1,446,000) (740,000) (145) (74)
Share options exercised (note (b))
BITERERE (kb)) 1,115,000 315,000 112 31
Balance at end of year &4 8R 680,779,445 681,110,445 68,078 68,111

During the year, the movements in share capital were as

follows:

(a)

During the year, the Company repurchased its
1,446,000 (2022: 740,000) ordinary shares at prices
ranging from HK$0.95 to HK$1.11 (2022: HK$0.99
to HK$1.06) per share at a total consideration of
approximately HK$1,554,000 (2022: HK$774,000).
1,446,000 (2022: 740,000) repurchased ordinary
shares were cancelled during the year (2022:
subsequent to the year end date). Details of the
repurchases are disclosed under the section heading
of “Purchase, redemption or sale of the Company’s
listed securities” in the Report of the Directors. The
premium of approximately HK$1,409,000 (2022:
HK$700,000) paid on the repurchase of these shares
was debited to the share premium account and an
amount of HK$145,000 (2022: HK$74,000) was
transferred from retained profits of the Company to
the capital redemption reserve.
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FRREZEESHINT

FR BAABUNFER0.95ETE
1B T(ZTEITFE I 0.998TE
1.067870) 2 BHEEEIHE1,446,000
BB (ZEZ_4 :740,0001) &i&
B% o R BAA1,554,0008 7T (ZF
& 774,000 7T) offiEREI 2
1,446,00088 (Z= — 4 : 740,000
) EEEBRERFRN CE2F 1R
FEHR) FH - BOZHEBERES
BRENEE BRNHELAATZ
TS —EHINE BRI ERS
F 213 2 & (8 491,409,000 ¢ (Z &
Z 4 700,000 7T) EERMDIRE
RPN TERAARRE &
#5145,0008 70 (ZZ - 4 : 74,000
Bot) ERAER o
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25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Shares (continued)

(o)

During the year, the subscription rights attaching
to 1,115,000 (2022: 315,000) share options were
exercised at the subscription price ranging from
HK$0.772 to HK$0.958 (2022: HK$0.772) per share.
These resulted in the issue of 1,115,000 (2022:
315,000) shares of HK$0.1 each and a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$889,000 (2022: HK$243,000). An amount of
HK$155,000 (2022: HK$52,000) was transferred
from the share option reserve to the share premium
account upon the exercise of the share options.

Shares held under share award scheme

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

25. ig7s @

R ()

(b)  EA:HHN,115,00000 (Z2 -
315,00017) B #E 2 REERIE N
FERR0.7728TTE0.95878 T (ZF
“TFE 07728 ) 2B EESD
& o (AL 3E171,115,0008% (Z - —
F 1 315,0000%) EREEC1BTZ
1 R ERZBRENENAR
889,000/ 70 (ZZ Z 4 : 243,000

7o) cBERIEEITHER BREREET
155,000 7T (Z & Z 4 : 52,000
70) EEERMEER

R 82 B 51 BIFR AR (7

Number of ordinary

shares held
FriEEEERZEE
2023 2022
—E”= _EF
Balance at beginning of year fF#] 45 &% 7,798,000 10,678,000
Shares vested under share award scheme

RIE DL RN ST BIFTER B Y AR 1D (2,990,000) (2,880,000)
Balance at end of year F & &5 ik 4,808,000 7,798,000

During the year, pursuant to the share award scheme of
the Company, the Company awarded 5,890,000 (2022:
2,880,000) ordinary shares to 31 (2022: 29) share award
grantees. During the year, share award scheme expenses of
HK$3,296,000 (2022: HK$2,534,000) were charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss in respect of vesting
of 2,990,000 (2022: 2,880,000) shares under share award
scheme.

FRRBEALDTHNRMERE > AQ
BE31E (ZE T 2F 1 20%) RIDEE
A ¥2 N\ 12 E)5,890,0001 (Z &~ —
2,880,0008%) Z @B - F A R0 IEED
5T8IF9 23,296,000 (T - —
2,534,000 70) ERR M RBITEIE T H
&2,990,000/% (Z = — —4 : 2,880,0000%)
KPBLFREERRMNR

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 233



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

25.

26.

234

SHARE CAPITAL (continuead)
Share options and share awards

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share award scheme and the movements of the share
options and share awards under the schemes are included
in note 26 to the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

Share option scheme

The Company operated a share option scheme (the
“Share Option Scheme”) adopted by the shareholders
of the Company on 26 August 2022 for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contributed to the success of the Group’s operations.
The Company previously adopted a share option scheme
(the “2011 Share Option Scheme”) which had expired on
28 August 2021. Outstanding options granted during the
life of the 2011 Share Option Scheme will continue to
be exercisable in accordance with the rules of the 2011
Share Option Scheme. Principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme are summarised below:

(1) The purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to selected participants
as incentive or rewards for their contributions to the
Group, to continue and/or render improved service
with the Group, and/or to establish a stronger
business relationship between the Group and such
participants.
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31 March 2023 —&F _=F=H=+—H
26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. RERGREET SRR 1XBI 52 @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) B HESTEl (B
(2) The participants of the Share Option Scheme Q) BREAZZBHEE

The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any
person belonging to any of the following classes
of participants, to take up options to subscribe for
Shares: (a) any employee (whether full time or part
time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any
entity (“Invested Entity”) in which the Group holds
30% or more equity interests, including any executive
director of the Company, any of such subsidiaries or
any Invested Entity; (b) any non-executive directors
(including independent non-executive directors) of the
Company, any subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (c)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (e) any person or
entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity; and (f) any shareholder of any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any
securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity.

The basis of eligibility of any of the above class of
participants to the grant of any options shall be
determined by the Directors from time to time on the
basis of their contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

EEFETREBFBNUTEEZ
BEFRZEMALTEZBERELE
BRD (QERF HEFKREAR
HEREEERERFAEI0%HU L
RrmoBE ((REER) 2F
WET (EmEBuFRR @ 8FFQ
EHEMNBARNEMKREERE
ZREFRITES ;(b)A AT EMEH
BABHERKREBR ZEMIENT
EX (AEBIIFRITES) ;F&E
EEAMEATNEAREERZE
A RARBHER () EERE
BAREBRZEMER (e)AAER
HERKREBERREHEME ERIE
M E 2 ERALHELRE ; ()
AERTAREATNEAIRESE
ZERRKRER NAEERERLE LT
WEMKREBRFIETEMNESZE
ARFA AN

EEEAEREU LA H2RERT
ALHAEBEERREFMELS
HE EEREEEAABRRER
ZHE.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

236

3

4

The total number of shares available for issue

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme is 68,070,944
shares, representing approximately 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue as at the date of this annual
report.

The maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of shares which were issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Group may not exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time. Unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company in a general meeting, the maximum number
of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) to each eligible participant in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of grant.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. R ETEI R IR 12BN El @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) B HESTEl (B

(4) The maximum entitlement of each participant (4) HSBHEEZEZHERELR &)
(continued)
Share options granted to a director, chief executive BAANBIZESF - FETHRABRE
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any BREBE TN EE AR AR BB
of their associates, were subject to approval by the RN BB IFNITESH o
independent non-executive directors of the Company. A BEA+Z@E B AR mEE
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial REIEERRHERMBUIFNITES
shareholder or any independent non-executive FRETAHBAREIRBBEER
director of the Company, or to any of their associates BN #Z HBEEITRRD0.1%MmARE (1R
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in BAABINKEEHBAZRMEMRS
issue on that date and with an aggregate value (based ) BesaE AT 2T AR 8y
on the price of the Company’s shares at the date of KRBIBARKREASESRKRENM &
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month
period, were subject to shareholders’ approval in a
general meeting.

(5) The period within which the option may be (5) HITREREZEIR
exercised
The period within which the options must be exercised BREBRTTEZHERERATES
was determined by the board of directors of the G2ENBRATE ZBEHTERE
Company at its absolute discretion. This period will HEREERRSTEERE M N
expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant HEERER KA B nJIEC B EE
of the options. At the time of grant of the options, the TR EFB ZRIEHAR
Company may specify a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

(6) The vesting period of option 6) FBRIEZEBRH

No minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised is specified in the Share
Option Scheme. The Company shall comply with the
applicable Listing Rules in determining the vesting
period of options to be granted.

BRES ST EREBRE]FTE
AIZERATHRB Z&REHRR AR
Bl EAS TR B BB AR RV ER B A
R e T A L HRA -
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

238

(7)

)

9

The amount payable on acceptance of the option

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, and the amount
payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

The basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted

The subscription price shall, subject to the adjustment
as stated in the Share Option Scheme, be a price
determined by the Board and shall not be less than
the higher of (i) the nominal value of a Share; (ii)
the closing price of one Share as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on
the date of offer, which shall be a business day; and
(iii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

The remaining life of the scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years from the date of its adoption (i.e.
26 August 2022).
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continued)

26. fERRTEETEI R AR EERNEEl @

fERRiESTE (BB

THERERFEN_S——FBERETE
KFEREST B N R RITREZ BARE -

The following share options were outstanding under the
2011 Share Option Scheme and the Share Option Scheme
during the year:

Number of share options
BREZE
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options*™*
REkE
RZEZZE RIBZZE BhREz  BHAMZ
BEERLGER MA-B  EAlRE  EAfTE EARK ZA=+-0 BREZEHAE BREZTEER i@ FAARE™
HKS 37 HKSE T
pershare S per share &%
Directors £%
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu 200,000 - - - 200,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
EEREL 2 “RTZE-AC+HECEZCZE-ATAA
150,000 - - - 150,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
ZECRF-AIHH CEC-5-F-BEIRCERE-BIAR
150,000 - - - 150,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
2 e “E__F-f-AECE-RE-AAA
200,000 - (200,000) - - 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
CERIEETCRIHIR CERIEETCRIFIREIZSZESCACA-H
150,000 - (150,000) - - 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
CRTEETCRIIR CBRICE-B-RAECZSEET2ACH-H
150,000 - - - 150,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
CBTEETCRI4IR CBIZE-B-RAECZ-EET2ACH-H
- 220,000 - - 220,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0942 093
ZBTCETCRYCH CECCEHCBTIREISSCIETIETH
- 165,000 - - 165,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZECCEHIRTIR CRCZE-B-HEIBRCCETIAY-H
- 165,000 - - 165,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0942 093
ZECCEHIRTIR CERCME-RA-HEIRCCETIAY-H
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
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26.

RERg st B B B 22 R 52 ()

Share option scheme (continued) B E (&)
Number of share options
BRERE
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
KIEZZE KIBZ= BhRiEz  EHA®Z
SEEHTAER MA-B  EmBH ARG EARK ZAST-B BREZELAE BREZOEER @ FRARES
HKS BT HKSE T
pershare &% per share S
Directors (continued)
8% (9
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares 160,000 - - - 160,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 10 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
RLERE “ECZE-A°4H “E_TE-BCTHECR-ZE-BIAM
120,000 - - - 120,000 20January2020 1January202 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECZE-A°1H “E_-£-B-RECER-ZE-AAH
120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECZE-A21H Z3CCE-F-RECE-TE-FtAM
180,000 - - - 180,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
“ECEECACHCH CECEEHCACHCHECE-TET_ACT-R
135,000 - - - 135,000 22 December2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CEZTEZEFCACFIR CECCE-B-RAEIZCIETIACT-H
135,000 - - - 135,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZECEE{CACHCH CECZF-R-RECE-EEHACL-H
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 120,000 - - - 120,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 094
RENEE il CECSE-BTTHECRZRE-BIAR
90,000 - - - 90,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ZTZE-BZ4A TZT-F-B-HEIESRE-B1AH
90,000 - - - 90,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0958 094
“ZTZE-BI4A TZTTE-B-HECESRE-BAH
120,000 - (120,000) - - 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
ZERE+CACFCA CECEETBCHCAECESTETIACA-R
90,000 - (90,000) - - 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 077
ZFIREIACHIR CEIIE-A-RECESRETIECT-H
90,000 - (90,000) - - 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
ZFIREIACHIR CEIZE-A-RECESRETIECT-R
- 160,000 - - 160,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0.942 0.93
ZFCEFIAYIH CECCEZATCAECESCETIRT-H
- 120,000 - - 120,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0.942 0.93
CTCCEIATIA CECCE-B-RAECECCETIRT-A
- 120,000 - - 120,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0.942 0.93
St :=h < "5 ME-B-RE-EC"E+°F+-A
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share option scheme (continueq)
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26.

31 March 2023

fERRiESTE (BB

— 5

RERg st B R A S2 R =8I

Number of share options
BREHRE
Price of the
Exercise Company’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
REERE
RISIZE RZBZZf Bz  HHREZ
2aEHTAER MA-B  EAEY  EAGE EARN ZAZt+-0 BREZELRE BREZGEEE e FARRE™
HKS 37 HKS BT
pershare R per share 8%
Directors (continued)
8% (9
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 60,000 - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
il “ECEE-AC1H CZTZE-BCHHECZCZE-ATAH
45,000 - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECEE-AC1H Z3°-5-F-BEIE=3E-FA1AR
45,000 - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECEE-AC1H “E__f-A-RECE-RE-AAA
60,000 - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
e s I =l
45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CERTEETCECIR CRICE-B-BECZSEESCACH-H
45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
B - = i s I
- 80,000 - - 80,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
= g = CRTCETCRTIHECECCETIAT-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0,942 0.93
ZSCIEHIBTIR ZBCEE-RB-BEIBRCIETIAY-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0.942 0.93
ZECIEHIBTIR CRCME-RA-HEIBRCCETIAY-H
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. BEAGtE I RN IRENStEI @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) B E (&)
Number of share options
BRERE
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
KIEZZE KIBZ= BhRiEz  EHA®Z
SEEHTAER MA-B  EmBH ARG EARK ZAST-B BREZELAE BREZOEER @ FRARES
HKS BT HKSE T
pershare &% per share S
Directors (continued)
EENE
Dr. Chow Wing-kin 60,000 (60,000) - - 20January2020 20 January2020 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
Anthony, SBS, JP. Z52%5-A21H “ZTZE-BCHECZZEE-E4AR
AkEEL 45,000 (45,000) - - 20January2020 1January202 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
REMES ATHL “ZTZE-A24H “ZT-F-B-HEIZZZE-BAH
45,000 (45,000) - - 20January2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECTE-A°1H Z3CCE-F-RECE-TE-FAM
60,000 (60,000) - - 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
“ECEECACHCH CECEEHCACHCHECE-TET-ACT-R
45,000 (45,000) - - 2 December2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CZTEZEFCRCFIH CECCE-B-RAEIZCIELIACT-H
45,000 - - 45,000 22 December2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZECEECACHCH CECZF-A-RECE-EREHACL-H
- 80,000 - - 80,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZECCETCATIR CECCETCATCAEIR="E12AT-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZECCETCAYIR 0 CECZF-A-RECR-CETIAT-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 January2024 0 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZECCESTEYCH EPME-B-HEZE="E+2Ft+-H
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. FERGHEEBIRARIDIZRETE @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) B HESTEl (B
Number of share options
BREHRE
Price of the
Exercise Company’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
REERE
RISIZE RZBZZf Bz  HHREZ
2aEHTAER MA-B  EAEY  EAGE EARN ZAZt+-0 BREZELRE BREZGEEE e FARRE™

HKS 37 HKS BT
pershare R per share 8%

Directors (confinued)

8% (9
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 60,000 - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
BRERE “ECEE-AC1H CZTZE-BCHHECZCZE-ATAH
45,000 - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECEE-AC1H Z3°-5-F-BEIE=3E-FA1AR
45,000 - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECEE-AC1H “E__f-A-RECE-RE-AAA
60,000 - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
e s I =l
45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CERTEETCECIR CRICE-B-BECZSEESCACH-H
45,000 - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
B - = i s I
- 80,000 - - 80,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
= g = ZBITE+IRtIREIZCIEIAT-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0,942 0.93
ZSCIEHIBTIR ZBCEE-RB-BEIBRCIETIAY-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0.942 0.93

ZECTE4CA+CR ZBIME-A-HECEC2E+CA+-A
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. BEAGHESEI R AN IRENStE @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) RS (&)
Number of share options
BRERE
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
KIEZZE KIBZ= BhRiEz  EHA®Z
SEEHTAER MA-B  EmBH ARG EARK ZAST-B BREZELAE BREZOEER @ FRARES
HKS BT HKSE T
pershare &% per share S
Directors (continued)
8% (9
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 60,000 - - - 60,000 20January 2020 20 January2020 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
APIiE “ECZE-A°4H “E_TE-BCTHECR-ZE-BIAM
45,000 - - - 45,000 20January2020 1January202 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECZE-A°1H “E_-£-B-RECER-ZE-AAH
45,000 - - - 45,000 20January2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECTE-A°1H Z3CCE-F-RECE-TE-FtAM
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0772 077
“ECEECACHCH CECEEHCACHCHECE-TET_ACT-R
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CEZTEZEYCACFIH CECCE-B-RAECZCIETIACT-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZECEE{CACHCH ZECZF-B-RECE-EEHACL-H
80,000 - - 80,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0942 093
ZECIEHIATIR CECIETCATIBRECIR=CETIET-H
60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZECCETCATIR CECZF-A-RECR-CETIAT-H
60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZSCIEHCATIR CECRF-A-BECR=CETIET-H
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
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31 March 2023
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26. BBIGREETEI BB IDiZENETE @

Share option scheme (continued) FERREETE (2
Number of share options
BREHRE
Price of the
Exercise Company’s
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
REERE
RISIZE RZBZZf Bz  HHREZ
2aEHTAER MA-B  EAEY  EAGE EARN ZAZt+-0 BREZELRE BREZGEEE e FARRE™
HKS 37 HKS BT
pershare R per share 8%
Directors (continued)
8% (9
Ms. Chan Mei-bo, Mabel 60,000 - - - 60,000 20 January 2020 20 January 2020 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
REELL “ECEE-AC1H CZTZE-BCHHECZCZE-ATAH
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2021 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECEE-AC1H Z3°-5-F-BEIE=3E-FA1AR
45,000 - - - 45,000 20 January 2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECEE-AC1H “E__f-A-RECE-RE-AAA
60,000 - - - 60,000 22 December 2020 22 December 2020 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
e s I =l
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CERTEETCECIR CRICE-B-BECZSEESCACH-H
45,000 - - - 45,000 22 December 2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
B - = i s I
- 80,000 - - 80,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
= g = ZBITE+IRtIREIZCIEIAT-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0,942 0.93
ZSCIEHIBTIR ZBCEE-RB-BEIBRCIETIAY-H
- 60,000 - - 60,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0.942 0.93
ZECIEHIBTIR CRCME-RA-HEIBRCCETIAY-H
3,950,000 1,950,000 (905,000) - 4,995,000
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE 26. BEAGtE I RN IRENStEI @
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued) B E (&)
Number of share options
BRERE
Price of the
Exercise Company's
At Granted  Exercised  Forfeited At price of shares at
Name or category 1 April during during during 31 March Date of grant share grant date
of participants 2022 the year the year the year 2023  of share options* Exercise period of share options options**  of options***
RERE
KIEZZE KIBZ= BhRiEz  EHA®Z
SEEHTAER MA-B  EmBH ARG EARK ZAST-B BREZELAE BREZOEER @ FRARES
HKS BT HKSE T
pershare &% per share S
Other employees
EfffE8
In aggregate 1,100,000 - - - 1,100,000 20January 2020 20 January2020 19 January 2030 0.958 094
af “ECEE-A°1H “ECRF-ACTHECZ=TE-ATAA
825,000 - - - 825,000 20January 2020 1January202 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
“ECTE-A°1H “E_-F-A-RECE-ZE-AtAH
825,000 - - - 825,000 20January2020 1 January 2022 to 19 January 2030 0.958 0.94
S Z3CCE-F-RECE-TE-FtAM
940,000 - (120,000) - 820,000 22 December2020 22 December 2020 o 21 December 2030 0772 077
“ECEECACHCH CECEEHCACHCHECE-TET_ACT-H
705,000 - (90,000) - 615,000 22 December2020 1 January 2022 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
CZTEZEFIACFIR CECCE-B-RAEIZCIELIACT-H
840,000 - - - 840,000 22 December2020 1 January 2023 to 21 December 2030 0.772 0.77
ZECEECACHCH CECZF-B-RECE-EZEHCACL-H
- 420,000 - - 420,000 12 December 2022 12 December 2022 to 11 December 2032 0942 093
ZECIEHCATIR CECIETCATIBREIR=CETIET-H
- 315,000 - - 315,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2023 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZECCETCATIA CECZF-A-RECR-CETIAT-H
- 315,000 - - 315,000 12 December 2022 1 January 2024 to 11 December 2032 0.942 093
ZSCIEHCATIR CECRF-A-BECR=CETIET-H
5235000 1,050,000 (210,000) - 6,075,000
9,185,000 3,000,000  (1,115,000) - 11,070,000
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continueq)

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

The vesting period of the share options is from the
date of grant until the commencement of the exercise
period.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at
the date of grant of the share options is the Stock
Exchange closing price on the trading day immediately
prior to the date of grant of the options.

The weighted average price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$0.87 per share
(2022: HK$1.05 per share).

The 1,115,000 (2022: 315,000) share options exercised
during the year resulted in the issue of 1,115,000 (2022:
315,000) ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of approximately HK$112,000 (2022: HK$31,000)
and share premium of approximately HK$777,000 (2022:
HK$212,000), as further detailed in note 25 to the financial
statements. An amount of HK$155,000 (2022: HK$52,000)
was transferred from the share option reserve to the share
premium account upon the exercise of the share options.

26.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

248

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continued)

As at the end of the reporting period, the Company had
4,550,000, 3,520,000 and 3,000,000 (2022: 4,700,000 and
4,485,000) share options outstanding with exercise prices
of HK$0.958, HK$0.772 and HK$0.942 (2022: HK$0.958
and HK$0.772) per share, respectively. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
11,070,000 (2022: 9,185,000) additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional issued share capital of
approximately HK$1,107,000 (2022: HK$919,000) and
share premium of approximately HK$8,795,000 (2022:
HK$7,047,000) (before issue expenses).

The number of shares that may be issued in respect of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
during the financial year ended 31 March 2023 divided by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the
Company in issue for the year was approximately 0.44%.

As at 31 March 2022, there were nil options available for
grant under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31 March
2023, there were 65,070,944 options available for grant
under the Share Option Scheme.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, 3,000,000 share
options were granted and their fair value was estimated
as of the grant date to be approximately HK$515,000,
calculated using the binomial model. The Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$487,000 (2022:
HK$404,000) during the year. During the year ended
31 March 2022, 14,435,000 share options lapsed and
the Group’s share option reserve of HK$8,440,000 was
transferred to the retained profits.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)
Share option scheme (continueq)

The fair value of share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2023 was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the respective model used
in the calculation of the values of the options for the year
ended 31 March 2023:

Date of share options granted: 12 December 2022

Volatility (%): 24.49
Risk-free interest rate (%): 3.36
Expected life of options (year): 10.00
Dividend yield (%): 2.51

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

Share award scheme

A share award scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) was
adopted by the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company on 26 June 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). The
principal terms of the Share Award Scheme are summarised
below:

(1) The purpose of the Share Award Scheme

The specific objectives of the Share Award Scheme
are to recognise the contributions by certain eligible
participants and to give incentives thereto in order to
motivate and retain them for the continual operation
and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group and
to provide certain eligible participants with a direct
economic interest in attaining a long-term relationship
between the Group and certain eligible participants.
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31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

RERg st B R A S2 R =8I

MRSt R ()

BE_T_-—F=ZR=+—HLFER
HHEREATEDNELEAHRER S
RARNEE BERE L BRIEZ RN
it TRIEMBE_ST _=F=1
—+—HLFERFGEEREEERSH
FREMZ RN Z A S

HHERELS B2+ ZA+ZH
(%) 24.49
LI 2 (%) 3.36
EREERES @) ! 10.00
BREE (%) : 2.51

BREZERFHNDIZRELHIETSE

BROEBTRASEHRZITEREN - A

ﬁﬂlaa}iE?E%FE;&%?@T%X@%Z%
R BRREB AR BB RERAER

Bz {7 82 Eh 5t &

TABEFEE (EFE) RZZT-AER
BB (RMBEH)) wm—IER 5%
Ehst &) (TARDEERIET8))) - BR1p 2R 51 8
BYE SRR T

(1) REZEEEZEH

R EBFEZEEERAERBET
BERSUEEMFEZEMIL AT
B BRBEZZEALBETERBZF
BEERERNMI RIIGBEAEHK
FAEEZE— SR LEREER
HETEERSEEZHRIRIMHN
FREETEERSAEREERK
R o

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 249



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share award scheme (continued)

250

2

3

The participants of the Share Award Scheme

The Board may, from time to time, at its absolute
discretion select any eligible participant for
participation in the Share Award Scheme as a
selected participant and determine the number of
awarded shares to be awarded to the respective
selected participants, the terms and conditions before
the awarded shares may be vested and other related
matters as expressly provided under the Share Award
Scheme. However, until so selected, no eligible
participant shall be entitled to participate in the Share
Award Scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue under
the Share Award Scheme

The Share Award Scheme involves existing shares
of the Company. The Board shall determine the
maximum amount of funds to be allocated out of the
Company’s resources for the purchase or subscription
of the awarded shares as the Board deems
appropriate pursuant to the scheme rules.

The Board shall not make any further grant of award
of shares under the Share Award Scheme such
that the total number of shares granted under the
Share Award Scheme will exceed 10% of the total
number of issued shares as of the Adoption Date
(i.e. 68,875,544 shares). If the relevant subscription
or purchase would result in the trustee holding in
aggregate, more than 10% of the total number of
issued shares of the Company as of the Adoption
Date, the trustee of the Share Award Scheme (the
“Trustee”) shall not subscribe or purchase any further
shares.
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share award scheme (continued)

(4)

(5)

(6)

Maximum entitlement of each participant under
the Share Award Scheme

Under the Share Award Scheme, there is no specific
limit on the maximum number of shares which
may be granted to a single eligible participant. The
Company shall comply with the applicable Listing
Rules in granting the awarded shares to each eligible
participant.

Vesting period of awards granted under the Share
Award Scheme

A selected participant shall be entitled to receive the
awarded shares held by the Trustee in accordance
with the vesting schedule upon when the selected
participant has satisfied all vesting conditions
specified by the Board at the time of making the
award. Vesting of the awarded shares will be
conditional on the selected participant remaining a
non-executive director or employee of the Group until
and on each of the relevant vesting dates and his/
her execution of the relevant documents to effect the
transfer from the Trustee.

Amount payable on acceptance of the awarded
shares

The awarded shares are granted to any selected
employee at no consideration and in such number and
on and subject to such terms and conditions as the
Board may in its absolute discretion determine.

RAFS IR Y 5L
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

252

AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share award scheme (continued)

(7) Basis of determining the purchase price of the
shares to be awarded under the scheme

On each occasion when the Board instructs the
Trustee to directly or indirectly purchase Shares in the
open market, it shall specify the maximum amount
of funds to be used and the range of prices at which
such Shares are to be purchased. The Trustee may
not incur more than the maximum amount of funds
specified by the Board.

(8) Remaining life of the scheme

Subject to any termination as may be determined by
the Board pursuant to the scheme rules, the Share
Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for a term
of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date (i.e. to
expire on 25 June 2029).

As at the date of the annual report, the Trustee held a
total of 4,808,000 shares of the Company. The number of
awarded shares remain available for grant under the Share
Award Scheme is 60,105,544 shares, representing 8.83%
of the total issued shares of the Company as at the date of
this annual report.

Out of the aggregate 5,890,000 awarded shares, 2,250,000
awarded shares are granted to the directors and employees
who are connected persons of Group, and the remaining
3,640,000 awarded shares are granted to other employees
of the Group.
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AWARD SCHEME (continuea)

Share award scheme (continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE

As at 31 March 2023, the following awarded shares were

outstanding under the Company’s Share Award Scheme:

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 —&E - =#=H=+—H

RERg st B R A S2 R =8I

Ry EZRNETE (&)

RIEBEZ=ZF=ZRA=+—H ' E&23KRMH
RESHEIIA T ARITEZERROWNT

Price of the
Company’s
shares at
Unvested grant date of
Unvested  Award shares  Award shares  Award shares award the award
Name or category award shares granted during  vested during lapsed during  shares as at Date of grant of shares HK$
of grantees at 1 April 2022 the year the year the year 31 March 2023 of award shares Vesting period/dates per share
RZE_ZF REEBRSH
RZEZZE =A=+-H =) A
ABEA mE—A R R FREH *HE RBEHZ HAFRE
#R e ER F*EBREBRA BHRBRG HSERBRH SRR REkG FHAH FEBE,/ B8 BRET
Directors
B2
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu - 210,000 (210,000) - - 6July 2022 1 January 2023 0.90
BERLE Z2"FtARH Z22=F-B-H
210,000 - - 210,000 12 December 2022 25 December 2023 0.93
k- et -5 k- et
+ZA+ZH +ZBEZ+%H
Mr. Chen Yi-wu, Ares - 200,000 (200,000) - - 6July 2022 1 January 2023 0.90
REERL ZEIZFtAAH Z2”=F-B-H
150,000 - - 150,000 12 December 2022 25 December 2023 0.93
EICRE —E-=E
+ZA+ZH +ZBZ+%H
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel - 150,000 (150,000) - - 6July 2022 1 January 2023 0.90
BEN kL ZEIZFtAAH “2=F-B-H
150,000 - - 150,000 12 December 2022 25 December 2023 0.93
EICE —E-=E
+ZA+ZH +ZBZ+%H
Other employees - 2,430,000 (2,430,000) - - 6July 2022 1 January 2023 0.90
HitiES ZEIZFTAAH ZZZ=%-F-H
2,390,000 - - 2,390,000 12 December 2022 25 December 2023 0.93
EICRE —E-=E
+ZA+ZH +ZAZ+EA
Total
st 5,890,000 (2,990,000) - 2,900,000

The weighted average closing price of the Company’s share

immediately before the date on which the share awards

were vested on 6 July 2022 and 1 January 2023 were
HK$0.9 and HK$1.005, respectively.

TQ 7——ﬂ5tﬁ/\a&—7——£ﬁ_
ﬁ A & 17 528 57 8 Al < AN~ B IR 15 hn 8
FHUR B 7 Bl #0.97% 7T &2 1.0058 7T ©

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023 253



Notes to Financial Statements
AT R IR M5

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

27. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

28. COMMITMENTS

The Group had contracted for the following capital
commitments:

()  As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments in respect of management fees payable

27.

28.

B
AEERAFERIBEEE EHEUER
HEHLNRHERE 2 G REE

o

I
AEEMB THE A RIET T AL |

PSR AEBE R TS HAR 2
ZEMMETRELMZENEERES

in relation to certain land in Vietnam falling due as AT
follows:
2023 2022
—_=F_= - ——
HK$'000 F#x  HK$000 FE7T
Within one year —&F & 1,322 1,322
In the second to fifth years, inclusive
F_EEXELF (BEEEWNSE) 5,286 5,286
After five years L E% 31,595 32,916
38,203 39,5624

(i)  As at the end of the reporting period, the Company
had capital commitments in respect of property, plant
and equipment as follows:

(i)

REREHR > ZRARRDE BB K

REZEREEDNT
2023 2022
—E_-= =
HK$’000 +#757t  HK$'000 FE&TT

Contracted but not provided for
construction of factory buildings

ERENERBHE-—MERETRR

1,216
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, during the year, the
Group paid rental expenses of HK$684,000 (2022:
HK$684,000) to Kingmaker Footwear Company
Limited, a related company of which Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen, a director and shareholder of the
Company, is also a director and shareholder.

The rental expenses were determined with reference
to the market conditions existing at the time when the
respective rental agreements were entered into.

The related party transactions above also constitute
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

29.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

Rk 32 5

(@)

BRZEMBREREMIBOFERZR
9 AEBREANGAMAEASE
BERERMBRADZNHEEER
684,000 70 (Z & — —4F : 684,000
T0) CTARBEERRREFTHL
THAZABEERKE

ZEREERB2ETIULEREER
BRERZMRMERE

LR A X BT ER EHRAE
1AASFIER ZBERR S °

FEBEBAREEEASHRE

2023 2022
2= B

HK$’000 F#x  HK$'000 F & 7T

Short-term employee benefits 52 218 £ 12 ¥ 11,640 12,331

Post-employment benefits & F3 & & F) 72 72

Equity-settled share option expense

MiEmaE 2 BRERS 292 263
Total compensation paid to key management personnel

TIHEAREIEASNIRM S 12,004 12,666

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.

EHESNE 2 EME B8R 5Bk
w&MIEES
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 30.
CATEGORY

256

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

BENSDZEMIA

BEMNEMTANREHRZKEEN
T

MBEE

Financial assets
at amortised cost
HEER A HENMBEE
2023 2022

—_— — = —=— —
—=

—_—— _—

HK$’000 &7t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Accounts receivable & ERIE 136,261 213,523
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
FABRNRE S REMBWIRIBEZ MBEEE 11,472 4,587
Due from an associate f& Uk B & A 51 =118 54,409 64,705
Cash and cash equivalents IR& EXEERESER 392,648 304,428
594,790 587,243
Financial liabilities A
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
HBHA A ENMBAER
2023 2022
—E-=F . ——

HK$’000 +#&7t  HK$'000 T8 7T

Accounts payable FE {7 8RB 123,229 159,743
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
FFAEHEE HEtMEMNEERENEBEZHEARE 55,604 59,063
Bank borrowing $R1Tf& & = 14,773
Lease liabilities fHE & & 2,604 4,071
Loans from non-controlling shareholders JE1% & AZ B8 & =X 32,046 32,046
213,483 269,696
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

Major non-cash transactions

As at 31 March 2023, payables for additions of items
of property, plant and equipment of HK$7,519,000

(2022: HK$14,723,000), have not been settled yet.

Changes in liabilities arising from financing
activities

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H

31. IRERTRERME
(@ EEFREXS

RZIEZ=F=A=+—H" &
EVME - BERXBEEEREMNE
1H7,519,0008 Tt (ZE 2=
14,723,000 78) AR BT ©

(b) REEFBFIELERREZEH

Loans from

Bank Lease  non-controlling

borrowing liabilities shareholders

RITIEE HEaE FEREREM

HK$'000 F#&7c HK$000 FE7r HK$000 FAETT

At 1 April 2021 RZEZ—FMNA—H - 930 32,046*

New bank loan #TiRITE 14,773 - -

New lease T E - 4,087 -

Changes from financing cash flows BRME R &R E 2 & H) - (908) -

Interest expense ¥ B - 30 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

NEAREREREZBMFR - (30) -

Exchange realignment 91 & 35 % - (43) -

At 31 March 2022 W _E - _F=B=+—H 14,773 4,071 32,046*

Repayment of bank loan EiERITER (14,773) - -

Changes from financing cash flows RREBRE& R E 2 &F) - (1,499) -

Interest expense ¥ B F - 135 -
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows

NERREREREBZBMNFR - (135) -

Exchange realignment 4 s5 % - 32 -

At 31 March 2023 R _E_=§=F=+—H - 2,604 32,046

shareholder which are included in “non-controlling
interests” in the consolidated statement of financial
position. The loans are unsecured, interest-free and

not repayable within one year.

Balance represented the loans from a non-controlling

* ERIEFERREER stALS
MBERRRIFFERERS RezE
ERAERF RERBANR—F
AEE-
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31. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 31. ZeRERERMT @
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) The total cash outflow for leases included in the () FTARSREXRANEENRESTH
statement of cash flows is as follows: FCEEL NN
2023 2022
—E= B
HK$’000 F#5%  HK$'000 TH7T
Within operating activities 5+ A & & & &) 831 732
Within financing activities 5t AR E /& & 1,499 903
2,330 1,635
32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. RS IEEEREE

258

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash
and time deposits. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s operations.
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities
such as accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts
payable and other payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.
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AEEZIESHTAEAERSATERE
MoZEEMIAZTERRENRETE
BEBEE - FAEBEZEREHFEREE
EZHMPBEERER WRKEREH
B ARIE ~ IR BRI H B (T BRIE S o

FEEZERTIAEMEENTEZRARA I
KRR -EERBRABESZRR -EFE
EERTRAEEERBEERZEBR BER
ZBEW T



Notes to Financial Statements

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy on managing
foreign currency exposures. Moreover, the majority of the
Group’s operating assets are located in Mainland China and
denominated in RMB. As the Group’s financial statements
are reported in Hong Kong dollars, there will be a translation
credit/(charge) to the exchange fluctuation reserve as a
result of the RMB appreciation/(depreciation).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity as at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible change
in the RMB and Vietnamese Dong (“YND”) exchange
rates, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s
profit/(loss) before tax (due to changes in the fair values
of monetary assets and liabilities and forward currency
contracts).

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. MBERAMEBEEEERER @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continuea)
Foreign currency risk (continued) SMERBE (&)
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit before
(decrease) in tax (2022: loss
exchange rate before tax)
FRIR AT EF
o, G)
X (2=
EH(FH) PRAR AR5 18)
%  HK$000 F#JT
2023 _&E_=
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB #7757 AR 82 & 5 2,273
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 1§78 t R A R T & (5) (2,273)
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND fi# 78 7t .t = /& B2 (B 5 (1,031)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND i /&7t % # i E & (5) 1,031
Increase/
(decrease)
Increase/ in profit before
(decrease) in tax (2022: loss
exchange rate before tax)
R A & A
g, Os)
fE=X (B F:
EFH(CFBE) FRIR AR 18)
%  HK$'000 F#H7T
2022 _ & "
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB {i# 787557 AR 82 & 5 (1,645)
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB 8t 7% AR EFHE (5) 1,645
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against VND fi# 3 70 &2 i = /& B2 (& 5 1,930
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against VND f{i# /&7t %2 8 & E & (5) (1,930)
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment of
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, deposits, other
receivables and an amount due from an associate, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentrations of credit risk as 50% (2022: 50%) and
96% (2022: 66%) of the Group’s accounts receivable were
due from the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers, respectively.

32.

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 — & _=F=H=+—H
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

262

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless
other information is available without undue cost or effort,
and year-end staging classification as at 31 March. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 March 2023

32. HERAREIEEEREE @

EERE &)

REEERFALIEER
TREJIN=ZB=+—HRBREEENE
ERRIDNEEERRERBEERAR
DHEZERBHHEN CGRIFNSEMERE
BAREBRMARLE ) RERERDE
Fr2dEBaMBEEZ RERE.

BWZE-=F=H=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZfEA
HRHEERE EHRBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—PRE EREE F=RE 167 % At

HK$’000 T35 HK$'000 F# 7T

HK$’000 F#5t HK$000 F#5Tc HK$'000 F# 7T

Accounts receivable* & i B 1E* - - - 141,216 141,216
Financial assets included in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables

STATBMNRIE e R EMEWIRE

ZHBEE

- Normal* — [F &* 11,472 - - - 11,472
Due from an associate

e YNCIE

- Normal* — [E&* 54,409 - - - 54,409
Cash and cash equivalents

RehERREER

— Not yet past due — &5k #i A 392,648 - - - 392,648

458,529 - - 141,216 599,745
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continueq)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 March 2022

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 —&E - =#=H=+—H

HHEREEIEBEREE @
EEAK (@)
BEEBRERISE ()

RZEZZF=HB=+—H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
+ZEAR
FHEERSE SHIAREERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—MEE 5 REER FEMEER BEA % =L
HK$'000 Tt HK$'000 FE HK$000 FHE7T HK$000 FET HK$000 FETT
Accounts receivable* & i8R 1E* - - - 217,565 217,565
Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
SFABNRIE B R EMERRE
ZHBEE
- Normal* —IE &* 4,587 - - - 4,587
Due from an associate
e YNGR
- Normal* — IE &* 64,705 - - - 64,705
Cash and cash equivalents IR & KR EFIRETE
=
- Not yet past due — 5 & #1 £8 304,428 - - - 304,428
373,720 - - 217,565 591,285

For accounts receivable to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 18 to the financial
statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables and an amount
due from an associate is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of

the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.

WA E B R BB E S A E TR E R E IR
RIAME AR EEREESHNERNIH
BIRRI 18I EE

MHEEZEEERSARURE BT
B LA 18 Ut BR T8 T2 fief & Wt — ] Bk i 2 )
FIAR B HR B B AR 2 TIE B MUK I 48
ENBETRMBEEZEERREBYA
B ERER M-SR MHEEZ
EEEARWRABIRIR -
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32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and the projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

As at 31 March 2023

32.

HEEGEEBERBE @

MEBEEER

FEERBEEERPES R TAER
BE2RRZER 2 TAGZEHEESMT

ARMBEE WERWR®E) 28BN
MR REEERFG 2RISR ERE

rERZEZBETRRREESRERIERTE
B REESRHEEREEE 2B FE-
EFCBERTERZEEEERERAX
EROMEEAERETIEEARDES R

A
B o
AN

FAEBZHBRRN RS HRRERMER
GRNRIFLZEIHAFBNT ¢

WZE-_=F=H=+—H

Within 2to 5
On demand 1 year years Total
BFIEE
BRER —FR BHE Ch
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET FHET FHT
Account payable f& {7 8RIE - 123,229 - 123,229
Financial liabilities included in accrual liabilities,
other payables and contract liabilities
STARSafE HMEARERSNEE
ZHHaR 49,138 - 6,466 55,604
Lease liabilities A E & & - 1,105 1,658 2,763
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
FEERIRRE M - - 32,046 32,046
49,138 124,334 40,170 213,642
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The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.

32. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 32. ERAKEEBERER @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) MENEE R (&
As at 31 March 2022 A E_ _F=F=1+—H
Within 2tob5
On demand 1 year years Total
FIFER
BER —FRN BRE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FAET FAET FAETT
Account payable FE{JERIE - 159,743 - 159,743
Financial liabilities included in accrual liabilities, other
payables and contract liabilities
AEHER - HUEMRBRENERE
ZHMBaR 52,126 - 6,937 59,063
Bank borrowing $R1TEE - 14,773 - 14,773
Lease liabilities TR E & (& - 1,633 2,721 4,354
Loans from non-controlling shareholders
FEEREERER - - 32,046 32,046
52,126 176,149 41,704 269,979
Capital management BAREE

AEREREEAZTEARRRESER
RRBIEEZE URERERNERL
o BEBRMZF-

FEBABRCERREHTEEHEARR
BRHHFHFARE REFAAEELR
B AEEPERRABINTRREZRE
MRRBEEFHLTHR - RBEE_T
= RIBEZIZHE=ZRA=+—HLHF
E - AMEEEAZBN BERIEFILHE
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 33. Zx’AFBMEIRRER
THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the KRBRRERRZHBRARERDT .
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2023 2022
—— — e —

—_——— _—

HK$’000 +#77t HK$'000 FETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JEREh & &
Investments in subsidiaries RMIB AT 28 & 53,912 53,912

CURRENT ASSETS hEh& &

Due from subsidiaries & W i & A 5718 294,914 432,853
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

FETRIE 125 R H A FE U BRTE 4,155 1,082
Cash and cash equivalents IR& K ZERIESIER 304,772 187,609
Total current assets i EhE E 48 %8 603,841 621,544

CURRENT LIABILITY & &&

Accrued liabilities and other payables FE &t & (& & EL {1 fE (7 BR 18 1,676 1,656
NET CURRENT ASSETS igh& &% & 602,165 619,888
Net assets & E FE 656,077 673,800
EQUITY %

Issued share capital 22177 68,078 68,111
Reserves (note) &1 (FfsE) 587,999 605,689
Total equity #4828 656,077 673,800
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33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (continuea)

Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

Share Capital
premium redemption
account reserve

1) &
HER W EEEE

HK$000  HK$'000
TER

RAFS IR Y 5L

31 March 2023 —&E - =#=H=+—H

33. xREMBERRR @

st -

RABMEEST

Shares
held under Share
Contributed share award option Retained
surplus scheme reserve profits Total
B
o omEgHE mRE ‘ .
ARG FRRH e REEM 8%

HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000

FTERT TERT TET TET TERT TER
At1 April 2021 R Z2Z—5MB—H 90,550 7,360 66,982 (9,440) 9,611 449,938 615,001
Profit for the year and total comprehensive
income for the year
EREARFERENGZEE - - - - - 20,537 20,537
Issue of shares from exercise of share options
TERREMETRN 264 - - - (52) - 212
Shares granted under a share award scheme
RER A B BT AR (D - - - 2,534 - - 2,534
Shares repurchased #0157 (700) 74 - - - (74) (700)
Fma\ 2021 dividend declared and paid
BREIZZEZ—FEXRARE - - - - - (10,084) (10,084)
Speolal 2021 dividend declared and ald
BRI Z 22— FERIIRE - - - - - (8,740) (8,740)
Spemal 2022 dividend paid
BRIz 22 ZRERAIR - - - - - (13,475) (13,475)
Recqgmnqp\of equity-settled share based payments
BN EREEMURG SN 2B - - - - 404 - 404
Share options lapsed B 2 SBERE & - - - - (8,440) 8,440 -
At 31 March 2022 and 1 April 2022
WZEZZF=RA=+-HAKRZZ2-ZFMA-H 90,114 7,434 66,982 (6,906) 1,523 446,542 605,689
Profit for the year and total comprehensive
income for the year
FREIREESAREEH - - - - - 8,192 8,192
Issue of shares from exerclse of share options
fTiERE AR AE T B2 1T AR 932 - - - (155) - 777
Shares granted under share award schemes
RIEMR (D12 ED =t 8115 Hh AR - 3,296 - - 3,206

Shares repurchased &[0 213 (1,409) 145
Final 2022 dividend declared and paid
BERRKGZZB__FERERE - -

Interim 2023 dividend aid

BRfIZZE_=EREES - -
Speclal 2023 dwnd_end pald

BRIZZEZ=FERIRE - -
Recggmtlon of equity-settled share-based payments

BN EE N R G X ZHE = =

- - - (145) (1,409)
_ - > (13,486) (13,486)
_ - = (12,167)  (12,167)
; - = (3,380) (3,380)
- - 487 = 487

At 31 March 2023 K=F-=%=F=+—H 89,637 7,579

66,982 (3,610) 1,855 425,556 587,999

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in
September 1994, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor.

RABZBABERDIERE-ANAEEN
AXEEEERMBERNBEATRNZA
FTEBAFARARIMZFEEMETR
PzEEZERE
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

268

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2023 are as follows:

34. FEMBATIFSE

RIBZ_ZF=ZRA=+—H " ZxRIXE
MEBARZEFIBINT

Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
B3l BEITRG b NG|
2L 5 1 R 45 st 2 EMER FRESL FEEE
Directly held Ei#%H
Ready Luck Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
HEERRHS US$5,000 REER
&8 %5,000% 7T
Indirectly held fiEEH
Discovery Star Development Hong Kong & 7% Ordinary 100  Property holding
Limited HK$2 SEEEY/ES
HEZXEBRAH BB T
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Footwear Vietnam US$15,000,000 100 Footwear
Co., Ltd. 15,000,000 7T manufacturing
B2 58 (Hrm) BRAT NEHBER
Maystar Footwear Company PRC/ Mainland China US$43,000,000 100 Footwear
Limited L E P (Note (a)) manufacturing and
EEHHBRAF 43,000,000 7T property holding
(Mf5E(a)) HEHBER
REFBME
Miri International Limited Hong Kong &% Ordinary 100  Investment holding
REEREZRHERLSE HK$2 REER
BB T
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 34. TEMBARFE @
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)
Place of Percentage
incorporation/ of equity
registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal
Name and operations registered capital the Company activities
MR BETRE b /NS
%8 o 11 e A 3th Bh HMES FRESL FEXEER
Indirectly held (continueqd)
MERE (8
Kingmaker (Cambodia) Kingdom of Cambodia Ordinary 100 Footwear
Footwear Co., Ltd. RIBELEH US$10,000,000 manufacturing
Eak NEEHBER
10,000,000% 75
Opal Star International British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited EBEARHE US$1 REER
BEEERERERAT EERIET
LEEEBBRERAF PRC/ Mainland China US$9,000,000 100  Property holding
HE R E A (Note (a)) RAEME
9,000,0003 7T
GELE)
King Eternal Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 51 Investment holding
HEERRHS US$100 REER
Ei@R100%TT
Star (1) Limited Hong Kong &7 Ordinary 100  Trading of footwear
EE2NBRAE HK$300,000 products
Eak BEHEER
300,000 7t
Star (3) Limited Hong Kong & 7# Ordinary 100  Trading of footwear
EEQ)BRAT HK$1 products
EEEL EEEBEMD
1787

FEEEEEAMRAT F#H 2023

269



Notes to Financial Statements
B TSR R MIEE

31 March 2023 — & _=#=H=4+—H

34.

35.

270

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continuead)

Place of
incorporation/

34.

FTEMRBABFE @

Percentage
of equity

registration Issued share/ attributable to Principal

Name and operations registered capital the Company activities

3y BITRAD P NS

2tE 5 0 R 45 st 2 EMER FRESL FEEE

Indirectly held (continueqd)

MiERHE (@)

Yingfeng Industrial Hong Kong & 74 Ordinary 51 Investment holding
(Hongkong) Co., Limited US$20,409 REZK
WEEX (FHE) BRRE gL

20,409% 75

Notes: BosE -

(@)  These subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises under the law of the PRC.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in

particulars of excessive length.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 30 June 2023.
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group
RERREZIREYEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
BEREEA

Location 1t 2 FERZH#ER (FAEK) RERR 8 HA
Levels 4-7 of Block A, HE 100% 35,067 Industrial Short
whole of Blocks B and C ERE I vk
situated at Kigm
No.1 Cuizhu Street, AILE
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, BHI%E
Qianshan District, ZLRIRIR
Zhuhai Gity, HifR4-718 2R AR 2R
Guangdong Province,
The PRC
Whole of composite building, HE 100% 9,225.72 Industrial Short
Levels 1-7 situated at ERE I% Sk
No. 1 Cuizhu Street, g™
Cui Zhu Industrial Zone, EIfiTES
Qianshan District, BUTER
Zhuhai City, E378 2k
Guangdong Province, ERERR1-TIE
The PRC
Unit Nos. 1401, 1414, 1415 = 100% 330.18 Commercial Short
and 1416 on Level 14, ERE [GES yokit
Metro Plaza, M
Nos. 183-187 A&
Tianhe North Road, Kb 183-1875%
Tianhe District, AEEEH1418
Guangzhou, 140114141415
Guangdong Province, R1416%E
The PRC
Whole of Level 20, HE 100% 851.16 Commercial Short
Asia Mansion, LEm [GES ySEG)
Nos. 663-669 Jiu Jiang Road, =91
Huangpu District, 171 #£663-66957%
Shanghai, TMAE20E2E
The PRC
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Particulars of Investment Properties Held by the Group
REBRFBEZREYEFE

Approximate

Group’s gross floor
interest area (sq. m) Existing use  Term of lease
48
MREER
Location ek FEEZER (FrK) RER® 1HHA
Factory Unit 13 58 100% 726.12 Industrial Short
on 16th Floor, ik I a8
Vanta Industrial Centre, %8
Nos. 21-33 AEHE21-335:
Tai Lin Pai Road, BEIEFRD
Kwai Chung, 16121358 TR &1
New Territories,
Hong Kong
Whole of Level 21, ) 100% 409.79 Commercial Short
Empress Plaza, NEE [GES A
Nos. 17-19 Chatharm Road South, 27018
Tsimshatsui, RRERE17-195
Kowloon, HEES
Hong Kong A2
A parcel of land and the buildings ~ HEl 100% 58,249 Industrial Medium*
erected thereon, BERE I# AR
No. 3047 Ming Zhu South Road,  ¥iET
Qianshan District, AILLE
Zhuhai City, BR %k 2%
Guangdong Province, 30475%
The PRC —RiMRAEE EET
ZEEY
* The term for which the lease was granted remaining unexpired as * RIZEZ=F=A=+—H ETFTHHAZE
at 31 March 2023 is less than 50 years but not less than 10 years. KERBDLVRAE+EEBR DR +Eo
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